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NOTICE is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Mee  ng of the members of the Company will be held on Monday, 28th 

September, 2015 at 10.00 A.M. at PURBASHREE, Bhara  yam Cultural Mul  plex, IB-201, Sector-III, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700 106 

to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet 

of the Company as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of 

ProÞ t and Loss for the year ended on that date and the 

report of the Auditors & Directors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh 

(DIN: 05295625), who re  res by rota  on and being 

eligible, o! ers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint auditors and to Þ x their remunera  on and 

in this regard to consider and if thought Þ t, to pass the 

following resolu  on as an Ordinary Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sec  on 139, 141, 142 and 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from   me to 

  me and also the resolu  on passed in the Annual General 

Mee  ng held on 27.09.2014, the Company hereby ra  Þ es 

and conÞ rms the appointment of M/s. R. Kothari & 

Company, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 307069E) as the 

Auditors of the Company to hold o"  ce from the conclusion 

of this Annual General Mee  ng   ll the conclusion of the 

24th Annual General Mee  ng of the Company at such 

remunera  on as shall be Þ xed by the Board of Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as an Ordinary Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 

149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable provision, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, 

read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. 

Sujata Agarwal (DIN: 06833458) who was appointed as 

an Addi  onal Director on the Board of Directors of the 

Company on October 8, 2014 pursuant to the provision of 

Sec  on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 

thereunder, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company to hold o"  ce for a term up to Þ ve 

consecu  ve years commencing from October 8, 2014.”

5. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as an Ordinary Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 

149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable provision, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, 

read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 

Nanda Samai (DIN: 02566965) who was appointed as 

an Addi  onal Director on the Board of Directors of the 

Company on January 16, 2015 pursuant to the provision of 

Sec  on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 

thereunder, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company to hold o"  ce for a term up to Þ ve 

consecu  ve years commencing from January 16, 2015.”

6. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as an Ordinary Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 

149, 150, 152, 160 and other applicable provision, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, 

read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. 

Rohit Jain (DIN: 07129693) who was appointed as an 

Addi  onal Director on the Board of Directors of the 

Company on March 23, 2015 pursuant to the provision of 

Sec  on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed 

thereunder, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

Director of the Company to hold o"  ce for a term up to Þ ve 

consecu  ve years commencing from March 23, 2015.”

7. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as an Ordinary Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 

149, 152, 160 and other applicable provision, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, Mr. 

Ramesh Seemakur   (DIN: 00096163) who was appointed 

as an Addi  onal Director on the Board of Directors of the 

Company on August 22, 2015 to hold o"  ce upto the date 

of Annual General Mee  ng of the Company pursuant  to 

the provision of Sec  on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rules framed thereunder, be and is hereby appointed 

as a Non-Execu  ve Director of the Company, whose period 

of o"  ce would be liable to be determined by re  rement 

of Directors by rota  on.”

8. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as a Special Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  ons 

196, 197, 198, 203 read with Schedule-V and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

including any statutory modiÞ ca  on(s) or re-enactment 

thereof for the   me being in force  and such consents, 

approvals or permissions as may be required, the approval 

of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-

appointment of Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh (DIN: 05295625), 

Execu  ve Director of the Company for a further period of 

3 (three) years w.e.f. August 24, 2015, subject however 

that his o"  ce shall be liable to re  re by rota  on in terms 

of Sec  on 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 on such terms 

and condi  ons including remunera  on as set out in the 

agreement.
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to such approvals, 

permission and consents as may be required, in the event 

of loss or inadequacy of proÞ ts in any Þ nancial year the 

remunera  on payable to Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh shall be 

restricted to the ceiling provided in Sec  on II of Part II of 

Schedule V of the Act.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be 

and is hereby authorized to alter and vary the terms and 

condi  ons of the appointment and/or remunera  on, 

subject to the same not exceeding the limit speciÞ ed in 

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.”

9. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as a Special Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable laws 

(including any statutory modiÞ ca  on(s) or re-enactment 

thereof for the   me being in force) and in accordance 

with the provisions of the Memorandum and Ar  cles of 

Associa  on of Impex Ferro Tech Limited (the “Company”), 

lis  ng agreements entered into with stock exchanges 

on which the equity shares of the Company are listed, 

the applicable rules, no  Þ ca  ons, guidelines issued 

by the Government of India, the Reserve Bank of India 

and any regulatory or other appropriate authori  es, 

and subject to approvals, permissions, sanc  ons and 

consents as may be necessary from any regulatory or 

other appropriate authori  es (including but not limited 

to SEBI, the Corporate Debt Restructuring Empowered 

Group (the “CDR EG”), the Reserve Bank of India (the 

“RBI”), Government of India, etc. which may be agreed 

to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereina# er 

referred to as the “Board” which terms shall be deemed 

to include any commi$ ee which the Board has cons  tuted 

or may cons  tute to exercise its powers, including the 

powers conferred under this resolu  on the Company 

hereby approves, ra  fy and conÞ rms the Corporate Debt 

Restructuring package by and between the Company and 

the lenders of the Company, which has been approved by 

the CDR EG and communicated to the Company by the 

Corporate Debt Restructuring Cell (the “CDR Cell”) vide 

its  le$ er of approval dated November 21, 2014 and set 

forth under the Master Restructuring Agreement (the 

“MRA”) entered into between the Company and the CDR 

Lenders and the Board and/or any person authorised by 

the Board in respect thereof from   me to   me, be and is 

hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to discuss, 

nego  ate, amend, if required, the terms of the CDR LOA 

in the manner as may be approved by and between the 

Company and the CDR Lenders, amend or make changes 

to the MRA and enter into other documents in pursuance 

of the CDR LOA and the MRA, implement the CDR LOA and 

the MRA, on the basis of the terms set out in the CDR LOA 

and the MRA as may be agreed between the respec  ve 

par  es, and execute the necessary documents for the 

same including, inter alia issuance of Equity Shares to the 

promoters of the Company in terms of the CDR LOA and 

MRA.”

10. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as a Special Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 

62 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder 

(including any statutory modiÞ ca  on or re-enactments 

thereof), the regula  ons/guidelines, if any, issued/

prescribed by the Government of India, Securi  es and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and Reserve Bank of India 

(RBI), and in accordance with the relevant provisions of 

Memorandum and Ar  cles of Associa  on of the Company, 

the lis  ng agreements entered into by the Company with 

the respec  ve stock exchanges where the equity shares 

of the Company are listed, and all other concerned and 

relevant authori  es from   me to   me, to the extent 

applicable and subject to such approvals of relevant 

statutory/governmental authori  es as may be required, 

the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded 

to the Loans restructured and/or the loans to be granted 

to the Company by the CDR lenders in accordance with 

the Scheme of Corporate Debt Restructuring approved 

by the Corporate Debt Restructuring Empowered Group 

(CDR EG) vide  le$ er of approval dated November 21, 2014 

(CDR LOA) and the Master Restructuring Agreement (the 

“MRA”) entered into between the Company and the CDR 

Lenders, which scheme/agreement,  inter alia, grants an 

op  on to the CDR lenders to convert their outstanding 

loans (including interest thereon) into Equity Shares of the 

Company in such manner and on such terms and condi  ons 

as are speciÞ ed in the said Scheme of Corporate Debt 

Restructuring and the Master Restructuring Agreement.”

11. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as a Special Resolu  on: 

 “RESOLVED THAT as per the provisions of Sec  on 61 and 

all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules framed thereunder 

including any statutory modiÞ ca  on or re-enactment 

thereof, for the   me being in force, and pursuant to the 

provisions of Memorandum and Ar  cles of Associa  on of 

the Company, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company 

be and is hereby increased from ` 82,50,00,000/- (Rupees 

Eighty Two Crores and Fi# y Lacs) divided into 8,25,00,000 

(Eight Crores and Twenty Five Lacs) Equity Shares of ` 

10/- each to ` 95,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Five Crores) 

divided into 9,50,00,000 (Nine Crores Fi# y Lacs) Equity 

Shares of ` 10/- each by crea  on of 1,25,00,000 Equity 

Shares of ` 10/- each.
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of Sec  on 13 and 

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013 and consequent upon the increase in the Authorised 

Share Capital as men  oned aforesaid, the exis  ng Clause 

V of the Memorandum of Associa  on of the Company be 

and is hereby subs  tuted with the following new Clause V:

 V.  The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is 

` 95,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ninety Five Crores) divided into 

9,50,00,000 (Nine Crores Fi# y Lacs) Equity shares of ` 10/- 

each with power to the Board to increase or reduce  the 

capital of the Company and to divide or sub-divide the 

shares in capital of the Company for the   me being  into 

several classes and to a$ ach thereto such preferen  al 

qualiÞ ed or special rights, privileges or condi  ons as may 

be determined by or in accordance with the Ar  cles of the 

Company for the   me being.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 

e! ect to this resolu  on and for removal of any doubts 

or di"  cul  es, the Board of Directors of the Company 

(hereina# er referred to as the “Board”, which term shall 

be deemed to include any commi$ ee cons  tuted or to be 

cons  tuted by the Board to exercise its powers including 

the powers conferred by this resolu  on), be and is hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds, ma$ ers and things 

and se$ le any or all ques  ons or ma$ ers arising with 

respect to the increase in authorized share capital of the 

Company and the amendment to the Memorandum of 

Associa  on of the Company and make all necessary Þ lings 

and in  ma  ons to the Registrar of Companies and other 

appropriate authori  es, and to give, from   me to   me, 

such direc  ons as may be necessary, expedient, usual or 

proper as the Board in its absolute discre  on may think Þ t 

and its decision shall be Þ nal and binding on all members 

and other interested persons.”

12. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as a Special Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 62 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and all other applicable laws (including any 

statutory modiÞ ca  on(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 

  me being in force) and in accordance with the provisions 

of the Memorandum and Ar  cles of Associa  on of the 

Company, the Lis  ng Agreements entered into by the 

Company with the stock exchanges, where the shares 

of the Company are listed, applicable provisions of the 

Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regula  ons, 2009, as may 

be modiÞ ed or re-enacted from   me to   me (SEBI ICDR 

Regula  ons), the applicable rules, no  Þ ca  ons, guidelines 

issued by various authori  es and subject to the approvals, 

permissions, sanc  ons and consents as may be necessary 

from such regulatory and other appropriate authori  es, 

the SEBI, the Corporate Debt Restructuring Empowered 

Group (the CDR EG), the RBI, the Government of India, 

etc., and subject to such condi  ons and modiÞ ca  ons as 

may be prescribed by any of them while gran  ng such 

approvals, permissions, sanc  ons and consents and all 

such other approvals, which may be agreed to by the 

Board of Directors (hereina# er referred to as the Board, 

which term shall be deemed to include any Commi$ ee 

thereof) and in terms of the Corporate Debt Restructuring 

package by and between the Company and the lenders 

of the Company, which has been approved by the CDR 

EG and communicated to the Company by the Corporate 

Debt Restructuring Cell (the CDR Cell) vide its  le$ er of 

approval dated November 21, 2014 and set forth under 

the Master Restructuring Agreement (the “MRA”) entered 

into between the Company and the CDR Lenders and 

the Board,  consent of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the Board to o! er, issue and allot in one or 

more tranches not more than 63,35,000 (Sixty Three Lacs 

Thirty Five Thousand) fully paid-up equity shares of ` 

10/- (Rupees Ten) each of the Company, for an aggregate 

amount of ` 12.67 Crores (Rupees Twelve Crore and Sixty 

Seven Lacs only) against the conversion of unsecured loan, 

at a price of ` 20/-, determined in accordance with SEBI 

ICDR Regula  ons, to the following en  ty as per the terms 

of CDR Scheme, on preferen  al basis and in such manner 

and on such other terms and condi  ons, as the Board may, 

in its absolute discre  on, think Þ t.

Name of the 

Allo" ee

No. of Shares 

to be allo" ed

 Promoter Group  

Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd 63,35,000

Total 63,35,000

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT as per the provisions of 

Chapter VII of the SEBI ICDR Regula  ons, the ‘Relevant 

Date’ for determining the price for the equity shares to be 

issue shall be October 20, 2014 being the date on which 

Corporate Debt Restructuring Package of the Company 

was approved by the CDR EG.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares to be allo$ ed 

upon shall be fully paid on allotment and shall rank pari-

passu with the exis  ng Equity Shares of the Company in all 

respects and the Equity Shares shall be subject to lock-in 

for such period as s  pulated by the applicable SEBI ICDR 

Regula  ons.
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares so allo$ ed 

shall be listed on the stock exchanges where the shares of 

the Company are listed.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company do make 

applica  on to the Na  onal Securi  es Depository Limited 

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (I) Limited (CDSL) 

for admission of the new equity shares to be issued on 

preferen  al basis. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving e! ect 

to the aforesaid resolu  on(s), the Board be and is hereby 

authorized on behalf of the Company to take all ac  ons 

and to do all such acts, deeds, ma$ ers and things as it may, 

in its absolute discre  on, deem Þ t, necessary, proper or 

desirable for such purpose, including to seek lis  ng, apply 

for in-principle lis  ng approval of the equity shares to be 

issued and allo$ ed and to modify, accept and give e! ect 

to any modiÞ ca  ons in the terms and condi  ons of the 

issue as may be required by the statutory, regulatory and 

other appropriate authori  es (including but not limited 

to SEBI, CDR EG, RBI, the Government of India, etc.) and 

such other approvals (including approvals of the exis  ng 

lenders of the Company, if required) and as may be 

agreed by the Board, and to se$ le all ques  ons/queries, 

di"  cul  es or doubts that may arise in the proposed issue, 

pricing of the issue, o! er and allotment of the equity 

shares and to execute all such deeds, documents, wri  ngs, 

agreements, applica  ons in connec  on with the proposed 

issue as the Board may in its absolute discre  on deem 

necessary or desirable without being required to seek any 

further consent or approval of the Members or otherwise 

with the intent that the Members shall be deemed to have 

given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of 

this resolu  on.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 

authorized in its en  re discre  on to decide to proceed with 

the issue of Equity Shares as contemplated above and to 

delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any 

Commi$ ee of Directors to give e! ect to this resolu  on.

13. To consider and, if thought Þ t, to pass the following 

resolu  on as an Ordinary Resolu  on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 

148(2) and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the 

remunera  on of ` 35,000/- plus applicable taxes and re-

imbursement of out of pocket expenses payable to M/s. 

A J S & Associates, Cost Accountant (Registra  on No. 

0001060), who has been re-appointed by the Board of 

Directors of the Company as Cost Auditor to conduct an 

audit of the cost accoun  ng records maintained by the 

Company for the year ending 31st March, 2016 be and is 

hereby ra  Þ ed.” 

 By Order of the Board

For Impex Ferro Tech Limited

 Richa Agarwal

 Company Secretary

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 22ndAugust, 2015                                                           

NOTES: 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 

MEETING, IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/PROXIES 

TO ATTEND AND VOTE, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF 

AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 

Company. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD 

BE COMPLETED, STAMPED AND SIGNED AND MUST BE 

DEPOSITED AT THE CORPORATE OFFICE OF THE Company 

NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT 

OF THE MEETING. A person can act as proxy on behalf 

of Members not exceeding Þ # y (50) and holding in the 

aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of 

the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed 

by a member holding more than 10% of the total share 

capital of the Company carrying vo  ng rights, then such 

proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other member.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec  on 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, rela  ng to Special Business to be 

transacted at the Mee  ng, is annexed hereto.

3. The relevant details, as required under Clause 49 of the 

Lis  ng Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges; 

of person seeking appointment/re-appointment as 

Director under Item No. 2, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 is annexed 

hereto as addi  onal informa  on.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall 

remain closed from Monday, 21st September, 2015 to 

Monday, 28th September, 2015 (both days inclusive).

5. Shareholders holding shares in physical form are 

requested to advice any change of address immediately 

to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, 

M/s. Maheshwari Datama  cs (P) Ltd., 6, Mangoe Lane, 

2ndFloor, Kolkata - 700 001 and to their respec  ve DPs in 

respect of Equity Shares held in dematerialized form.

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised 

representa  ves to a$ end the mee  ng are requested to 

send a cer  Þ ed copy of the Board Resolu  on authorizing 

their representa  ve to a$ end and vote on their behalf at 

the Mee  ng.
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7. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their A$ endance 

Slip for a$ ending the Mee  ng.

8. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are 

requested to write their Client ID and DP ID and those 

who hold shares in physical form are requested to write 

their Folio Number in the a$ endance slip for a$ ending the 

mee  ng. In case of joint holders a$ ending the mee  ng, 

only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 

will be en  tled to vote.

9. Members desirous of obtaining any informa  on 

concerning the accounts and opera  ons of the Company 

are requested to send their queries to the Company at 

least ten days before the mee  ng so that the same could 

be complied in advance.

10. Since the securi  es of the Company are compulsorily 

tradable in electronic form, to ensure be$ er investor 

service and elimina  on of risk of holding securi  es in 

physical form, it is requested that the members holding 

shares in physical form to get their shares dematerialised 

at the earliest.

11. All documents referred to in the No  ce will be available 

for inspec  on at the Company’s Corporate O"  ce during 

normal business hours on working days upto the date of 

AGM.

12. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2015 is being sent 

to all the Members whose e-mail ids are registered with the 

Company/Depository Par  cipant(s) for communica  on 

purposes unless any Member has requested for a hard copy 

of the same. For the Members who have not registered 

their e-mail address, physical copies of the Annual Report 

for 2015 is being sent in the permi$ ed mode. Rule 18(3)

(i) of the Companies (Management and Administra  on) 

Rules, 2014 requires a Company to provide advance 

opportunity atleast once in a Þ nancial year, to the Member 

to register his e-mail address and any changes therein. In 

compliance with the same, we request the Members who 

do not have their e-mail id registered with the Company to 

get the same registered with the Company. Members are 

also requested to in  mate to the Company the changes, 

if any in their e-mail address. The Annual Report of the 

Company, circulated to the Members of the Company, 

will also be made available on the Company’s website i.e. 

www.impexferrotech.com.

13. Electronic copy of the No  ce of the 20th Annual General 

Mee  ng of the Company inter alia indica  ng the process 

and manner of e-vo  ng along with A$ endance Slip and 

Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose 

e-mail IDs are registered with the Company/Depository 

Par  cipant(s) for communica  on purposes. For members 

who have not registered their e-mail address, physical 

copies of the No  ce of the 20th Annual General Mee  ng 

of the Company inter alia indica  ng the process and 

manner of e-vo  ng along with A$ endance Slip and Proxy 

Form is being sent in the permi$ ed mode. 

14. In compliance with provisions of Sec  on 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administra  on) Rules, 2014, the 

Members are informed that the Company is pleased 

to o! er e-vo  ng facility to cast their vote electronically. 

The Company has made necessary arrangement with the 

Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) to facilitate 

e-vo  ng.

 The e-vo  ng facility is available at the link www.

evo  ngindia.com vide the EVSN 150822018.

 The e-vo  ng facility will be available during the following 

vo  ng period :

Commencement 

of e-vo  ng

From : 10.01 a.m. of 25th 

September, 2015

End of e-vo  ng Upto : 5.00 p.m. of 27th 

September, 2015

 E-vo  ng shall not be allowed beyond 5.00 p.m. of 27th 

September, 2015.

 The detailed procedure is men  oned below. For the 

aforesaid purpose the Company has appointed M/s A J & 

Associates, Prac  cing Company Secretaries for scru  nizing 

the e-vo  ng process in a true and transparent manner.

15. e-Vo  ng Procedure

 The procedure and instruc  ons for Shareholders Vo  ng 

electronically are as under :

 (i) The vo  ng period begins on 25th September, 2015 

at 10.01 a.m. and ends on 27th September, 2015 

at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or 

in dematerialized form, as on the cut-o!  date (record 

date) of 21st September, 2015 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-vo  ng module shall be disabled 

by CDSL for vo  ng therea# er.

 (ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the 

mee  ng date would not be en  tled to vote at the 

mee  ng venue.

 (iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-vo  ng 

website www.evo  ngindia.com.

 (iv) Click on Shareholders.

 (v) Now Enter your User ID 

  a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneÞ ciary ID, 

  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits 
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Client ID, 

  c. Members holding shares in Physical Form 

should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company.

 (vi) Next enter the Image VeriÞ ca  on as displayed and 

Click on Login.

 (vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had 

logged on to www.evo  ngindia.com and voted on 

an earlier vo  ng of any Company, then your exis  ng 

password is to be used. 

 (viii) If you are a Þ rst   me user follow the steps given 

below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and 

Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric 

*PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as 

physical shareholders)

• Members who have not updated 

their PAN with the Company/

Depository Par  cipant are 

requested to use the Þ rst two le$ ers 

of their name and the 8 digits of the 

sequence number in the PAN Þ eld.

• In case the sequence number is less 

than 8 digits enter the applicable 

number of 0’s before the number 

a# er the Þ rst two characters of 

the name in CAPITAL le$ ers. Eg. If 

your name is Ramesh Kumar with 

sequence number 1 then enter 

RA00000001 in the PAN Þ eld.

Dividend 

Bank 

Details

OR Date 

of Birth 

(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or 

Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) 

as recorded in your demat account or 

in the Company records in order to 

login.

• If both the details are not recorded 

with the depository or Company 

please enter the member id / folio 

number in the Dividend Bank details 

Þ eld as men  oned in instruc  on (v).

 (ix) A# er entering these details appropriately, click on 

“SUBMIT” tab.

 (x) Members holding shares in physical form will 

then directly reach the Company selec  on screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form 

will now reach ‘Password Crea  on’ menu wherein 

they are required to mandatorily enter their login 

password in the new password Þ eld. Kindly note that 

this password is to be also used by the demat holders 

for vo  ng for resolu  ons of any other Company 

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 

Company opts for e-vo  ng through CDSL pla& orm. It 

is strongly recommended not to share your password 

with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password conÞ den  al.

 (xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, 

the details can be used only for e-vo  ng on the 

resolu  ons contained in this No  ce.

 (xii) Click on the EVSN for IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED on 

which you choose to vote.

 (xiii) On the vo  ng page, you will see “RESOLUTION 

DESCRIPTION” and against the same the op  on 

“YES/NO” for vo  ng. Select the op  on YES or NO as 

desired. The op  on YES implies that you assent to the 

Resolu  on and op  on NO implies that you dissent to 

the Resolu  on.

 (xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to 

view the en  re Resolu  on details.

 (xv) A# er selec  ng the resolu  on you have decided to 

vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A conÞ rma  on box will 

be displayed. If you wish to conÞ rm your vote, click 

on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 

and accordingly modify your vote.

 (xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolu  on, 

you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

 (xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking 

on “Click here to print” op  on on the Vo  ng page.

 (xviii) If a demat account holder has forgo$ en the login 

password then Enter the User ID and the image 

veriÞ ca  on code and click on “Forgot Password” & 

enter the details as prompted by the system.

 (xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and 

Custodians

  • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are 

required to log on to www.evo  ngindia.com and 

register themselves as Corporate.

  • A scanned copy of the Registra  on Form bearing 

the stamp and sign of the en  ty should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evo  ng@cdslindia.com.

  • A# er receiving the login details a Compliance 

User should be created using the admin login 

and password. The Compliance User would be 
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able to link the account(s) for which they wish 

to vote on.

  • The list of accounts linked in the login should be 

mailed to helpdesk.evo  ng@cdslindia.com and 

on approval of the accounts they would be able 

to cast their vote. 

  • A scanned copy of the Board Resolu  on and 

Power of A$ orney (POA) which they have issued 

in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 

uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scru  nizer to verify the same.

 (xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding 

e-vo  ng, you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Ques  ons (“FAQs”) and e-vo  ng manual available at 

www.evo  ngindia.com, under help sec  on or write 

an email to helpdesk.evo  ng@cdslindia.com.

DISTRIBUTION OF GIFTS

A$ en  on of the Members is drawn that in conformity with 

recent regulatory requirements, the Company will NOT be 

distribu  ng any gi# , gi#  coupons or cash in lieu of gi# s at the 

Annual General Mee  ng (AGM) or in connec  on therewith.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE 
SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 4 to 6

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 

appointment and tenure of the Independent Directors which 

came into e! ect from April 1, 2014, the Independent Directors 

shall be appointed for not more than two terms of Þ ve years 

each and shall not be liable to re  re by rota  on. 

The Board of Directors of the Company have decided to adopt 

the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of 

Independent Directors which is consistent with the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the amended Lis  ng Agreement.

All the aforesaid Directors as proposed to be appointed under 

these resolu  ons are Non-Execu  ve Independent Directors of 

the Company. 

In terms of Sec  on 149 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Sujata Agarwal, Mr. Nanda Samai and 

Mr. Rohit Jain, being eligible, o! er themselves for appointment, 

and are proposed to be appointed as Independent Directors for 

a term as stated in the respec  ve resolu  ons.

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal, Mr. Nanda Samai and Mr. Rohit Jain, 

Non-Execu  ve Independent Directors of the Company, 

have given a declara  on to the Board that they meet the 

criteria of independence as provided under Sec  on 149(6) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, 

each of these Directors fulÞ lls the condi  ons speciÞ ed in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder for their 

appointment as Independent Directors of the Company and 

they are independent of the management. These Directors are 

not disqualiÞ ed from being appointed as a Director in terms of 

Sec  on 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and they have given 

their consent to act as Director.

No  ces have been received from member signifying their 

inten  on to propose the appointment of these Directors along 

with a deposit of ` 1,00,000/- each. A copy of the dra#  Le$ ers 

of Appointment for Independent Directors, se'  ng out terms 

and condi  ons of their appointment, is available for inspec  on 

at the Corporate O"  ce of the Company during business hours 

on any working day   ll the date of Annual General Mee  ng 

and is also available on the website of the Company www.

impexferrotech.com. 

Except these directors, being appointees, none of the 

Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 

rela  ves are, in any way, concerned or interested, Þ nancially or 

otherwise, in the Resolu  ons set out at Item No.4 to 6 of the 

No  ce.

The Board commends the resolu  ons in rela  on to the 

appointment of these directors as Independent Directors, for 

the approval by the shareholders.

Item No. 7

Mr. Ramesh Seemakur  , aged about 47 years was appointed as 

an Addi  onal Director of the Company at the Board Mee  ng 

held on August 22, 2015 and in terms of Sec  on 161 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. He holds o"  ce upto the date of Annual 

General Mee  ng.

The Company has obtained from Mr. Seemakur   his consent 

in Form DIR-2 to act as a Director and in  ma  on in Form DIR-

8 to the e! ect that he is not disqualiÞ ed to be appointed as a 

Director in any Company.

The Company has received No  ce in wri  ng under sec  on 

160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a Member along with 

a deposit of ` 1,00,000/- proposing the candidature of Mr. 

Seemakur  , as a Director in any Company.

Mr. Seemakur   does not hold any membership in any 

commi$ ee of the Board of Directors of the aforesaid Company. 

Mr. Seemakur   does not hold any share in the Company.

The Board considers that associa  on of Mr. Seemakur   will be 

of immense beneÞ t to the Company and it would be prudent 

to appoint Mr. Seemakur   as a Non-Execu  ve Director of the 

Company.
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Accordingly, the Board recommends the Resolu  on in rela  on 

to appointment of Mr. Seemakur   as a Non-Execu  ve Director, 

for approval by the Members.

Except Mr. Seemakur   himself and Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni, 

being Promoter-Director and his rela  ves are deemed to 

be interested in the resolu  on. No other Directors and Key 

Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company or their rela  ves 

are concerned or interested in resolu  on.

Item No. 8

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh is an Execu  ve Director of the Company.  

His current term of appointment as an Execu  ve Director of 

the Company is expiring on August 23, 2015. Considering the 

experience and services rendered by Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh and 

based on the recommenda  on of Nomina  on & Remunera  on 

Commi$ ee, the Board of Directors of the Company have re-

appointed him as an Execu  ve Director of the Company for a 

further period of 3 (three) years with e! ect from August 24, 

2015 on the terms and condi  ons as set out in the Agreement 

dated 22nd August, 2015 executed between the Company and 

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh.

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh, Execu  ve Director shall be paid the 

following remunera  on for the services rendered by him:

1. Remunera  on: Salary of ` 75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five 

Thousand only) per month with an authority to the Board 

to grant such further increases from   me to   me as they 

may deem Þ t, within the limits speciÞ ed in Sec  on II of 

Part II of Schedule V of the Act, as may be amended from 

  me to   me.

2. Perquisites: Perquisites applicable to the Execu  ve 

Director are as follows:-

 i.  Leave: He will be en  tled to leave as per applicable 

Rule of the Company.

 ii. Leave Encashment: As per applicable Rule of the 

Company

 iii. Company’s contribu  on to Provident Fund and 

Gratuity shall not be included in the computa  on of 

limits for remunera  on or perquisites.

However, in case of absence or inadequacy of net proÞ ts in any 

Þ nancial year, the remunera  on payable to Mr. Sa  sh Kumar 

Singh shall be restricted to Sec  on II of Part II of Schedule V of 

the Act.

All other terms and condi  ons are set out in the Agreement 

referred to above. The relevant Agreement entered into by the 

Board with Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh is available for inspec  on 

by members at the Corporate O"  ce of the Company on any 

working day during business hours   ll the date of Annual 

General Mee  ng.

Except Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh, none of the Directors / Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company / their rela  ves are in 

any way, concerned or interested, Þ nancially or otherwise, in 

the resolu  on set out at Item No-8 of the No  ce.

The Board recommends the resolu  on set out at Item No-8 of 

the No  ce for approval by the Shareholders.

Statement pursuant to item (iv) under second proviso to clause 

(B) of Sec  on II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 

2013 with respect to Item No- 8

I. GENERAL INFORMATION
 1. Nature of Industry: Impex Ferro Tech Limited was 

incorporated on 7th June, 1995 and is engaged 

in manufacturing of Ferro Alloys, such as Silico 

Manganese (SiMn) and Ferro Manganese (FeMn) 

through Submerged Arc Furnace (SAF) route. The 

Company is also engaged in Trading of Iron and Steel 

Products. Ferro Alloys are intermediate products and 

used as an essen  al ingredients of making special 

grade steel having speciÞ c proper  es. Hence growth 

of these industries is linked with the growth of Iron & 

Steel Industry sector.

 2. The Company has a manufacturing facili  es located 

at Kalyaneshwari in West Bengal.

 3. Date of Commencement of Commercial Produc  on:

  The Company commenced its Commercial Produc  on 

in 1998.

 4. Financial Performance of the Company:

  The Financial Performance of the Company is as 

follows:

No  ce
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 (` in Crores)

Par  culars 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

Sales and other Income 508.85 704.32 644.20

ProÞ t before Deprecia  on, Interest and Tax but a# er Prior 

Period Items 

(22.46) (18.06) 53.38

Deprecia  on/Amor  za  on 8.64 11.77 11.42

Interest and Finance Charges 30.34 35.96 35.78

Tax Expenses 0.00 (10.94) 2.21

ProÞ t/(Loss) before Excep  onal items (61.44) (54.86) 3.96

Excep  onal Gain /(Loss) 0.00 0.00 0.00

ProÞ t/(Loss) a# er Tax (61.44) (54.86) 3.96

 5. Foreign Earnings, investments or collabora  ons:

 (` in Crores)

Par  culars 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13

Foreign Investments or Collabora  ons - - -

I. INFORMATION ABOUT APPOINTEE

Sl. No. Par  culars Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh

1 Background Details He is B.Tech (Electrical & Electronic Engineering) and has been ac  vely 

involved in the overall management of the Company's Manufacturing facility 

at Kalyaneshwari.

2 Past Remunera  on Remunera  on received from Impex Ferro Tech Limited ` 75,000/- (Rupees 

Seventy Five Thousand Only) per month for the year ended 31.03.2015.

3 Job ProÞ le & his suitability Overall management of the Company's Manufacturing facility at Kalyaneshwari.

4 Remunera  on proposed As detailed above. 

5 Compara  ve remunera  on 

proÞ le with respects to 

Industry Size of the Company, 

proÞ le of the posi  on and 

person

The proposed remunera  on is commensurate with the size and nature 

of business of the Company and the responsibility of the appointee. The 

remunera  on do di! er from Company to Company in the industry depending 

on the respec  ve opera  ons.   

6 Pecuniary rela  onship, directly 

or indirectly, with the Company 

or rela  onship with the 

managerial personnel, if any,

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh does not have any pecuniary rela  onship directly 

and indirectly with the Company as well as rela  onship with the managerial 

personnel. 

II. OTHER INFORMATION:

 Reason of Loss or inadequate proÞ ts

 The Ferro Alloys market was under stress due to recession 

faced in all major Global Economies, which has impacted 

the net realiza  on and demand of the Company’s principal 

product. The Company has incurred losses due to non-

recovery of Þ xed cost on account of reduc  on in capacity 

u  liza  on. The Company has been facing liquidity issues 

resul  ng in fall in capacity u  liza  on and was not able to 

perform upto the expected level.   

 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement 

 The Company undertook several steps to lowering 

the overheads and aligning resources with current 

level of opera  ons. The Company is focusing  on cost 

compe    veness. The Company is brought under the 

Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Scheme for nursing it 

to proÞ tability 

 Expected Increase in produc  vity and proÞ ts in 

measurable terms

 The management has adopted focused and aggressive 

No  ce
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business strategies and func  ons to improve the sales 

and proÞ tability of the Company. Considering the present 

sign of improvement in overall business environment, 

the Company is expec  ng an increase in its revenue and 

proÞ tability. The Management is conÞ dent of higher 

growth ra  o in the period to come.

III. DISCLOSURES
 The detail of remunera  on and other informa  on is given 

in the Corporate Governance a$ ached as the part of the 

Director’s Report.

Item No. 9

Impex Ferro Tech Limited (“Company”) has witnessed 

signiÞ cant setbacks for mobilizing long term equity funds into 

the Company by way of equity dilu  on or stake sale, due to 

uncertain  es the steel and infrastructure sector has been 

passing through in the past few years like shortage of supply of 

iron ores, shortage of coal supply, poor Þ nancial health of the 

industry as a whole, increase in the cost of raw materials, poor 

sales realiza  ons, lack of   mely Government policies, adverse 

capital market condi  ons etc. As a result, the ability of the 

Company to meet its repayment obliga  ons/liabili  es under 

the various facili  es availed by it were adversely a! ected. 

The Company felt it necessary that a reference of the ma$ er 

be made to the Corporate Debt Restructuring (“CDR”) Forum 

under CDR guidelines issued by The Reserve Bank of India, 

for e"  cient restructuring of the debts of the Company. The 

Company has made a request for restructuring of its debts to 

the Bankers and subsequently the Lead Banker has made a 

reference to the CDR Cell.

A# er considering the Þ nal report submi$ ed by the Monitoring 

Ins  tu  on (MI) in consulta  on with the Monitoring Commi$ ee 

(MC) appointed by the CDR EG in this regard, the Þ nal 

restructuring package (“CDR Package”) was approved by the 

Corporate Debt Restructuring Empowered Group (“CDR EG”), 

at its mee  ng held on October 20, 2014 and communicated to 

the CDR Lenders vide Le$ er of Approval dated November 21, 

2014 (“CDR LOA”). 

The signiÞ cant features of the CDR package inter alia are as 

follows: 

1. Cut-o!  Date: April 30, 2014

2. The total Restructured Facili  es under the CDR Package 

amounts to Rs. 328.61 Crores which includes Restructured 

Term Loan, the Working Capital Term Loan I, the Working 

Capital Term Loan II, Funded Interest Term Loan, the 

Working Capital Facili  es, the Fresh Working Capital 

Facility and Non Fund Based Working Capital Limit.

3. Moratorium for repayment of Restructured Term Loan, 

Working Capital Term Loan I and II and Funded Interest 

Term Loan for the ini  al period is 2 years from Cut-O!  

Date.

4. Rate of Interest on TL and WC will be @ 11.75% p.a. 

Further the rate of interest on WCTL I, WCTL II and FITL 

will be @ 11.25 p.a.

5. Funding of interest on the Term Loan and WTCL I & WCTL 

II for a period of 24 months from Cut-o!  Date. 

The security for the above Restructured Facili  es inter alia is 

as under:

1. Security Interest having a Þ rst charge over Þ xed and 

current assets (present and future) of the Company.

2. The Personal Guarantee of Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni, Mr. 

Rohit Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni.

3. Pledge of en  re promoter and promoter group stake in 

the Company (in demat form), represen  ng 66.71% of 

the Paid Up Capital (PUC) of the Company (Subject to 

Compliance with Sec  on 185 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

(Individual promoter hold 1.04% of the PUC and associate 

concerns belonging to the Promoter group hold 65.65% of 

the PUC).

The Board of Directors have approved the debt restructuring 

package as per CDR LOA. 

The Special Resolu  on at item No. 9, proposed to be passed 

by the members, shall be deemed to be a conÞ rma  on, 

ra  Þ ca  on and authoriza  on by the members of the Company 

in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regula  on 10(2) of SEBI (Substan  al Acquisi  on of 

Shares & Takeover) Regula  ons, 2011 to the Corporate Debt 

Restructuring Package as set out in the CDR LOA and MRA. 

Your Directors recommend the passing of resolu  on at Item 

No. 9 of the No  ce as Special Resolu  on

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their rela  ves 

are deemed to be concerned or interested in the above 

resolu  on to the extent of their shareholding in the Company. 

The Directors and their rela  ves also deemed to be interested 

in the aforesaid Promoter Companies to the extent of their 

shareholding. None of the KMPs holds any shares in the 

Promoter Companies.

The Le$ er of Approval dated November 21, 2014 and the 

Master Restructuring Agreement (“MRA”) shall be open for 

inspec  on by the Members at the Corporate O"  ce of the 

Company on any working day during business hours   ll the 

date of Annual General Mee  ng. 

Item No. 10

As per the Le$ er of Approval dated November 21, 2014 issued 

by the CDR Cell and the Master Restructuring Agreement 

(“MRA”) executed by the Company with the CDR Lenders, 

the CDR Lenders shall have a right to convert en  re/part of 

defaulted interest and en  re/part of defaulted principal into 

Equity Shares as per SEBI guidelines, in the event of default. 

No  ce
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Further the CDR Lenders shall also have right to convert into 

equity upto 20% of the term debt outstanding beyond a period 

of 7 years as per SEBI ICDR Regula  ons.

In terms of Para V(26) of the Le$ er of Approval dated November 

21, 2014, allotment of such number of Equity Shares of the face 

value of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each shall be made to the 

CDR Lenders which shall not exceed the amount of principal 

and interest outstanding as on the date of default, in the event 

of default in payment of the principal or interest thereon under 

the Scheme of Corporate Debt Restructuring approved by the 

Corporate Debt Restructuring Empowered Group (CDR EG) vide 

le$ er of approval dated November 21, 2014 (CDR LOA), at a 

price as per the SEBI rules and regula  ons / Companies Act, 

2013 and subject to and in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of 

Capital and Disclosure Requirement) Regula  ons, 2009 and as 

amended by SEBI ICDR (Amendment) Regula  ons, 2014 as and 

to the extent applicable, on the exercise by the CDR Lenders of 

the op  on to convert the whole or part of their loans, subject 

to a no  ce of at least 30 (thirty) days from the CDR Lenders 

to the Company (hereina# er referred to as the “No  ce of 

Conversion”). 

The conversion by the CDR Lenders shall be in accordance 

with the following condi  ons: 

(i) On receipt of the No  ce of Conversion, the Company shall 

allot and issue the requisite number of fully paid-up Equity 

Shares to the CDR Lenders and such CDR Lenders shall 

accept the same in sa  sfac  on of the loans of the CDR 

Lenders so converted, as envisaged under the CDR LOA;

(ii)  The part of the said loans so converted shall cease to 

carry interest as from the date of conversion and the said 

loans shall stand correspondingly reduced. Upon such 

conversion, the repayment installments payable a# er 

the date of conversion as per the CDR LOA shall stand 

reduced propor  onately by the amounts of the said loan 

so converted; 

(iii) The Equity Shares so allo$ ed and issued to the CDR Lenders 

shall rank pari-passu with the exis  ng Equity Shares of 

the Company in all respects, inter alia, the dividends and 

other distribu  ons declared or to be declared in respect of 

the equity capital of the Company; and

(iv) In the event that the CDR Lenders exercise the conversion 

right as aforesaid, the Company shall, if so required by the 

said CDR Lenders, at its cost, apply to the stock exchanges 

where the shares of the Company are listed for the lis  ng 

of the Equity Shares issued to the CDR Lenders as a result 

of the conversion.

In accordance with the provisions of sec  on 62(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, it is proposed to obtain approval of the 

Members to the Loans restructured/granted by the said CDR 

lenders in accordance with the said Le$ er of Approval dated 

November 21, 2014 issued by the CDR Cell and the Master 

Restructuring Agreement (“MRA”), which scheme/agreement, 

interalia contains a term which grants the CDR lenders an 

op  on to seek conversion of the restructured facili  es into 

Equity Shares. 

Your Directors recommend the passing of resolu  on at Item 

No. 10 of the No  ce as Special Resolu  on. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their 

rela  ves are concerned or interested in the above resolu  on. 

The above resolu  on does not a! ect any other Company. 

Item No. 11

The Authorised Share Capital of your Company is presently `  

82,50,00,000 divided into 8,25,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- 

each. In order to meet the requirement for infusion of capital as 

set out in resolu  on 10 of this no  ce. The Company proposes 

to meet its fund requirement by issue of equity shares. It is, 

therefore, considered appropriate to increase the Authorized 

Share Capital of the Company from exis  ng ` 82,50,00,000 to 

` 95,00,00,000.

Further, consequent upon the increase in the authorized share 

capital, the capital clause of the Memorandum of Associa  on 

of the Company is required to be suitably altered as set out at 

item No. 11 of the acCompanying No  ce.

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 61 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the approval of the members is sought to 

the increase in the Authorized Share Capital and consequen  al 

altera  on of Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Associa  on 

of the Company.

Your Directors recommends the passing of resolu  on at Item 

No. 11 of the No  ce as Ordinary Resolu  on. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their 

rela  ves is, in any way, concerned or interested in the proposed 

resolu  on.

Item No. 12

As per the  Le$ er of Approval dated November 21, 2014 issued 

by the CDR Cell and the Master Restructuring Agreement 

(“MRA”) executed by the Company with the CDR Lenders, it 

has been agreed between the Promoters and CDR Lenders 

that the Promoters will bring 30% of the Banks’ SacriÞ ce as 

promoters’ contribu  on as per the CDR Guidelines. As per the 

LOA the promoters have indicated that the required promoters 

contribu  on would be brought in the form of unsecured loans 

from the group’s investment Companies/ rela  ves / friends 

and the same would be converted into equity a# er obtaining 

of approval from SEBI. 

In terms of Para II(i) of the Le$ er of Approval dated November 

21, 2014, allotment of such number of Equity Shares of the 

face value of ` 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each shall be made 

to the Promoters and Promoters Group, which shall not 

exceed ` 12.67 Crores under the Scheme of Corporate Debt 

No  ce
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Restructuring approved by the Corporate Debt Restructuring 

Empowered Group (CDR EG) vide le$ er of approval dated 

November 21, 2014 (CDR LOA), at a price as per the SEBI rules 

and regula  ons / Companies Act, 2013 and subject to and 

in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirement) Regula  ons, 2009 as amended.

Informa  on as required under Regula  on 73 of the SEBI 

(ICDR) Regula  ons, 2009 is as under:

OBJECT OF THE PREFERENTIAL ISSUE:

The object of the issue is restructuring of various liabili  es of 

the Company as per CDR LOA approved by the CDR EG and to 

make allotment(s) of equity shares to the Promoter/Promoter 

Group of the Company, in accordance with the terms of the 

LOA.

PROPOSAL OF THE PROMOTERS, DIRECTORS AND KEY 

MANAGEMENT PERSONS OF THE Company TO SUBSCRIBE TO 

THE PROPOSED PREFERENTIAL OFFER:

The Promoter group intends to subscribe 63,35,000 Equity 

Shares being 7.20 % of the Post Issue Capital of the Company.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN BEFORE AND AFTER THE 

PREFERENTIAL ISSUE:

Category of Shareholder Pre-Issue Equity Holdings Post-Issue Equity Holdings

Total No. of 

Shares

% of Shares 

Holding

Total No.

of Shares

% of Shares 

Holding

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group

(1) Indian

Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 8,51,800 1.04 8,51,800 0.97

Bodies Corporate 5,35,78,046 65.66 5,99,13,046 68.14

Sub Total 5,44,29,846 66.71 6,07,64,846 69.10

(2) Foreign - - - -

Total shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group (A) 5,44,29,846 66.71 6,07,64,846 69.10

(B) Public Shareholding

(1) Ins  tu  ons - - - -

(2) Non-Ins  tu  ons

Bodies Corporate 1,04,69,328 12.83 1,04,69,328 11.91

Individuals

Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital 

up to ` 1 lac

96,38,203 11.81 96,38,203 10.96

Individual shareholders holding nominal share capital in 

excess of ` 1 lac

68,64,386 8.41 68,64,386 7.81

Any Others (Specify)

Trust 100 0.00 100 0.00

Clearing Member 12,171 0.01 12,171 0.01

Non Resident Member 1,82,570 0.22 1,82,570 0.21

Sub Total 2,71,66,758 33.29 2,71,66,758 30.90

Total Public shareholding (B) 2,71,66,758 33.29 2,71,66,758 30.90

Total (A)+(B) 8,15,96,604 100.00 8,79,31,604 100.00

(C) Shares held by Custodians and against which Depository 

Receipts have been issued

- - - -

(1) Promoter and Promoter Group - - - -

(2) Public - - - -

Sub Total - - - -

Total (A)+(B)+(C) 8,15,96,604 100.00 8,79,31,604 100.00

No  ce
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PROPOSED TIME WITHIN WHICH THE PREFERENTIAL ISSUE SHALL BE COMPLETED

The Company will issue and allot equity shares to the Promoters within the   me limit speciÞ ed under the SEBI ICDR Regula  ons.

IDENTITY OF THE PROPOSED ALLOTTEES, THE PERCENTAGE OF POST PREFERENTIAL ISSUE CAPITAL THAT MAY BE HELD BY THEM

Name 

of the 

Proposed 

Allo" ees

Category Address Name (s) of the 

Natural Personal 

in Control of 

Proposed Allo" ee 

Pre-

preferen  al 

(No. of 

Shares) 

% of 

Pre-

Issue 

Capital

No. of 

Shares 

to be 

Allo" ed 

Post 

Allotment 

Holding

% of 

Post-

Issue 

Capital

Astabhuja 

Proper  es 

Pvt. Ltd.

Promoter 

Group

35, C. R. 

Avenue

Kolkata - 

700012

Mr. Suresh Kumar 

Patni, Mr. Rohit 

Patni & Mr. Ankit 

Patni

- - 63,35,000 6,33,50,000 7.20

CHANGE IN CONTROL

The exis  ng promoters of the Company will con  nue to be in 

control of the Company and there will not be any changes in 

the management/control of the Company as a result of the 

proposed Preferen  al Allotment.

UNDERTAKING TO RE-COMPUTED PRICE AND LOCK-IN TILL 

THE RECOMPUTED PRICE IS PAID

This is not applicable to the present case.

CERTIFICATE FROM STATUTORY AUDITORS

A copy of the Statutory Auditors’ Cer  Þ cate cer  fying that 

the proposed preferen  al issue is being made in accordance 

with the requirement of SEBI (ICDR) Regula  ons will be made 

available for inspec  on at the Corporate O"  ce of the Company 

during normal business hours on any working day except Public 

Holidays upto the date of Annual General Mee  ng.

RELEVANT DATE

The ‘Relevant Date’ for the purpose of calcula  ng the price of 

the equity shares is October 20, 2014 i.e. date of the approval 

of the Company’s Corporate Debt Restructuring Scheme.

PRICING

The Equity Shares of the Company are frequently traded in 

term of SEBI ICDR Regula  on.

As per Chapter VII of the SEBI ICDR Regula  ons, issue of equity 

shares on a preferen  al basis to an investor, shall be made at a 

price not less than higher of the following:

a) The average of the weekly high and low of the volume 

weighted average price of the equity shares quoted on the 

stock exchange during the twenty six weeks preceding the 

relevant date; or

b) The average of the weekly high and low of the volume 

weighted average price of the equity shares quoted on 

the stock exchange during the two weeks preceding the 

relevant date.

The Stock Exchange means Na  onal Stock Exchange of India 

Limited being the exchange where the highest trading volume 

in respect of the shares of the Company has been recorded 

during the preceding twenty six weeks prior to the Relevant 

Date.

The price at which the preferen  al issue is being made i.e. ` 20 

per equity share is higher than the ß oor price computed on the 

basis of the SEBI (ICDR) Regula  ons.

LOCK-IN PERIOD

The securi  es allo$ ed to Promoters shall be locked in as per 

the provisions of SEBI ICDR Regula  ons.

The consent of the Members is sought for the issue of equity 

shares, in terms of Sec  on 62 and all other applicable sec  ons 

of Companies Act, 2013, and in terms of the provisions of the 

ICDR Regula  ons and the lis  ng agreements entered into by 

the Company with the stock exchanges, where the Company’s 

equity shares are listed.

Your Directors recommend the passing of resolu  on at Item 

No. 12 of the No  ce as Special Resolu  on. 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni and their rela  ves 

being Promoters of this Company and other par  cipa  ng 

Promoter Company, may be deemed to be concerned or 

interested in the proposed Resolu  on. Save and except the 

above, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Persons 

(KMPs) of the Company or any rela  ves of such Director or 

KMPs, are in any way concerned or interested Þ nancially or 

otherwise in the proposed Resolu  on.

Item No. 13

As recommended by Audit Commi$ ee, Board of Directors had 

appointed M/s. A J S & Associates, Cost Accountant (Registra  on 

No. 0001060), being eligible and having sought reappointment, 

as cost auditor of the Company, for a remunera  on of ` 

35,000/- plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out 

of pocket expenses incurred by them to conduct an audit of 

No  ce
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the cost accoun  ng records maintained by the Company for 

the current Þ nancial year beginning from 1st April, 2015 and 

ending on 31st March, 2016.

In terms of Sec  on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 

aforesaid remunera  on is required to be ra  Þ ed by members.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company / their rela  ves are, in any way, concerned or 

interested, Þ nancially or otherwise, in the Resolu  on set out at 

Item No. 13 of the No  ce.

The Board recommends the Resolu  on set out at Item No. 13 

the No  ce for approval by the shareholders.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE- APPOINTMENT                     

(In pursuance to Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement)

Name of the Director Mr. Sa  sh 

Kumar Singh

Mrs. Sujata 

Agarwal

Mr. Nanda 

Samai

Mr. Rohit

Jain

Mr. Ramesh 

Seemakur  

Date of Birth  20.12.1985 22.11.1979 05.04.1951 30.12.1987 20.08.1968

Date of Appointment  24.08.2012 08.10.2014 16.01.2015 23.03.2015 22.08.2015

Exper  se in SpeciÞ c 

Func  onal Area

Electrical and 

Electronic 

Engineering

Management 

Studies

Civil Service Accounts and 

Finance

Strategic 

Management

QualiÞ ca  on B.Tech 

(Electrical and 

Electronic 

Engineering)

Ph.D  in 

Management 

Studies

B.Sc (Physics Hons) CS, CMA Master of 

Sciences 

(Sta  s  cs), 

B.Sc,  ICWAI 

(Inter)

Board membership of 

other Public Companies 

(Excluding  Directorship 

in Private/Foreign 

Companies and

Companies under

Sec  on 8 of the

Companies Act, 2013.)

NIL - Paragon 

Finance Ltd.

- Ankit Metal & 

Power Ltd.

- Rohit Ferro- 

Tech Ltd.

- Impex Metal & 

Ferro Alloys Ltd.

- West Bengal Tea 

Development Corpora  on 

Ltd. 

-West Bengal Sugar 

Industries Development 

Corpora  on Ltd. 

- Impex Metal & Ferro 

Alloys Ltd.

- Ankit Metal & 

Power Ltd.

- Rohit-Ferro 

Tech Ltd.

NIL

Chairman/Member of the 

Commi" ee 

(Audit Commi" ee, 

Stakeholders 

Rela  onship Commi" ee 

and Nomina  on and 

Remunera  on Commi" ee) 

of the Board of Directors 

of the Company 

NIL Member – 

Nomina  on and 

Remunera  on 

Commi$ ee

Chairman – 

Stakeholders 

Rela  onship 

Commi$ ee

Member –

Audit Commi$ ee

Chairman 

- Audit 

Commi$ ee 

- Nomina  on 

and 

Remunera  on 

Commi$ ee

Member – 

Stakeholders 

Rela  onship 

Commi$ ee

NIL

Chairman/Member of the 

Commi" ee of Directors of 

other public Companies in 

which he is a Director **

No  ce
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Name of the Director Mr. Sa  sh 

Kumar Singh

Mrs. Sujata 

Agarwal

Mr. Nanda 

Samai

Mr. Rohit

Jain

Mr. Ramesh 

Seemakur  

a) Audit Commi" ee NIL Member – Rohit 

Ferro-Tech Ltd.

NIL Chairman – 

- Rohit Ferro-

Tech Ltd.

- Ankit Metal 

& Power Ltd. 

- Impex Metal 

& Ferro Alloys 

Ltd.

NIL

b) Stakeholders 

Rela  onship Commi" ee

 NIL Chairman – Rohit 

Ferro-Tech Ltd.

 NIL Member –

Ankit Metal & 

Power Ltd.

NIL

c) Nomina  on and 

Remunera  on Commi" ee

NIL NIL NIL Member – 

- Rohit Ferro- 

Tech Ltd.

- Ankit Metal & 

Power Ltd.

NIL

Shareholding as on 31st 

March, 2015.

 NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL NIL

• Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh, Mr. Rohit Jain, Mrs. Sujata Agarwal, Mr. Nanda Samai and Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   does not hold any 

Equity Shares in the Company.

• ** Commi$ ee herein refers Audit Commi$ ee, Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi$ ee and Nomina  on and Remunera  on 

Commi$ ee.

No  ce
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Dear Shareholders
Your Directors are pleased to present the 20th Annual Report of the Company together with Audited Accounts for the Financial 

Year ended 31st March, 2015.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (` in Lacs)

Par  culars Current Year

31.03.2015

Previous Year

31.03.2014

Revenue from Opera  on (net) 50,580.19 69,802.21

Other Income 304.77 629.68

Total Revenue 50,884.97 70,431.89

ProÞ t before Finance Cost, Deprecia  on and Tax (2,246.24) (1,806.28)

Less: Deprecia  on & Amor  sa  on 863.76 1,177.00

Less: Finance Cost 3,033.65 3,596.47

Less: Tax Expenses - (1094.23)

Net ProÞ t a# er Tax (6,143.64) (5,485.52)

Add: Balance brought forward from previous year (101.95) 5,383.57

Adjusted for Deprecia  on rela  ng to Fixed Assets (103.67) -

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet (6,349.27) (101.95)

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Company has achieved Nets Sales/Income from opera  on of ` 50,580.19 Lacs as against 

` 69,802.21 Lacs in previous year registering a decline of 27.54 %. The Company incurred a loss of ` 6,143.64 Lacs as against 

` 5,485.52 Lacs in the previous year. The decline in sales and increase in losses are mainly a$ ributed to depressed market for ferro 

alloys impac  ng the net realisa  on and margin. Slower growth in several sectors of the economy resulted into weaker domes  c 

demand. On the other hand, mining crisis and rising inß a  on in the country resulted in increase in the cost of raw materials and 

other overheads which could not be passed on to the consumers.

DIVIDEND

In view of the losses incurred by the Company, the Directors of your Company do not recommend any dividend for the Þ nancial 

year 2014-15.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met Nineteen (19)   mes during the year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report that forms 

the part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between the Mee  ngs was within the period prescribed under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Lis  ng Agreement.

DIRECTORS  & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Re  rement

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh (DIN: 05295625), re  res by rota  on and 

being eligible, o! ers himself for re-appointment.

Resigna  on

During the year Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain (DIN: 02223047), Independent Director of the Company has resigned from the directorship 

of the Company with e! ect from October 8, 2014.

During the year Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla (DIN: 06391367), Independent Director of the Company has resigned from the directorship 

of the Company with e! ect from March 23, 2015.

During the year Mr. Santosh Kumar Khandelwal (DIN: 06607979), cease to be Independent Director of the Company with e! ect 

from March 24, 2015 due to his sad demise.

During the year Mr. Ankit Patni (DIN: 00034907), Non-Execu  ve Promoter Director of the Company has resigned from the 

directorship of the Company with e! ect from August 22, 2015.

Directors’ Report
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Re-appointment

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149(1) & 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant provisions of the Ar  cles of 

Associa  on, Mrs. Sujata Agarwal (DIN: 06833458) was appointed as an Addi  onal Director (Independent) by the Board of Directors 

of the Company with e! ect from October 8, 2014. She holds o"  ce as an Addi  onal Director (Independent) up to the date of 

the ensuing AGM. The Company has received a no  ce in wri  ng from a member proposing her candidature for the o"  ce of 

Independent Woman Director. Mrs. Sujata Agarwal qualiÞ es to be an Independent Woman Director pursuant to the provisions of 

Sec  on 149(1) & 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149(1) & 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant provisions of the Ar  cles of 

Associa  on, Mr. Nanda Samai (DIN: 02566965) was appointed as an Addi  onal Director (Independent) by the Board of Directors 

of the Company with e! ect from January 16, 2015. He holds o"  ce as an Addi  onal Director (Independent) up to the date of the 

ensuing AGM. The Company has received a no  ce in wri  ng from a member proposing his candidature for the o"  ce of Independent 

Director. Mr. Nanda Samai qualiÞ es to be an Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149(1) & 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149(1) & 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant provisions of the Ar  cles of 

Associa  on, Mr. Rohit Jain (DIN: 07129693) was appointed as an Addi  onal Director (Independent) by the Board of Directors of the 

Company with e! ect from March 23, 2015. He holds o"  ce as an Addi  onal Director (Independent) up to the date of the ensuing 

AGM. The Company has received a no  ce in wri  ng from a member proposing his candidature for the o"  ce of Independent 

Director. Mr. Rohit Jain qualiÞ es to be an Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149(1) & 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec  on 149, 152 & 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   (DIN: 00096163) was 

appointed as an Addi  onal Director (Promoter-Non-Execu  ve) of the Company with e! ect from August 22, 2015 to hold o"  ce upto 

the date of ensuing AGM. The Company has received a no  ce in wri  ng from a member proposing his candidature for the o"  ce of 

Non-Execu  ve Promoter Director whose period of o"  ce would be liable to be determined by re  rement of Directors by rota  on.

The brief par  culars of the said Directors have been given in the no  ce convening the ensuing Annual General Mee  ng and is 

annexed as addi  onal informa  on to the no  ce as required under Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement and your Board recommends 

their appointment/reappointment as set out in the no  ce.

Chief Financial O$  cer

As per Sec  on 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant provisions, Mr. Vivek Jain, was appointed as the Chief 

Financial O!  cer of the Company with e" ect from April 29, 2014. However, Mr. Vivek Jain has resigned from the services of the 

Company with e" ect from  July 17, 2014. Consequent to Mr. Vivek Jain’s resigna  on, the Board appointed Mr. Sanjeet Kumar Gupta 

as the Chief Financial O!  cer of the Company with e" ect from August 25, 2014.

Company Secretary

Ms. Mamata Chakraborty, Company Secretary and Compliance O!  cer of the Company resigned from the post with e" ect from  

February 28, 2015. Consequent to Ms. Mamata Chakraborty’s resigna  on, the Board appointed Ms. Richa Agarwal as the Company 

Secretary and Compliance O!  cer of the Company with e" ect from February 28, 2015.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls maintained by the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, 

Cost and Secretarial Auditors and external agencies, the reviews performed by Management and the relevant Board Commi# ees, 

the Board, with the concurrence of the Audit Commi# ee, is of the opinion that the Company’s internal Þ nancial controls were 

adequate and e" ec  ve as on 31st March, 2015.

Accordingly, pursuant to Sec  on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge and 

ability conÞ rm:

a) that in the prepara  on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun  ng standards have been followed along with proper 

explana  on rela  ng to material departures;

b) that we have selected such accoun  ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and es  mates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of a" airs of the Company at the end of the Þ nancial year 

and of the proÞ t and loss of the Company for that period;

c) that proper and su!  cient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun  ng records in accordance with the 
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provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven  ng and detec  ng fraud and 

other irregulari  es;

d) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a “going concern” basis;

e) that proper internal Þ nancial controls were laid down and that such internal Þ nancial controls are adequate and were opera  ng 

e" ec  vely; and

f) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and that such systems were 

adequate and opera  ng e" ec  vely.

CREDIT RATING

The Company’s credit ra  ng for Long-Term debts/facili  es is  C and Short-Term facili  es is A4 (A Four), rated by the ICRA Limited.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. No. Name of Company Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies % of Contribu  on

1 M/s. SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd. Joint Venture Company 50%

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 is annexed herewith and forms part of this Report as Annexure-I.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sec  on 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. R. Kothari & Company (FRN: 307069E), Chartered Accountants, re  re at the ensuing Annual General Mee  ng of the Company 

and have given their consent for re-appointment. The Company has received a cer  Þ cate conÞ rming their eligilibility to be re-

appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Sec  on 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

framed there under. The Auditors have also conÞ rmed that they hold a valid cer  Þ cate issued by the Peer Review Board of the 

Ins  tute of Chartered Accounts of India as required under the provisions of revised Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement with the 

Stock Exchanges. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS OBSERVATION

There are no qualiÞ ca  ons or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report which require any clariÞ ca  on/explana  on. The notes to 

accounts referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory, and therefore, do not call for any further comments/explana  ons.

COST AUDITOR

In terms of Sec  on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, on the 

recommenda  on of Audit Commi# ee, the Board of Directors has re-appointed M/s. A. J. S. & Associates, Cost Accountants (FRN 

0001060), as Cost Auditor of the Company, at a remunera  on of ` 35,000/- plus applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out of 

pocket expenses incurred by them to conduct an audit of the cost accoun  ng records maintained by the Company for the current 

Þ nancial year beginning from 1st April, 2015 and ending on 31st March, 2016.

As required under sec  on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 

the remunera  on payable to cost auditor is being placed at the ensuing Annual General Mee  ng for ra  Þ ca  on by the members.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

In terms of Sec  on 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, M/s. A J & Associates, Prac  cing Company Secretary have been 

appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure II to this report. 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OBSERVATION

The Secretarial Auditor has the following observa  ons in Form MR-3 enclosed as Annexure II.

(i) The Chairman and Managing Director is one and the same person.

(ii) There were delays in Þ ling of various Forms with Registrar of Companies (ROC), West Bengal.

(iii) The demise of Mr. S.K. Khandelwal, Director of the Company, was informed belatedly. 
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Our Comments are as under:

(i) There exist confusion in the implementa  on of the said provision and no no  Þ ca  on/clariÞ ca  on from MCA as so far been 

issued. The Company has discussed the ma# er with di" erent consultants of repute but there exist in di" erence of opinion. 

We are looking into the ma# er again and will resolve the ma# er as the sooner to make it in line with the law. The Chairman is 

said to be a Chairman as he is being the Principal and Senior most Promoter, and the posi  on is given to him as a respect by 

the Board.

(ii) Teething issues in implementa  on of New Companies Act, 2013, led to some delays in Þ ling.

(iii) The informa  on of demise of Mr. S.K. Khandelwal was received by the Company a$ er a lapse of more than a month.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year, M/s. Charupree   & Co. (FRN: 3268561), Chartered Accountants has given their Internal Audit Report for the 

quarter ended 31st March, 2015 and has resigned from the Internal Auditor of the Company. Further M/s. NR & Associates (FRN: 

102903), Cost Accountants has given their consent to appoint as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the Þ nancial year 2015-16.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company is equipped with proper and adequate system of internal controls for maintaining proper accoun  ng, cost control 

and e!  ciency in opera  on. 

The Company also has adequate system to ensure that all of its assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised 

use or disposi  on, and transac  ons are authorised, recorded, and reported correctly. The internal control system is supplemented 

by internal audits, review by management, documented policies and procedures.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The prescribed par  culars of employees required under Sec  on 134(3)(q) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remunera  on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is a# ached as Annexure III and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND OUTGO

A statement giving details of Conserva  on of Energy, Technology Absorp  on and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo as required 

under Sec  on 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8 of Companies Cost (Accounts) Rules 2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure IV.

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCTS

The Board has formulated a Code of Conducts for the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company, which has been 

posted on the website of the Company.

It is hereby a!  rmed that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel have complied with the Code and a conÞ rma  on to 

that e" ect has been obtained from the Directors and the Senior Management. 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company already had a structured Code of Conduct for Preven  on of Insider Trading long back, with a view to regulate trading 

in securi  es by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code has been further streamlined to keep parity 

with the new Companies Act, 2013.

The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s shares by the 

Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensi  ve informa  on in rela  on to the Company 

and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementa  on of the Code.

All Directors and the designated employees, who hold any shares in the Company, have conÞ rmed compliance with the Code.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS 

There are no signiÞ cant material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals which would impact the going concern status 

of the Company and its future opera  ons.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of Sec  on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

details of the investments made by Company are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transac  ons entered by the Company during the Þ nancial year with related par  es were in the ordinary 

course of business and on arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract/arrangement/

transac  on with related par  es which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality 

of related party transac  ons between the Company and the Directors, the management, or the rela  ves except for those disclosed 

in the Financial Statements.

Accordingly, par  culars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with related par  es referred to in Sec  on 

188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 (Annexure V) is NIL.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommenda  on of the Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee framed a policy for selec  on and 

appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their remunera  on. A note on Remunera  on Policy has been made a part 

of the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a deÞ ned Risk Management framework to iden  fy, assess, monitor and mi  gate various risks to key business 

objec  ves. Major risks iden  Þ ed by the businesses and func  ons are systema  cally addressed through mi  ga  ng ac  ons on a 

con  nuing basis.

The Risk Management Policy provides for iden  Þ ca  on of risk, its assessment and procedures to minimize risk. The policy is 

periodically reviewed to ensure that the execu  ve management controls the risk as per decided policy. 

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

The Company has adopted policy on Preven  on of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace in accordance with The Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven  on, Prohibi  on and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

During the Þ nancial year ended 31st March, 2015, the Company has not received any Complaints pertaining to Sexual Harassment.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149(6)

The Company has received declara  ons from all the Independent Directors of the Company conÞ rming that they meet the criteria 

of independence as laid down under Sec  on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company proac  vely keeps its Directors informed of the ac  vi  es of the Company, its management and opera  ons and provides 

an overall industry perspec  ve as well as issues being faced by the industry. The details of various familiarisa  on programmes 

provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Company’s website www.impexferrotech.com.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composi  on and terms of reference of the Audit Commi# ee has been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming 

a part of this Annual Report. There has been no instance where the Board has not accepted the recommenda  ons of the Audit 

Commi# ee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The composi  on and terms of reference of the Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee has been furnished in the Corporate 

Governance Report forming a part of this Annual Report. 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The composi  on and terms of reference of Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi# ee has been furnished in the Corporate Governance 

Report forming a part of this Annual Report. 
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VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Board has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy for the Company. This policy is formulated to provide opportunity to all the 

employees to access in good faith, to the Audit Commi# ee of the Company in case they observe any unethical and improper 

prac  ce or behaviour or wrongful conduct in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking adverse personnel 

ac  on against such employee.

PERFORMANCE/BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement, the Board has carried out an 

evalua  on of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evalua  on of the working of its Audit Commi# ee, 

Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee and Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi# ee. 

A note on Board Evalua  on has been made a part of the Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is commi# ed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate Governance 

requirements set out in Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement. The Report on Corporate Governance as s  pulated under Clause 49 of 

the Lis  ng Agreement forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year under review, as s  pulated under Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement with the 

Stock Exchanges, is presented in a separate sec  on forming part of this Annual Report.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement, the CEO/CFO cer  Þ ca  on has been submi# ed to the Board.

GREEN INITIATIVES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Ministry of Corporate A" airs has permi# ed Companies to send electronic copies of Annual Report, no  ces etc., to the e-mail 

IDs of shareholders. Your Company has accordingly arranged to send the so$  copies of these documents to the e-mail IDs of 

shareholders wherever applicable. In case any shareholder would like to receive physical copies of these documents, the same shall 

be forwarded upon receipt of wri# en request.

APPRECIATION

Your Directors wish to extend their thanks and apprecia  on for the valuable and con  nued support received from the Shareholders, 

Company’s Bankers, Central and State Government Authori  es, Stock Exchange(s), CDSL, NSDL and all other Business Associates 

for the growth of the organiza  on.  

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep apprecia  on to all the employees for their commitment and con  nued 

contribu  on to the Company. 

ANNEXURE FORMING A PART OF THIS REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Annexure referred to in this Report and other informa  on which are required to be disclosed are annexed herewith and form 

a part of this Report of the Directors:

Annexure Par  culars

I Extract of the Annual Return (Form MGT 9)

II Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR 3)

III Par  culars of Employees 

IV Prescribed par  culars of Conserva  on of Energy, Technology, Absorp  on and Foreign Exchange Earnings 

and Outgo

V Par  culars of Contract or Arrangements with Related Par  es (Form AOC 2)

For and on behalf of the Board

Suresh Kumar Patni

Kolkata, 22nd August, 2015 Chairman cum Managing Director
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Annexure - I 

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on Þ nancial year ended on 31.03.2015

Pursuant to  Sec  on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company(Management & Administra  on) Rules,  2014.

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L27101WB1995PLC071996

ii Registra  on Date 07.06.1995

iii Name of the Company Impex Ferro Tech Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company (Limited by Shares having Share Capital)

v "Address of the Registered O!  ce & contact details" 35, C. R. Avenue, 4th Floor, Kolkata - 700 012

vi Whether listed company Yes (BSE Limited & Na  onal Stock Exchange of India Limited)

vii Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar  & 

Transfer Agent, if any.

M/s. Maheshwari Datama  cs Pvt. Ltd.                                                                                                             

6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor, Kolkata- 700001

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

 All the business ac  vi  es contribu  ng 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

Name & Descrip  on of  main products/services NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the Company

Ferro Alloys 3309 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding Subsidiary/

Associate

% of 

Shares Held

Applicable 

Sec  on

M/s. SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd. U10300WB2015PTC205020 Associate 50.00% 2(6)

IV.  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)   

 i)  CATEGORY"WISE SHARE HOLDING

Category of 

Shareholders

No of Shares held at the 

beginning of the year [As on 01-April-2014]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 

[As on 31-March-2015]

% change 

during the 

YearDemat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 851800 0 851800 1.04 851800 0 851800 1.04 0.00

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Bodies Corp. 53578046 0 53578046 65.66 53578046 0 53578046 65.66 0.00

e) Banks/Financial 

Ins  tu  ons

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A)(1) 54429846 0 54429846 66.71 54429846 0 54429846 66.71 0.00

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Category of 

Shareholders

No of Shares held at the 

beginning of the year [As on 01-April-2014]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 

[As on 31-March-2015]

% change 

during the 

YearDemat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total shareholding 

of Promoter (A)=(A)

(1)+(A)(2)

54429846 0 54429846 66.71 54429846 0 54429846 66.71 0.00

B. Public 

Shareholding

1. Ins  tu  ons 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c)Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture Capital 

Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance 

Companies

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total(B)(1):- 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

2. Non-Ins  tu  ons

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 18604298 516000 19120298 23.43 10241828 516000 10757828 13.18 -10.25

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Individuals

i) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

upto ` 1 lac

4504323 42002 4546325 5.57 9680806 42002 9722808 11.92 6.34

ii) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

in excess of `1 lac

2591081 198100 2789181 3.42 6267273 198100 6465373 7.92 4.51

c) Others (Specify)
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Category of 

Shareholders

No of Shares held at the 

beginning of the year [As on 01-April-2014]

No of Shares held at the end of the year 

[As on 31-March-2015]

% change 

during the 

YearDemat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

c-i) Non Resident 

Individual

89257 0 89257 0.11 173370 0 173370 0.21 0.10

Non Resident Indians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

QualiÞ ed Foreign 

Investor

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Custodian of Enemy 

Property

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foreign Na  onals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Clearing Members 621597 0 621597 0.76 47279 0 47279 0.06 -0.70

Trusts 100 0 100 0.00 100 0 100 0.00 0.00

Foreign Bodies-DR 

Sub-total(B)(2):- 26410656 756102 27166758 33.29 26410656 756102 27166758 33.29 0.00

Total Public 

Shareholding (B)=(B)

(1)+ (B)(2)

26410656 756102 27166758 33.29 26410656 756102 27166758 33.29 0.00

C. Shares held by 

Custodian for GDRs 

& ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 80840502 756102 81596604 100.00 80840502 756102 81596604 100.00 0.00

 ii)  SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS"

Sl 

No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in share 

holding during the 

yearNo of Shares % of total 

Shares of the 

Company

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbered 

to total shares

No of Shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

% of shares 

pledged

 encumbered 

to total shares

1 Suresh Kumar Patni 466200 0.57 0.23 466200 0.57 92.44 0.00

2 Ankit Patni 175600 0.22 0 175600 0.22 100 0.00

3 Rohit Patni 175000 0.21 0 175000 0.21 100 0.00

4 Sarita Patni 35000 0.04 0 35000 0.04 100 0.00

5 Suanvi Trading & 

Investment Co. Pvt. 

Ltd.

15073046 18.47 0 15073046 18.47 100 0.00

6 Invesco Finance Pvt. 

Ltd.

10871250 13.32 0 10871250 13.32 100 0.00

7 Poddar Mech Tech 

Services Pvt. Ltd.

10633750 13.03 0 10633750 13.03 100 0.00

8 Vasupujya Enterprises 

Pvt. Ltd.

10600000 12.99 0 10600000 12.99 100 0.00
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Sl 

No.

Shareholders Name Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in share 

holding during the 

yearNo of Shares % of total 

Shares of the 

Company

% of shares 

pledged 

encumbered 

to total shares

No of Shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

% of shares 

pledged

 encumbered 

to total shares

9 Shreyansh LeaÞ n Pvt. 

Ltd.

3950000 4.84 0 3950000 4.84 100 0.00

10 Whitestone Suppliers 

Pvt. Ltd.

2450000 3.00 0 2450000 3.00 100 0.00

 (iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING #SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE$

Sl 

No.

Shareholders Name Share holding at the beginning of the Year Cumula  ve Share holding during the year

No. of Shares % of total shares of 

the company

No of shares % of total shares of 

the company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters 

Share holding during the year specifying 

the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

No Change during  the year

At the end of the year

(iv) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS #OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF 

       GDRS AND ADRS$:

Sl 

No.

Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Date Increase/

(Decrease) in 

shareholding

Reason Cummula  ve Shareholding 

during the year

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

1 Sweety Holdings Pvt. Ltd.  2,316,876.00 2.84 01.04.2014

25.04.2014  303,365.00  Purchase  2,620,241.00  3.21 

16.05.2014  183,106.00  Purchase  2,803,347.00  3.44 

30.05.2014  1,894.00  Purchase  2,805,241.00  3.44 

04.07.2014  115,000.00  Purchase  2,920,241.00  3.58 

19.09.2014  100,000.00  Sale  2,820,241.00  3.46 

30.09.2014  100,000.00  Sale  2,720,241.00  3.33 

31.03.2015  2,720,241.00  3.33 

2 Rishabh Stocks Pvt. Ltd.  2,125,467.00 2.60 01.04.2014

12.09.2014  850,000.00  Sale   1,275,467.00  1.56 

19.09.2014  50,000.00  Sale   1,225,467.00  1.50 

07.11.2014  115,427.00  Sale   1,110,040.00  1.36 

14.11.2014  122,704.00  Sale   987,336.00  1.21 

21.11.2014  548,638.00  Sale   438,698.00  0.54 

28.11.2014  39,306.00  Sale   399,392.00  0.49 

12.12.2014  43,057.00  Sale   356,335.00  0.44 
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Sl 

No.

Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Date Increase/

(Decrease) in 

shareholding

Reason Cummula  ve Shareholding 

during the year

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

19.12.2014  180,761.00  Sale   175,574.00  0.22 

31.12.2014 175,574.00  Sale  0.00 0.00 

31.03.2015 0.00 0.00 

3 Singrodia Bros Holding (P) 

Ltd.

 2,010,000.00 2.46 01.04.2014  No change 

during the year 31.03.2015  2,010,000.00  2.46 

4 Aparjita Vanijya Private 

Limited

 2,000,000.00 2.45 01.04.2014

11.07.2014  1,000,000.00  Sale  1,000,000.00  1.23 

08.08.2014  650,000.00  Sale  350,000.00  0.43 

22.08.2014  250,000.00  Sale  100,000.00  0.12 

05.09.2014  100,000.00  Sale 0.00 0.00 

31.03.2015 0.00 0.00 

5 Mayank Securi  es Pvt. Ltd.  1,502,000.00 1.84 01.04.2015

11.07.2014  500,000.00  Sale  1,002,000.00  1.23 

25.07.2014  400,000.00  Sale  602,000.00  0.74 

01.08.2014  350,000.00  Sale  252,000.00  0.31 

31.03.2015  252,000.00  0.31 

6 Indian Infotech and So% ware 

Ltd.

 1,125,000.00 1.38 01.04.2015  No change 

during the year 31.03.2015  1,125,000.00  1.38 

7 BMA Wealth Creators Ltd.  1,036,777.00 1.27 01.04.2014

11.04.2014  200.00  Purchase  1,036,977.00  1.27 

30.05.2014  1.00  Sale  1,036,976.00  1.27 

18.07.2014  100.00  Sale  1,036,876.00  1.27 

25.07.2014  4,000.00  Purchase  1,040,876.00  1.28 

01.08.2014  6,314.00  Sale  1,034,562.00  1.27 

08.08.2014  4,537.00  Purchase  1,039,099.00  1.27 

14.08.2014  1,818.00  Purchase  1,040,917.00  1.28 

22.08.2014  7,724.00  Purchase  1,048,641.00  1.29 

29.08.2014  479,743.00  Sale  568,898.00  0.70 

05.09.2014  3,750.00  Purchase  572,648.00  0.70 

12.09.2014  3,270.00  Sale  569,378.00  0.70 

19.09.2014  500.00  Purchase  569,878.00  0.70 

30.09.2014  3,500.00  Purchase  573,378.00  0.70 

10.10.2014  50.00  Sale  573,328.00  0.70 

17.10.2014  100.00  Purchase  573,428.00  0.70 

24.10.2014  395.00  Sale  573,033.00  0.70 

14.11.2014  1,636.00  Sale  571,397.00  0.70 

21.11.2014  5,040.00  Purchase  576,437.00  0.71 
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Sl 

No.

Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year

Date Increase/

(Decrease) in 

shareholding

Reason Cummula  ve Shareholding 

during the year

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

Company

28.11.2014  100.00  Purchase  576,537.00  0.71 

05.12.2014  1,550.00  Sale  574,987.00  0.70 

12.12.2014  270.00  Sale  574,717.00  0.70 

19.12.2014  251.00  Purchase  574,968.00  0.70 

31.12.2014  4,951.00  Sale  570,017.00  0.70 

09.10.2015  175.00  Purchase  570,192.00  0.70 

16.01.2015  800.00  Sale  569,392.00  0.70 

23.01.2015  250.00  Purchase  569,642.00  0.70 

30.01.2015  50.00  Sale  569,592.00  0.70 

06.02.2015  400.00  Purchase  569,992.00  0.70 

27.02.2015  302.00  Sale  569,690.00  0.70 

27.03.2015  900.00  Sale  568,790.00  0.70 

31.03.2015  568,790.00  0.70 

8 Rotomac Vinimay Pvt. Ltd.  1,000,000.00 1.23 01.04.2014  No change 

during the year 31.03.2015  1,000,000.00  1.23 

9 Des  na  on Tex  les Pvt. Ltd.  685,000.00 0.84 01.04.2014

25.04.2014  500,000.00  Sale  185,000.00  0.23 

09.05.2014  185,000.00  Sale 0.00 0.00 

04.07.2014  495,000.00  Purchase  495,000.00  0.61 

31.03.2015  495,000.00  0.61 

10 Macro Commodeal Pvt. Ltd.  662,501.00 0.81 01.04.2014

22.08.2014  662,501.00  Sale 0.00 0.00 

31.03.2015 0.00 0.00 

11 Prastav Commerce Pvt. Ltd.  501,000.00 0.61 01.04.2014  No change 

during the year 31.03.2015  501,000.00  0.61 

12 Naresh Kumar Jain  198,100.00 0.24 01.04.2014  No change 

during the year 31.03.2015  198,100.00  0.24 

13 Puneet Kumar Girdhar  116,500.00 0.14 01.04.2014

19.09.2014  1,500.00  Purchase  118,000.00  0.14 

21.11.2014  12,000.00  Purchase  130,000.00  0.16 

09.01.2015  10,000.00  Purchase  140,000.00  0.17 

16.01.2015  10,000.00  Purchase  150,000.00  0.18 

30.01.2015  10,000.00  Purchase  160,000.00  0.20 

31.03.2015  160,000.00  0.20 
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V INDEBTEDNESS 

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (` in Lacs)

Secured Loans

 excluding deposits

Unsecured 

Loans

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the Þ nancial 

year (i.e. as on 01.04.2014)

i) Principal Amount  26,560.10  6,683.24  –    33,243.34 

ii) Interest due but not paid  53.46  –    53.46 

iii) Interest accrued but not due  –   

Total (i+ii+iii)  26,613.56  6,683.24  –    33,296.80 

Change in Indebtedness during the Þ nancial 

year

Addi  ons  1,214.55  1,166.82  –    2,381.77 

Reduc  on  –  –  –   –

Net Change  1,214.55  1,166.82  –    2,381.37 

Indebtedness at the end of the Þ nancial 

year (i.e. as on 31.03.2015)

i) Principal Amount  27,761.38  7,850.06  –    35,611.44 

ii) Interest due but not paid  66.73  –  –    66.73 

iii) Interest accrued but not due  –   

Total (i+ii+iii)  27,828.11  7,850.06 –  35,678.17 

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A. Remunera  on to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and/or Manager:

Sl.

No

Par  culars of Remunera  on Managing Director Whole Time Director Manager Total

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh N.A

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained 

in sec  on 17(1) of the Income Tax. 

1961.

 1,200,000.00  900,000.00  2,100,000.00 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961

– – – –

(c ) ProÞ ts in lieu of salary under 

sec  on 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 

1961

– – – –

2 Stock op  on – – – –

3 Sweat Equity – – – –

4 Commission (as % of ProÞ t) – – – –

5 Others, please specify – – – –

Total (A)  1,200,000.00  900,000.00 –  2,100,000.00 

Ceiling as per the Act  6,000,000.00  6,000,000.00 –
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 B. Remunera  on to other directors: (Amount in `)

Sl. 

No.

Par  culars of Remunera  on Name of the Directors Total

1 Independent Directors Mr. Ashok 

Kumar Jain 

(Resigned 

w.e.f. 

08.10.2014)

Mr. Jay 

Shanker Shukla         

(Resigned w.e.f. 

23.03.2015)

Mr. Santosh 

Kumar 

Khandelwal    

(cessa  on 

w.e.f. 

24.03.2015)

Mr. Nanda 

Samai 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 

16.01.2015)   

Mr. Rohit Jain 

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 

23.03.2015)

Mrs. Sujata 

Agarwal                           

(Appointed 

w.e.f. 

08.10.2014)

(a) Fee for a# ending board 

commi# ee mee  ngs

 16,500.00  19,500.00  34,500.00  9,000.00  1,500.00  18,000.00  99,000.00 

(b) Commission  –    –    –    –  –  –  –   

(c ) Others, please specify  –    –    –    –  –  –  –   

Total (1)  16,500.00  19,500.00  34,500.00  9,000.00  1,500.00  18,000.00  99,000.00 

2 Other Non Execu  ve 

Directors

 Mr. Ankit 

Patni 

(a) Fee for a# ending 

board commi# ee mee  ngs

 27,000.00  –    –    –  – –  27,000.00 

(b) Commission  –    –    –    –  – –  –   

(c ) Others, please specify  –    –    –    –  – –  –   

Total (2)  27,000.00  –    –    –  – –  27,000.00 

Total (B)=(1+2)  –    –   – – –  126,000.00 

Total Managerial 

Remunera  on

 –    –    –   – – –  126,000.00 

Overall Cieling as per the 

Act.

 ` 1,00,000 (per mee  ng)  –   

 C. Remunera  on to Key Managerial Personnel other than - MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 

No.

Par  culars of Remunera  on Key Managerial Personnel Total

1 Gross Salary CEO Company 

Secretary

Company 

Secretary

CFO CFO

N.A Ms. Mamata 

Chakraborty 

(Resigned w.e.f. 

28.02.2015)

Ms. Richa Agarwal 

(Appointed w.e.f. 

28.02.2015)

Mr. Vivek Jain 

(Resigned w.e.f. 

17.07.2014) 

Mr. Sanjeet 

Kumar Gupta              

(Appointed w.e.f. 

25.08.2014)

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in sec  on 17(1) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961.

–  378,832.00  25,894.00  230,646.00  441,292.00  1,076,664.00

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 –    –    –    –  –  –   

(c ) ProÞ ts in lieu of salary 

under sec  on 17(3) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 

 –    –    –    –  –  –   

2 Stock Op  on –  –    –    – –  –   
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Sl. 

No.

Par  culars of Remunera  on Key Managerial Personnel Total

3 Sweat Equity  –    –    –    – – –

4 Commission (as % of proÞ t)  –    –    –    – –  –   

5 Others, please specify – – – – – –

Total –  378,832.00  25,894.00  230,646.00  441,292.00  1,076,664.00 

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

Type Sec  on of the 

Companies Act

Brief Descrip  on Details of Penalty/

Punishment/

Compounding fees 

imposed

Authority (RD/NCLT/

Court)

Appeal made if any 

(give details)

A.  COMPANY

Penalty  

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL
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Annexure - II

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Pursuant to Sec  on 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remunera  on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members

IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

prac  ces by Impex Ferro Tech Limited (hereina$ er called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided us a reasonable basis for evalua  ng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our veriÞ ca  on of the Impex Ferro Tech Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns Þ led and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the informa  on provided by the Company, its o!  cers, agents and authorized representa  ves 

during the conduct of secretarial audit and as per the explana  ons given to us and the representa  ons made by the Management, 

we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Þ nancial year ended on 31st March, 

2015 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor  ng made hereina$ er:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns Þ led and other records made available to us and maintained 

by Impex Ferro Tech Limited for the Þ nancial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the applicable provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under, as applicable;

ii. The Securi  es Contract (Regula  on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula  ons and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula  ons made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the 

audit period);

v. The following Regula  ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi  es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

 a. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Substan  al Acquisi  on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula  ons, 2011;

 b. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi  on of Insider Trading) Regula  ons, 1992;

 c. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula  ons, 2009 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

 d. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Op  on Scheme and Employee Share Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

 e. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis  ng of Debt Securi  es) Regula  ons, 2008 (Not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period);

 f. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula  ons, 1993 regarding 

the Companies Act and dealing with client;

 g. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Delis  ng of Equity Shares) Regula  ons, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company 

during the audit period); and

 h. The Securi  es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi  es) Regula  ons, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company 

during the audit period).

vi. As per the representa  on made by the management, no law was speciÞ cally applicable to the Company.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examina  on of the relevant 

documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check basis, the Company has generally complied with the laws applicable 

to the Company. 
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For A J & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

CS ABHIJEET JAIN

Proprietor

Date : 22.08.2015  FCS No.: 4975

Place: Kolkata  C.P. No: 3426

This report is to be read with our le# er of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards of The Ins  tute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general mee  ngs. (Not 

no  Þ ed hence not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

ii. The Lis  ng Agreements entered into by the Company with the stock exchange(s). 

During the period under review and as per the explana  ons and clariÞ ca  ons given to us and the representa  ons made by the 

Management, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula  ons, Guidelines etc. men  oned 

above except to the extent as men  oned below:

i.  The Chairman and Managing Director is one and the same person, not in line with the provisions of Sec  on 203 of the Act.

ii.  There was a delay in Þ ling of various MGT 14 forms for resolu  on speciÞ ed under sec  on 179.

iii.  There was a delay in Þ ling of Form MR 1 and MGT 14 w.r.t. appointment of CFO and CS (KMP).

iv.  There was a delay in Þ ling of Form DIR 12 w.r.t. appointment/cessa  on of Director.

v.  There was a delay in Þ ling of Form CHG 1 w.r.t. crea  on/modiÞ ca  on of charge in favour of SBICAP Trustee Co. Ltd.

vi.  MGT 14 w.r.t. borrowing made are yet to be Þ led.

vii.  There was a delay in no  fying the Stock Exchange about the demise of Mr. S. K. Khandelwal.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons  tuted with proper balance of Execu  ve Directors, Non-Execu  ve Directors and 

Independent Directors. No changes in the composi  on of the Board of Directors took place during the period under review.

Adequate no  ce was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board Mee  ngs. Agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa  on and clariÞ ca  ons on the 

agenda items before the mee  ng and for meaningful par  cipa  on at the mee  ng.

Decisions at the Board Mee  ngs, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

We further report that as per the explana  ons given to us and the representa  ons made by the Management and relied upon by us 

there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and opera  ons of the Company to monitor 

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula  ons and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has:

a.  Passed resolu  ons pursuant to Sec  on 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c).

b.  Altered its Ar  cles of Associa  on by adop  ng new set of Ar  cles of Associa  on in line with the provisions of Companies Act, 

2013.

c.  The Company has approached the Corporate Debt Restructuring Empowered Group Cell (CDR EG) for restructuring of its credit 

facili  es and received Provisional Le# er of Approval by the CDR EG upon the approval of Corporate Debt Structuring Package 

vide le# er No. BY.CDR (VB) No. 528/2014-15 dated November 10, 2014 which was further conÞ rmed by CDR Cell that it is the 

Þ nal LOA vide le# er no. BY.CDR (VB) No. 563/2014-15 dated November 21, 2014. The Company has restructured its credit 

facili  es granted/con  nued by the Consor  um Lenders amoun  ng to ` 328.61 Crores.
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For A J & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

CS ABHIJEET JAIN

Proprietor

Date : 22.08.2015  FCS No.: 4975

Place: Kolkata  C.P. No: 3426

‘Annexure A’
To,

The Members

IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this le# er.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit prac  ces and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 

of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veriÞ ca  on was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reß ected in 

Secretarial records. We believe that the process and prac  ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not veriÞ ed the correctness and appropriateness of Þ nancial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representa  on about the Compliance of laws, rules and regula  ons 

and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules regula  ons, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examina  on was limited to the veriÞ ca  on of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the e!  cacy or e" ec  veness 

with which the management has conducted the a" airs of the Company.
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Annexure – III

Sl. No. Name of Director/KMP & Designa  on Remunera  on of 

Director/KMP for 

Financial Year 2014-15 

% increase in 

Remunera  on in the 

Financial Year 2014-15

Ra  o of remunera  on 

of each Director to 

median remunera  on of 

employees

1. Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni (Managing 

Director)

12,00,000 0% 10.23

2. Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh (Execu  ve 

Director)

9,00,000 7.14% 7.68

3. Mr. Vivek Jain (CFO) (Resigned w.e.f 

17.07.2014)

2,28,448 0% N.A.

4. Mr. Sanjeet Kumar Gupta (CFO) 

(Appointed w.e.f 25.08.2014)

8,40,000 0% N.A.

5. Ms. Mamata Chakraborty (Company 

Secretary) (Resigned w.e.f 28.02.2015)

3,25,000 40% N.A.

6. Ms. Richa Agarwal (Company 

Secretary) (Appointed w.e.f 

28.02.2015)

26,785 N.A. N.A.

Note:

i)  No other Director other than the Managing Director and Execu  ve Director received any remunera  on other than si&  ng fees 

during the Þ nancial year 2014-15.

ii)  In the Þ nancial year, there was an increase of 19.59% in the median remunera  on of employees.

iii)  There were 231 Permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2015.

iv)  The remunera  on of the Key Managerial Personnel put together is ` 35.20 Lacs which increased by 12.82% from ` 31.20 Lacs 

as against a loss at the PBT level in the Þ nancial year 2014-2015. The remunera  on of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) is 

linked to the market and is commensurate with their diverse responsibili  es and experience

v)  The market capitalisa  on of the Company as on 31st March, 2015 decreased by 39.70%, when compared to that of 31st March, 

2014. The Company has not made any public o" er in the recent past and accordingly comparison of public o" er price and the 

current market price of the Company’s shares will not be relevant.

vi)  The key parameters for the variable component of remunera  on availed by the directors are considered by the Board of 

Directors based on the recommenda  ons of the Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee as per the Remunera  on Policy for 

Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

vii)  It is hereby a!  rmed that the remunera  on paid during the Þ nancial year ended 31st March, 2015 is as per the Remunera  on 

Policy of the Company.

Annexure – IV

Informa  on pursuant to Sec  on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013.

A) Conserva  on of Energy 

 a. Energy conserva  on measures taken:

  • Close monitoring of opera  ng parameters of high energy consuming equipment in plant.

  • Using power factor controller/capacitors to maintain power factor at op  mum level. 

  • Keeping maximum demand under control by scheduling auxiliary load during peak power consump  on levels.

  • Replacement of old motor with energy e!  cient motors.

  • Replacement of tube light with LED’s.

 b. Addi  onal investment and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduc  on of consump  on of energy:

  To further install LED lamps, installa  on of energy e!  cient equipments, resizing of motor etc. The Company also proposes 

to install solar power equipments like night ligh  ng systems and solar power pump sets to further conserve carbon emi&  ng 

thermal power. 
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 c. Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduc  on of energy consump  on and consequent impact on the cost of 

produc  on of the goods:

  With the implementa  on of the above means, energy cost is expected to be reduced and consequently there will be 

impact on the cost of produc  on.

  Total energy consump  on and energy consump  on per unit of produc  on as per FORM-A a# ached.

B) Technology Absorp  on

 a. E" ort made in technology absorp  on as per Form-B a# ached

C) Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo 

 a. Ac  vi  es rela  ng to export, ini  a  ve taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for the products & 

services and export plans:

  The export revenue during the year was ̀  184.51 Crores. The export team regularly visi# he interna  onal market, customer 

and end users. The Export team par  cipate in all major trade fairs and events to improve the Company’s visibility amongst 

the global market.

 b. Total Foreign Exchange used and earned:                                                                                           (` in Lacs)

Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Foreign Exchange earned 18451.37 17530.71

Foreign Exchange used 7836.60 9199.64

FORM A

(Disclosure of par  culars with respect to Conserva  on of Energy)

2014-2015 2013-2014

A. Power & Fuel Consump  on

 1. Electricity :

  a) Purchased

   Unit (in Lacs-KWH) 1,897.23 1,547.02

   Amount (` in Lacs) 8,559.06 6,726.57

   Cost/unit (`/KWH) 4.51 4.35

  b) Own Genera  on

   Unit (in Lacs-KWH) Nil 287.71

   Amount (` in Lacs) Nil 1,667.56

   Cost/unit (`/KWH) Nil 5.80

 2. Coal #

  Quan  ty (in M. T.) 25,123.43 77,215.64               

  Amount (` in Lacs) 2,674.75         4,337.43

  Average Rate/MT 10,646.44 5,617.29

B. Consump  on per unit of produc  on

 1. Electricity (Unit/MT) 4,317.42    4,402.64    

 2. Coal & Coke (Kg/MT) 571.72 701.56     

#used in produc  on of Electricity (Power) & Ferro Alloys Produc  on.
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FORM B

(Disclosure of par  culars with respect to Technology Absorp  on)

  A. Research & Development (R&D)

SpeciÞ c areas in which R&D proposed to be carried out by the Company None

BeneÞ ts derived Does not arise

Future plan of ac  on Under Planning

Expenditure on R & D

a) Capital Nil

b) Recurring Nil

c) Total Nil

d) Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover Nil

  B. Technology absorp  on, adapta  on and innova  on 

   E& orts made:

   Con  nuous e" orts are being made towards improvements in exis  ng produc  on process.

   BeneÞ ts:

   Improvement in the quality of products; safe and environment friendly process.

   Par  culars of imported Technology during last 5 years     Nil 

Annexure V

FORM AOC-2

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transac  ons not at Arm’s Length Basis

Name(s) of the 

Related Party 

and Nature of 

Rela  onship

Nature of 

Contracts/ 

Arrangements/ 

Transac  ons

Dura  on of 

the Contracts/ 

Arrangements/ 

Transac  ons

Salient 

Terms of the 

Contracts or 

Arrangements 

or Transac  ons 

including the 

value, if any

Jus  Þ ca  on 

for entering 

into such 

Contracts or 

Arrangements 

or Transac  ons

Date(s) of 

Approval by 

the Board

Amount paid 

as Advances, 

if any

Date on which 

the Special 

Resolu  on 

was passed 

in General 

Mee  ng as 

required under 

First Proviso to 

Sec  on 188

NIL

2. Details of Material Contracts or Arrangements or Transac  ons at Arm’s Length Basis

Name(s) of the 

Related Party 

and Nature of 

Rela  onship

Nature of 

Contracts/ 

Arrangements/ 

Transac  ons

Dura  on of 

the Contracts/ 

Arrangements/ 

Transac  ons

Salient 

Terms of the 

Contracts or 

Arrangements 

or Transac  ons 

including the 

value, if any

Date(s) of 

Approval by 

the Board

Amount 

paid as 

Advances, if 

any

Amount paid 

as Advances, 

if any

Date on which 

the Special 

Resolu  on 

was passed 

in General 

Mee  ng as 

required under 

First Proviso to 

Sec  on 188

NIL

 For and on behalf of the Board

 Suresh Kumar Patni

Kolkata, 22nd August, 2015 Chairman cum Managing Director
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Economic Overview 

Financial Year 2014-15 witnessed divergent trend among major economies. According to the Interna  onal Monetary Fund, the 

global economy is expected to grow at 3.4% in Þ nancial year 2015-16. This is due to the fact that slowdown in produc  on in China 

and Russia is expected to be more than o"  set by recovery of the developed economies and growth in South-East Asia.

The currency movements and interest rates con  nue to be risks for growth. Developed economies are expected to grow moderately. 

A$ er pos  ng stronger and broader growth at the end of 2014, the USA is carrying the momentum into 2015 with increased 

consumer spending and trade ac  vity, falling unemployment rate and improved investor sen  ment.

The Indian GDP growth expanded to 7.2% in previous Þ nancial year due to improving economic sen  ments but demand at the 

grass root level remained stagnant and is only expected to pick up from 2015.

Industry structure and developments 

The Indian Ferro Alloys Industry, which has completed Þ ve decades of its existence and a part of the core sector, is engaged in 

supplying crucial intermediaries to Iron and Steel Industry. Ferro-alloys are cri  cal addi  ves in the produc  on of iron & steel and 

the fortune of Ferro Alloys Industry is directly linked with the growth of Iron & Steel Industry. The product mix of ferro alloys 

consists of bulk ferro alloys which includes HC ferro manganese, silicon manganese, ferro silicon, HC ferro chrome, charge chrome, 

etc. and noble ferro alloys consis  ng of ferromolybdenum, ferro-anadium, ferrotungsten, ferro-silicon magnesium, ferro-boron 

and ferro-  tanium. 

India accounts for around 7-8% of the world’s ferro alloys produc  on. India emerged as a preferred supplier of ferro alloys on 

account of abundant availability of key resources comprising chrome ore and manganese ore, trained and cost-e" ec  ve manpower 

and favorable loca  on. 

The demand driver of ferro-alloys consists of crude steel produc  on, alloy and special steel produc  on and stainless steel 

produc  on. The an  cipated infrastructure development, investment plan in road sector, expansion in railway, increase in volume 

by automobile sector, uses of special steel in power sectors and refocus on manufacturing sector, the demand for ferro alloys is 

expected to improve in coming years. 

Opportuni  es and Threats 

The growth of Ferro-Alloys Industry is directly linked with the growth of Iron and Steel Industry, which in turn depends on its 

user industry i.e. infrastructure, housing, automobile and consumer durable industries. India, at a per capita steel consump  on 

of 60 kg, is much below the global average of 215 kg, thereby reß ec  ng massive under-penetra  on and immense opportuni  es 

for growth, which will in turn, drive ferro-alloys demand as these are key input resources for iron and steel manufacture. The 

Industry has tremendous poten  al for growth as the per capita steel consump  on in the Country is one of the lowest in the world. 

With burgeoning popula  on, drive towards industrialisaton and focus on be# er quality of life, the  steel demand in the country is 

expected to rise signiÞ cantly which will in turn, drive ferro-alloys demand as these are the key input resources for iron and steel 

manufacture. The signiÞ cant investments envisaged in India’s infrastructure sector in the crea  on of capital assets including roads, 

bridges, airports, seaports, ß yovers and railway tracks, opportunity of u  lising special steel by power and automobiles sector, the 

demand for steel and hence, ferro-alloys is expected to grow in coming years. 

Electrical energy is one of the major inputs in produc  on of ferro-alloys and high power tari"  is a threat for the Ferro-Alloys 

Industry. Apart from electrical energy, the industry faces challenges of acquiring good quality raw materials like high grade ores 

and coke. 

As regards the power cost, ferro-alloys producers are now focusing on se&  ng up their cap  ve power units. This will reduce the 

input cost and ensures con  nuous supply of power to the downstream project. In the long run this e" ort of backward integra  on 

shall eventually help the domes  c ferro-alloys producers to compete in the interna  onal market. Moreover with India remaining 

as one of the largest producers of manganese ore, there is adequate availability of this resource for the produc  on of manganese 

based ferro-alloys.

Further, it is hoped that the government would recognise the challenges arising out of periodic administered price increases of 

power and input materials which hamper the compe    veness of this industry and take steps to address them urgently to enable 

the ferro alloys producers to compete in the domes  c as well as interna  onal markets. 

Risks and Concerns

The cost-e" ec  ve availability and quality of key raw material is a global challenge. The vola  lity in prices of raw materials including 

the mismatch between the prices of raw materials and ferro alloys as well as limita  on on and disrup  on in the supply of inputs, 
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could adversely a" ect the proÞ tability of the Company. Maintaining greater raw material security to insulate the Company from 

the price swing in key inputs and resultant impact on the proÞ tability con  nues to be a key strategic objec  ve. The Company is 

maintaining a healthy posi  on for key raw materials having arrangements with domes  c and interna  onal ore suppliers. 

Electricity comprises a key cost component in the total opera  ng cost structure and an inability to manage this might impact the  

Company’s opera  ons. The 30 MW cap  ve power plant enables the Company to emerge self-reliant in its power needs and reduce 

dependence on the expensive grid electricity.

The Company’s sales may in the future be concentrated in a few markets as a consequence of con  nued global slow down, thereby 

nega  vely impac  ng its opera  ons. Currently the Company’s sales are well-spread to key consump  on centers across the globe. 

The Company presently caters to the needs of several mul  na  onal customers, thereby mi  ga  ng concentra  on risks.

The Company deals in sizeable amount of foreign exchange in import of raw materials and exports of Þ nished products. A 

comprehensive and robust forex policy has been formulated for insula  ng the Company by hedging foreign exchange exposure.

Segment-wise Repor  ng 

The Company is mainly in the business segment of manufacturing & sales of ferro-alloys and trading in iron & steel products. The 

key Þ nancial of the business segments including secondary segment details iden  Þ ed as the geographical segment based on the 

loca  on of customers within India and outside India is given in Notes No. 36 to the Annual Accounts. The Company also generates 

power from its Cap  ve Power Plant, which is en  rely consumed in the manufacture of ferro-alloys without any sale to third par  es.

Segment-wise Performance

Ferro Alloys:

During the year under review the Company has produced 43,943.560 MT of ferro alloys against 42,325.860 MT of ferro alloys in 

previous year registering a growth of 3.82% over previous year. The Gross revenue from the ferro alloys segment was ` 265.54 

Crores. The ferro alloys export during the year under review has increased by 8.22% to 33,847 MT.

Internal Controls and Systems 

The Company has implemented proper and adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size and nature of 

opera  ons to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded, transac  ons are authorised, recorded and reported 

properly, applicable statutes and corporate policies are duly complied with. The Company has an Audit Commi# ee with majority 

of Independent Directors as members. The commi# ee periodically reviews signiÞ cant audit Þ ndings, adequacy of internal control 

and compliance with Accoun  ng Standards, amongst others. The management duly considers and takes appropriate ac  on on 

the recommenda  ons made by the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Independent Audit Commi# ee of the Board 

of Directors. The Company also takes quarterly compliance cer  Þ cate in respect of various applicable laws from the concerned 

departmental heads and place the same before the board.   

Industrial Rela  ons and Human Resources 

Human resource is the Company’s principal asset. The Company provides con  nual training to its sta"  to help them upgrade 

their skills and seeks to balance individual aspira  ons with Company goals. The Company is an equal opportuni  es employer. The 

Company employs contract labourers in its manufacturing facili  es. The Company recruits judiciously through industry contacts, 

newspaper adver  sements and consultancies. The Company also recruits trainees from reputed ITIs, technical and professional 

ins  tutes. The Company maintained harmonious rela  onship with all its workers and there were no strikes or lockouts during the 

year under review. As on the date of this Report the Company has 231 employees on its payroll.

Cau  onary Statement

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objec  ve and predic  ons may 

be “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regula  ons. Actual results may vary signiÞ cantly from 

the forward looking statements contained in this document due to various risks and uncertain  es. These risks and uncertain  es 

include the e" ect of economic and poli  cal condi  ons in India, vola  lity in interest rates new regula  ons and government policies 

that may impact the Company’s business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The Company doesn’t undertake to update 

the statements.
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Corporate Governance Philosophy

We believe that good Corporate Governance is a key driver of sustainable corporate growth and long term value crea  on of our 

stakeholders. Corporate Governance involves being responsive to aspira  ons of our stakeholders besides ensuring compliance with 

regulatory requirements. The Company has always been taking the spirit of various legisla  ons as guiding principles and proposes 

to go well beyond statutory compliance by establishing such systems and procedures as are required to make the management 

completely transparent and ins  tu  onally sound. We are commi# ed to conduct the business upholding the core values like 

transparency, integrity, honesty, accountability and compliance of all statutes. We recognize that this is a conscious and con  nuous 

process across the Organiza  on, which enables the Company to adopt best prac  ces as we incorporate improvements based on 

the past experience.

Board of Directors

As on 31st March, 2015 the Board consisted of 6 (Six) Directors out of which 2 (Two) were Execu  ve Directors and 4 (Four) were 

Non-Execu  ve Directors of which 3 (Three) were Independent. The Chairman of the Company is an Execu  ve-Promoter-Director. 

The composi  on of the Board during the year was in conformity with Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement executed with the Stock 

Exchanges.

None of the Directors on the Board are member of more than 10 (ten) Commi# ees and they do not act as Chairman of more than 

5 (Þ ve) Commi# ees across all the Companies of which they are the Directors. The Directors regularly inform the Company about 

the changes in their posi  ons as and when changes take place, apart from the annual disclosures. 

The composi  on and category of the Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2015 along with the number of Board 

mee  ngs a# ended by the Directors during the year 2014-15 are given below:

Name of the Director Category No. of 

Board 

Mee  ngs 

A' ended

No. of Directorship 

in other Public 

Limited Companies 

incorporated in India

No. of Commi' ee posi  ons 

held in other Public Limited 

Companies $

Whether 

A' ended 

the last 

AGMAs Member As Chairman

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Promoter/ 

-Execu  ve 

19 6 1 - No

Mr. Ankit  Patni@ Promoter/Non-

Execu  ve 

19 3 1 - Yes

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh Execu  ve 19 - - - No

Mr. Nanda Samai* Independent – 

Non-Execu  ve

6 1 1 - No

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal ** Independent – 

Non-Execu  ve

12 4 2 2 No

Mr. Rohit Jain # Independent – 

Non-Execu  ve

2 2 1 2 No

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Khandelwal !

Independent – 

Non-Execu  ve

17 - - - No

Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla % Independent/ 

Non-Execu  ve

7 2 1 2 Yes

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain ^ Independent/ 

Non-Execu  ve

7 - - - Yes

Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   + Promoter/Non-

Execu  ve

- - - - No

Notes :

$ Only the two commi# ees viz. Audit Commi# ee and Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi# ee are considered for this purpose.

@ Resigned from the Directorship w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

* Appointed as an Addi  onal Director w.e.f 16th January, 2015.

** Appointed as an Addi  onal Director w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

# Appointed as an Addi  onal Director w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report

! Cessa  on due to demise w.e.f 24th March, 2015.

% Resigned w.e.f. 23rd March, 2015.

^ Resigned w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

+ Appointed as an Addi  onal Director w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

None of the Non-Execu  ve Directors have any pecuniary rela  onship or transac  ons with the Company except for holding 

Directorship & receiving si&  ng fee, save and except Mr. Ankit Patni who is also the promoter of the Company, which has a business 

rela  on with this Company.

Mr. Ankit Patni is the son of Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni. No other Directors in the Board are related to each other.

Mee  ng

Ninteen (19) Board Mee  ngs were held during the year 2014-15 and the gap between two mee  ngs did not exceed four months. 

The dates on which the Board Mee  ngs were held are as follows:

29th April, 2014; 30th May, 2014; 10th July, 2014; 17th July, 2014; 12th August, 2014; 25th August, 2014; 12th September, 2014; 

8th October, 2014; 17th October, 2014; 11th November, 2014; 14th November, 2014; 23rd December, 2014; 14th January, 2015; 

16th January, 2015; 28th January, 2015; 14th February, 2015; 28th February, 2015; 23rd March, 2015 and 26th March, 2015.

Notes

1. Board mee  ng are held at the Corporate O!  ce of the Company. The Agenda along with explanatory notes are sent in advance 

to the Directors to get their input in the discussion. The informa  on as speciÞ ed in Annexure- IA to Clause 49 of the Lis  ng 

Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchange is regularly made available to the Board whenever applicable.

2. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. Steps are taken by the Company to 

rec  fy instances of non-compliance, if any.

Independent Directors

None of the Independent Directors is ac  ng as an Independent Director in more than 7 listed Companies.

Mee  ngs of Independent Directors:

During the period under review, Independent Directors’ met on 26th March, 2015, inter-alia, to discuss:

a) Review  the Performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

b) Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking in account the view of Execu  ve and Non-Execu  ve 

Directors,

c) Assess the quality, quan  ty and   melines of ß ow of informa  on between the Management and the Board, that is necessary 

for the Board to e" ec  vely and reasonably perform their du  es

All the Independent Directors were present in the mee  ng.

Performance evalua  on of Independent Directors

The Board evaluated the performance of the Independent Directors and recommends the commission payable to them based 

on their commitment towards a# ending the mee  ng of the Board/Commi# ees, contribu  on and a# en  on to the a" airs of the 

Company and their overall performance apart from si&  ng fees paid for each Board & Commi# ee mee  ng a# ended by them.

Familiarisa  on Program of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors are having adequate experience in the Þ eld of Þ nance, industry, commerce and administra  on. Their 

presence on the Board has been advantageous to the Board and frui' ul in taking business decisions.

Periodic presenta  ons are made by Senior Management on business and performance updates of the Company, global business 

environment, business risk and its mi  ga  on strategy. The details of such periodic presenta  on is disclosed on the Company’s 

website www.impexferrotech.com
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Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel as adopted is available on the Company’s website 

www.impexferrotech.com. All the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have a!  rmed the compliances of the 

Code of Conduct. 

Declara  on

 In accordance with Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel of the Company have a!  rmed compliances with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the 

year ended 31st March, 2015.

     For Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.

  Suresh Kumar Patni

 Kolkata, 30th May, 2015 Chairman cum Managing Director

Commi' ees of Directors

Currently, there are Þ ve (5) Board Commi# ees – Audit Commi# ee, Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee, Stakeholder’s 

Rela  onship Commi# ee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi# ee and Execu  ve Commi# ee. The terms of reference of 

the Board Commi# ee are determined by the Board from   me to   me. The terms of reference, role and composi  on of these 

commi# ees, including the number of mee  ngs held and a# ended by the members during the Þ nancial year are provided below:

1. Audit Commi' ee

 The Company has an Audit Commi# ee within the scope of Sec  on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 49 of the 

Lis  ng Agreement. The exis  ng Audit Commi# ee has been recons  tuted on 30th day of May, 2014.

 The composi  on of the Audit Commi# ee and the details of mee  ngs a# ended by the Commi# ee members are given below: 

Name of the Member Designa  on Category No. of Mee  ngs A' ended

Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla* Chairman Independent/Non-Execu  ve 4

Mr. Ankit Patni ** Member Promoter/Non-Execu  ve 1

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain @ Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 3

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Khandelwal #

Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 4

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal $ Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 1

Mr. Rohit Jain % Chairman Independent/Non-Execu  ve -

Mr. Nanda Samai ^ Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 1

Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   + Member Promoter/Non-Execu  ve -

 * Resigned w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.

 ** Resigned as a Member of Audit Commi# ee w.e.f 30.05.2014 and was again appointed as a Member of Audit Commi# ee on 

28.07.2015. Subsequently, he resigned as Director of the Company w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

 @ Resigned w.e.f 8th October, 2015.

 # Cessa  on due to demise w.e.f 24th March, 2015.

 $ Appointed as a Member w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

 % Appointed as a Member w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.

 ^ Appointed as a Member w.e.f 16th January, 2015.

 + Appointed as a Member w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

 The Managing Director, Execu  ve Director and Chief Financial O!  cer are permanent invitees to the Commi# ee. The Company 

Secretary acts as Secretary of the Audit Commi# ee. The representa  ve of Internal Auditors also a# ends the mee  ng. The Audit 

Commi# ee invites, as and when considers appropriate, the representa  ves from the Statutory Auditors and Cost Auditors to 

be present at the mee  ng of the Commi# ee.
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 The Audit Commi# ee comprises of 3 (three) Directors all of whom are Þ nancially literate. Majority of the members of the 

Commi# ee are Independent/Non-Execu  ve. Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla, Independent Director who was the Member of Audit 

Commi# ee   ll 23.03.2015, having exper  se in Þ nance, was the Chairman of the Audit Commi# ee. A$ er his resigna  on, Mr. 

Rohit Jain, Independent Director, having exper  se in Þ nance was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Commi# ee w.e.f 23rd 

March, 2015. 

 The Chairman of the Audit commi# ee was present at the last Annual General Mee  ng.

 During the Þ nancial year ended 31st March, 2015 5 (Þ ve) Audit Commi# ee Mee  ngs were held on 30th May, 2014; 12th 

August, 2014; 25th August, 2014; 14th November, 2014 and 14th February, 2015. 

 The terms of reference of the Audit Commi# ee includes the powers as laid down in Clause 49(III)(C) and the role as s  pulated 

in Clause 49(III)(D) of the Lis  ng Agreement and review of informa  on as laid down in Clause 49(III)(E). 

 The terms of reference of the Audit Commi# ee inter alia includes:

 1. To oversight of the company’s Þ nancial repor  ng process and the disclosure of its Þ nancial informa  on to ensure that the 

Financial Statement is correct, su!  cient and credible.

 2. To recommend to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment, replacement or removal and 

remunera  on of the auditors.

 3. To examine the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon.

 4. To review, with the management, the quarterly Þ nancial statements before submission to the board for approval.

 5. To approve the payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

 6. To review, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the board for approval, with 

par  cular reference to: 

  a. Ma# ers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms 

of sub-sec  on 3 of Sec  on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

  b. Changes, if any, in accoun  ng policies and prac  ces and reasons for the same 

  c. Major accoun  ng entries involving es  mates based on the exercise of judgment by management 

  d. SigniÞ cant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit Þ ndings 

  e. Compliance with lis  ng and other legal requirements rela  ng to Financial Statements 

  f. Disclosure of any Related Party Transac  ons 

  g. QualiÞ ca  ons in the dra$  audit report. 

 7. To approve or subsequently modify the transac  ons of the Company with related par  es.

 8. To review, with the management, the statement of uses/applica  on of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 

issue, preferen  al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u  lized for purposes other than those stated in the o" er document/

prospectus/no  ce and the report submi# ed by the monitoring agency monitoring the u  lisa  on of proceeds of a public or 

rights issue, and making appropriate recommenda  ons to the Board to take up steps in this ma# er.

 9. To review, with the management and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance of statutory and internal 

auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems and e" ec  veness of audit process. 

 10. To scru  nize inter-corporate loans and investments, if any.

 11. To valuate undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

 12. To evaluate the Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems.

 13. To monitor the end use of funds raised through public o" ers and related ma# ers, if any.

 14. To review the adequacy of internal audit func  on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, sta!  ng 

and seniority of the o!  cial heading the department, repor  ng structure coverage and frequency of internal audit.
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 15. To discus with internal auditors any signiÞ cant Þ ndings and follow up there on.

 16. To review the Þ ndings of any internal inves  ga  ons by the internal auditors into ma# ers where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and repor  ng the ma# er to the board.

 17. To call for comments of the auditors about internal control systems, scope of audit, including the observa  ons of the 

auditors and review of Financial Statement before their submission to the Board and discuss any related issues with the 

internal and statutory auditors and the management of the Company.

 18. To give an op  on to the Auditors and the Key Managerial Person of the Company to be heard at the Audit Commi# ee 

Mee  ng while considering the Auditors’ Report.

 19. To discus with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

 20. To look into the reasons for substan  al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case 

of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

 21. To approve the appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-  me Finance Director or any other person heading the Þ nance func  on 

or discharging that func  on) a$ er assessing the qualiÞ ca  ons, experience & background, etc. of the candidate.

 22. To establish a Vigil Mechanism for the directors and employees of the Company to report genuine concerns in certain 

ma# ers. The Mechanism shall provide adequate safeguard against vic  misa  on of persons who use the mechanism. The 

Chairman of the Audit Commi# ee shall be easily available for the same.

 23. To carry out any other func  on as is men  oned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commi# ee from   me to   me.

2. Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi' ee (erstwhile Remunera  on Commi' ee)

 In compliance of the provision of Sec  on 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement. The 

exis  ng Remunera  on Commi# ee has been renamed as Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee.

 The Commi# ee consists of 3 (three) Non-Execu  ve/Independent Directors. The Commi# ee met Six (6)   mes during the year 

i.e., on 30th May, 2014; 12th August, 2014; 25th August, 2014; 14th November, 2014; 1st February, 2015 and 28th February, 

2015. The present composi  on of the Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee and details of the mee  ng a# ended by the 

members are given below:

Name of the Member Designa  on Category No. of Mee  ng A' ended

Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla * Chairman Independent/Non-Execu  ve 5

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain ** Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 3

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Khandelwal @

Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 6

Mr. Sujata Agarwal + Member Independent/Non-Execu  ve 3

Mr. Rohit Jain # Chairman Independent/Non-Execu  ve -

Mr. Ankit Patni $ Member Promoter/Non Execu  ve -

Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   % Member Promoter/Non Execu  ve -

 * Resigned w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.

 ** Resigned w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

 @ Cessa  on due to demise w.e.f 24th March, 2015.

 + Appointed as a Member w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

 # Appointed as a Member w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.

 $ Appointed as a member in Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee w.e.f 28th July, 2015. Further, he resigned as Director 

of the Company w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

 % Appointed as a Member w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.
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 The terms of reference of the Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee are as follows:

 1. To iden  fy person who are qualiÞ ed to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management as per their 

criteria;

 2. To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of the Directors and Senior Management;

 3. To carry out evalua  on of every Director’s performance;

 4. To formulate criteria for determining qualiÞ ca  on, posi  ve a# ributes and independence of a Director;

 5. Devise a policy on Board diversity;

 6. To recommend to the Board a policy rela  ng to remunera  on for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees;

 7. To carry out any other func  on as is mandated by the Board from   me to   me and/or enforced by any statutory no  Þ ca  on, 

amendment or modiÞ ca  on, as may be applicable;

 8. To perform such other func  ons as may be necessary or appropriate for performance of its du  es;

 The Chairman was present at the last Annual General Mee  ng.

Remunera  on Policy

A. For Execu  ve Directors/KMP’s:

 I. Fixed pay: 

  a. The Managing Director/Execu  ve Directors/KMP’s and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly 

remunera  on and perquisites as may be approved by the Board on the recommenda  on of the Commi# ee. The 

statutory and re  ral beneÞ ts shall be paid as per the applicable laws.

  b. The remunera  on to be paid to the Managing Director/Execu  ve Directors shall be paid on recommenda  on of the 

Commi# ee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

 II. Minimum Remunera  on: 

  If, in any Þ nancial year, the Company has no proÞ ts or its proÞ ts are inadequate, the Company shall pay remunera  on to 

its Managing Director/Execu  ve Director in accordance with the provisions of Part-II of Schedule V of the Act and if it is not 

able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government. 

 III. Provisions for excess remunera  on: 

  If any managing Director/Whole-  me Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remunera  on any such 

sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanc  on of the Central Government, where 

required, he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and un  l such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. 

The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permi# ed by the Central Government. 

B. For Non-Execu  ve Directors/Independent Directors

 I. Si(  ng fees 

  The Non-Execu  ve/Independent Director may receive remunera  on by way of fees for a# ending mee  ngs of Board 

or Commi# ee thereof, provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed ` One Lac per mee  ng of the Board or 

Commi# ee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from   me to   me.

 II. Commission: 

  No Commission shall be paid. 

 III. Stock Op  ons: 

  An Independent Director shall not be en  tled to any stock op  on as per the Companies Act, 2013.
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 Remunera  on of Execu  ve Directors 

 The Company has paid remunera  on only by way of salary to its Managing Director/Execu  ve Directors and the same is 

within the limits speciÞ ed under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and duly approved by the Board as well as by the 

shareholders of the Company. Details of remunera  on paid during 2014-15 are as follows: 

Name of the Director and Designa  on Salary paid (`) Period of Contract No  ce Period

From To

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni 12,00,000/- 01.07.2013 30.06.2018 2 months

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh* 9,00,000/- 24.08.2012 23.08.2015 2 months

 * Re-appointed for a further period of 3 (Three) years w.e.f. 24th August, 2015   ll 23rd August, 2018.

 Remunera  on of Non-Execu  ve Directors 

 The remunera  on of Non-Execu  ve Directors consists of only si&  ng fees @ ` 1,500/- for a# ending each mee  ng of the Board 

of Directors or a Commi# ee thereof. The details of fees paid during the year and the equity shares held by them as on 31st 

March, 2015 are as follows:

Name of the Director Si(  ng Fee paid (`) No. of Shares held as on 31st March, 2015

Mr. Ankit Patni 27,000 1,75,600

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 16,500 Nil

Mr. Santosh Kumar Khandelwal 34,500 Nil

Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla 19,500 Nil

Mr. Nanda Samai 7,500 Nil

Mr. Rohit Jain 1,500 Nil

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal 18,000 Nil

3. Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi' ee (erstwhile Investor Grievance cum Share Transfer Commi' ee)

 In compliance of provision of sec  on 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement, the 

exis  ng Investor Grievance cum Share Transfer Commi# ee has been renamed as Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi# ee.

 The Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi# ee was cons  tuted to speciÞ cally look into the redressal of investors’ complaints like 

transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet and non-receipt of declared dividends, etc.  

 The Stakeholders Rela  onship Commi# ee consists of three Directors, out of which two are Independent Directors. The 

Chairman of the Commi# ee is an Independent Director. 

 During the year under review, the Commi# ee has met once on 04.12.2014.

 The composi  on of the Commi# ee and the a# endance of the members in the mee  ng are given hereunder:

Name of the Member Designa  on Category No. of Mee  ngs A' ended

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain # Chairman Independent/Non-Execu  ve -

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Member Promoter/Execu  ve 1

Mr. Jay Shanker Shukla ** Member Independent /Non-Execu  ve -

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal * Chairman Independent /Non-Execu  ve 1

Mr. Rohit Jain $ Member Independent /Non-Execu  ve -

 # Resigned w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

 ** Resigned w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.

 * Appointed as a Member w.e.f 8th October, 2014.

 $ Appointed as a Member w.e.f 23rd March, 2015.

 Ms. Richa Agarwal, Company Secretary has been designated as Secretary to the Commi# ee and as Compliance O!  cer of the 

Company. The Commi# ee has delegated the authority to approve the requests for transfers/transmission, split and remat/

demat of shares to the Company Secretary. The Commi# ee reviews the transfer/demat/remat approved by the Company 

Secretary and take note thereof in their subsequent mee  ng.
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 The broad terms of reference includes the following:

 a. To review and ensure compliance of statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the guidelines of SEBI and the Stock 

Exchanges and other statutory requirements rela  ng to transfer and transmission of shares/debentures of the Company.

 b. To review and ensure that the Registrar/Company’s Transfer House implements all statutory provisions as above.

 c. Approve transfers/transmission of shares/debenture and demat/remat of the shares/debenture.

 d. Approve issue of duplicate shares cer  Þ cates/debenture cer  Þ cates, issue of cer  Þ cates on consolida  on/sub-division/

rematerialisa  on.

 e. To consider and resolve all shareholders queries, grievance and complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance 

sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends etc. are a# ended and redressed in an expedi  ous manner.

 f. Monitor implementa  on of Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibi  on of Insider Trading.

 g. Any other ma# er referred by the Board rela  ng to equity shareholders of the Company.

 The details of the complaints during the year 2014-2015, excluding correspondences which are not in the nature of complaints 

are given below:

Number of complaints received from the shareholders Nil

Number of complaints redressed Nil

Number of complaints not solved/pending Nil 

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Commi' ee

 The Corporate Social Responsibility Commi# ee of the Board of Directors was cons  tuted on 29th April 2014, in terms of the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The composi  on of the Commi# ee is as under:

Name of the Member Designa  on Category

Mr. Santosh Kumar Khandelwal # Chairman Independent/Non-Execu  ve

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh Member Execu  ve

Mr. Ankit Patni * Member Promoter /Non-Execu  ve

Mr. Nanda Samai $ Chairman Promoter/Execu  ve

Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   % Member Promoter/Non-Execu  ve

 # Cessa  on due to demise w.e.f 24th March, 2015.

 * Resigned as a Member w.e.f. 22nd August, 2015.

 $ Appointed as a Chairman in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi# ee w.e.f 28th July, 2015.

 % Appointed as a Member w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

 The role of the Commi# ee are as under:

 a. Formulate and recommend to the Board the CSR Policy and any amendments thereof which shall indicate the ac  vi  es to 

be undertaken by the Company as speciÞ ed in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

 b. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the ac  vi  es, as per CSR Policy.

 c. Be responsible for implementa  on and monitoring of CSR projects or programmes or ac  vi  es of the Company.

 d. Any other ma# er/thing as may be considered expedient by the members in furtherance of and to comply with the CSR 

Policy of the Company.
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5. Execu  ve Commi' ee

 The Execu  ve Commi# ee of the Board of Directors was cons  tuted on 14th February, 2015 consis  ng of 3 (three) members. 

 The composi  on of the Commi# ee is as under:

Name of the Member Designa  on Category

Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni Chairman Execu  ve

Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh Member Execu  ve

Mr. Ankit Patni * Member Non-Execu  ve

Mr. Ramesh Seemakur   # Member Non-Execu  ve

* Resigned w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

# Appointed as a member w.e.f 22nd August, 2015.

The Commi' ee is cons  tuted with powers and responsibili  es including but not limited to

 • To review and follow up on the ac  on taken on the Board decisions;

 • To review the opera  ons of the Company in general;

 • To review the systems followed by the Company;

 • To review, propose and monitor annual budget including addi  onal budget, if any, subject to the ra  Þ ca  on of the Board;

 • To review capital expenditure against the budget;

 • To authorize opening and closing of bank accounts; To authorize addi  ons/dele  ons to the signatories pertaining to 

banking transac  ons;

 • To approve transac  ons rela  ng to foreign exchange exposure including but not limited to forward cover and deriva  ve 

products;

 • To delegate and authorise the Company o!  cials to represent and appear before the various courts, government authori  es 

on behalf of the Company;

 • To a# end to any other responsibility as may be entrusted by the Board to inves  gate any ac  vity within terms of reference;

 • To execute Power of A# orney in favour of Company o!  cials to represent and appear before the various courts, government 

authori  es on behalf of the Company;

 Further, the Execu  ve Commi' ee is empowered to do the following

 • To seek informa  on from any employee as considered necessary;

• To obtain outside legal professional advice as considered necessary;

• To secure a# endance of outsiders with relevant exper  se; and

To inves  gate any ac  vity within terms of reference.

 General Body Mee  ngs

 The last three Annual General Mee  ngs were held as under :

Date Financial Year Place Time

September 27, 2014 2013-2014 Purbashree, Bhar  yam Cultural Mul  plex, IB-201, 

Sector-III, Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 016

10.00 AM

September 30, 2013 2012-2013 ‘Rotary Sadan’

94/2, Chowringee Road, Kolkata - 700 020

10.00 AM

September 26, 2012 2011-2012 ‘Rotary Sadan’

94/2, Chowringee Road, Kolkata - 700 020

10.00 AM
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 Special Resolu  ons Passed at the last three AGMs :

Financial Year Items

2013-14 Altera  on of Ar  cles of Associa  on of the Company

2012-13 Issue Shares to Promoters and Non-Promoter Group on preferen  al basis 

2011-12 None

 No special resolu  on requiring postal ballot is being proposed at the ensuing AGM. However, two (2) resolu  ons were passed 

during the year 2014-15 in accordance with the provisions of Sec  on 110 of the Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) read with 

Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administra  on) Rules, 2014. The results of the Postal Ballot are given below:

Par  culars of 

Resolu  on

Type of Resolu  on Resolu  on passed 

on 

Applicable Sec  on 

of the Companies 

Act, 2013

No. and % of votes 

in favor

No. and % of votes 

against

Crea  on of 

Charge/Mortgage 

on Company’s 

proper  es

Special Resolu  on 25th August, 2014 Sec  on 180 (1)(a) 

of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and 

other applicable 

provisions, if any of 

the Companies Act, 

2013

52017135

99.99%

3162

0.01%

Increase of 

Borrowing Limit

Special Resolu  on 25th August, 2014 Sec  on 180 (1)(c) 

of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and 

other applicable 

provisions, if any of 

the Companies Act, 

2013

52007331

99.97%

11665

0.03%

 The Postal Ballot result was declared on 25th August, 2014 at the Corporate o!  ce of the Company and was placed on the 

Company’s website.

 CS Abhijeet Jain, Prac  cing Company Secretary was appointed as Scru  nizer for conduc  on the Postal Ballot process which was 

conducted in terms of the procedure laid down in the Companies (Management and Administra  on) Rules, 2014, read with the 

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Disclosures

• There are no materially signiÞ cant Related Party Transac  ons, i.e. transac  ons of the Company of material nature with its 

Promoters, Directors or the Management or rela  ves etc. that may have poten  al conß ict with the interests of the Company at 

large. A statement in summary form of transac  ons with related par  es in the ordinary course of business is placed periodically 

before the Audit Commi# ee. The pricing of all the transac  ons with the related par  es were on an arm’s length basis. A 

disclosure of related party rela  onship and transac  ons as per AS-18 is given in the Note No: 37 to the Annual Accounts of the 

Company.

• Review of RPT by Audit Commi# ee and grant of omnibus approval. Incorporate the same in Audit Commi# ee minutes 

• The Company follows Accoun  ng Standards issued by the Ins  tute of Chartered Accountants of India and in the prepara  on of 

Financial Statements, the Company has not adopted a treatment di" erent from that prescribed in an Accoun  ng Standard. 

• The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Lis  ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges as well as regula  ons 

and guidelines of SEBI. No strictures or penalty were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory 

authority, on any ma# er related to capital markets during the last three years.

• The Company does not have any Subsidiary.
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• A Risk Management Policy has been formed by the Company on 30th May, 2014. The risk assessment and minimisa  on 

procedures are in place and the Board is regularly informed by the Senior Execu  ves about the business risks, if any occurs, 

and the steps taken to mi  gate the same.

• Vigil Mechanism Policy:

 In order to strengthen the process of conduc  ng the business in a fair, transparent and ethical manner, the Company has set 

up a Vigil Mechanism. The policy is intended to establish a mechanism for employees to report to the management genuine 

concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or viola  on of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics, for 

which a dedicated email id vigil.mechanism@impexferrotech.com has been established. Mr. Rohit Jain, Chairman of the Audit 

Commi# ee of the Company has been nominated by the Board as Ombudsperson for this purpose. The mechanism provides 

adequate safeguard against vic  misa  on of the persons using this mechanism. No employee was denied access to the Audit 

Commi# ee.   

• In terms of clause 49(IV)(F)(ii) of the Lis  ng Agreement, the Senior Management has disclosed to the Board that they have no 

personal interest in the material, Þ nancial and commercial transac  ons of the Company that may have poten  al conß ict with 

the interest of the Company at large.

• The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as mandated under Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement. 

A cer  Þ cate from the prac  cing Company Secretary to this e" ect has been included in this report. Besides mandatory 

requirements, the Company has cons  tuted a Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee to consider and recommend the 

remunera  on of the Directors. The extent of compliance rela  ng to non-mandatory requirements is dealt under the head 

‘non- mandatory requirements’.

 CEO/CFO Cer  Þ ca  on

 The requisite cer  Þ cate from the Managing Director and the Chief Financial O!  cer of the Company for the Þ nancial year 

ended 31st March, 2015 required to be given under Clause 49(V) of the Lis  ng Agreement has been placed before the Board 

mee  ng held on 30th May, 2015. 

 Means of Communica  on

1.   Financial Results

 In compliance with the requirements of the Lis  ng Agreements, the Company has in  mated Audited Financial Results as well 

as the Unaudited Quarterly Results to the Stock Exchanges immediately a$ er they are taken on record by the Board. Further 

coverage has been given for the informa  on of the shareholders and investors by publica  on of the Þ nancial results in English 

Na  onal daily–“Business Standard” and in a local vernacular newspaper–“Dainik Statesman” widely circulated in the state of 

West Bengal. The results were also placed on the Company’s website at www.impexferrotech.com. 

2.   Other Informa  on

 The Company has its own website www.impexferrotech.com wherein other related informa  on is available. The Company 

has a dedicated help desk e-mail id: investors@impexferrotech.com in the secretarial department for providing necessary 

informa  on to the investors as well as for registering any complaints/grievances. The Company posts on its website all its 

o!  cial news releases, important announcements and presenta  ons made before the press meets, analysts and ins  tu  onal 

investors from   me to   me for the beneÞ t of its investors and public at large.

 ProÞ le of Directors Seeking Appointment/Re-appointment

 Resume and other informa  on of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Mee  ng 

as required under Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement are given in the no  ce of ensuing Annual General Mee  ng as an Addi  onal 

Informa  on.

 Management Discussion and Analysis Report

 A Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given separately, and forms part of Annual Report.
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 General Shareholder Informa  on

1. Annual General Mee  ng (AGM)

Day, Date & Time Monday, 28th September, 2015 at 10.00 A.M.

Venue PURBASHREE, Bhara  yam Cultural Mul  plex, IB-201, Sector-III, 

Salt Lake City, Kolkata - 700 106

2. Date of Book Closure
21st September, 2015 to 28th September, 2015 

(both days inclusive)

3. Dividend payment date N.A.

4. Financial Calendar

Indica  ve calendar of events for the Financial Year 

2015-2016 is as under:

Financial Year 1st April to 31st March

 Financial Repor  ng for the quarters :

First Quarter Disclosed on 13th August, 2015

Second Quarter and Half Yearly Within 45 days from the end of the quarter

Third Quarter and Nine Months Within 45 days from the end of the quarter

Fourth Quarter and Annual (Audited) Within 60 days from the end of the quarter Financial Year

Annual General Mee  ng On or before 30th September, 2016

5. Lis  ng of the Equity Shares on Stock Exchange

Name of the Stock Exchange Address Stock Code

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) “Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers”

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

532614

The Na  onal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) “Exchange Plaza”

Bandra - Kurla Complex 

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

IMPEXFERRO

 The Company has paid the lis  ng fee for the year 2015-16 to both the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are 

listed as well as custodial fees to the depository.

6. The Interna  onal Security Iden  Þ ca  on Number (ISIN) for NSDL & CDSL : INE691G01015.

7. Market Price Data

 The Stock Market data on BSE & NSE for the last twelve months are provided herein:

Month Na  onal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (`) Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (`)

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW

April, 2014 4.45 3.35 4.58 3.42

May, 2014 5.60 3.80 5.69 3.87

June, 2014 6.30 5.10 6.42 5.00

July, 2014 8.05 5.65 8.04 5.76

August, 2014 8.20 5.85 8.25 5.80

September, 2014 6.30 4.20 6.45 4.10

October, 2014 4.75 3.25 4.74 3.20

November, 2014 4.00 2.45 4.26 2.40

December, 2014 3.20 1.50 2.94 1.60

January, 2015 3.45 1.95 3.44 1.94

February, 2015 2.60 2.00 2.60 2.02

March, 2015 2.65 1.85 2.56 1.83
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8. Performance of the Company in comparison with BSE Sensex (To be inserted)

Corporate Governance Report

9. Shareholding Pa' ern as on 31st March, 2015

Category No. of Shares % of  holding 

Promoter & Promoter Group 5,44,29,846 66.71

Bodies Corporate 1,07,57,828 13.18

Individuals 1,61,88,181 19.84

Non-Resident Individuals 1,73,370 0.21

Clearing Member 47,279 0.06

Trusts 100 0.00

Total 8,15,96,604 100.00

10. Distribu  on of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2015

Range  No.  of Shareholders % of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Total

Upto 500 6541 60.00 14,41,011 1.77

501 to 1000 1772 16.26 15,94,532 1.95

1001 to 2000 1093 10.03 18,23,742 2.24

2001 to 3000 424 3.89 11,32,553 1.39

3001 to 4000 197 1.81 7,28,216 0.89

4001 to 5000 251 2.30 12,16,552 1.49

5001 to 10000 304 2.79 23,78,456 2.91

10001 and above 319 2.93 7,12,81,542 87.36

Total 10901 100.00 8,15,96,604 100.00

11. Dematerialisa  on of shares and Liquidity 

 The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form which is available for trading on both NSDL and CDSL. As 

on 31st March, 2015; 80,840,502 equity shares represen  ng 99.07 % of the share capital are held in dematerialized form viz., 

CDSL - 60,328,061 equity shares and NSDL – 20,512,441 equity shares.

12. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

 M/s. Maheshwari Datama  cs Pvt. Ltd. of 6, Mangoe Lane (Surendra Mohan Ghosh Sarani), 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 001 are the 

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company, both for Physical and Demat Segments. Accordingly, all communica  ons on 

ma# ers rela  ng to Share Transfers, Dividend etc. may be sent directly to them. Complaints, if any, on these ma# ers may also 

be sent to the Compliance O!  cer of the Company.
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13. Share Transfer System

 The share transfer requests are processed on behalf of the Company by Registrar & Transfer Agent, M/s. Maheshwari 

Datama  cs Pvt. Ltd. and are placed before the Company Secretary who has been delegated the authority by Stakeholders 

Rela  onship Commi# ee (erstwhile Investor Grievance cum Share Transfer Commi# ee) to approve transfers. The Company 

Secretary addresses all the requests fortnightly.

14. Outstanding ADR’s & GDR’s, Warrants or any other Conver  ble Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity 

shares 

 During the year under review, the Company has not issued any ADR’s & GDR’s, Warrants or any other conver  ble instruments. 

The Company has at present no outstanding ADR’s/GDR’s/Warrants to be converted that has an impact on the equity shares of 

the Company.

15. Name, Designa  on & Address of Compliance O)  cer for Complaints & Correspondence 

Ms. Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary & Compliance O!  cer

Impex Ferro Tech Limited

SKP House, 132A, S.P. Mukherjee Road,

Kolkata - 700 026

Ph : 9133-4016 8000/8100

Fax : 9133-4016 8189/8107

Email Id : cs@impexferrotech.com

Address for Correspondence

Registered O)  ce : Corporate O)  ce:

Impex Ferro Tech Limited Impex Ferro Tech Limited

35, C. R. Avenue, SKP House,

Kolkata – 700 012 132A, S. P. Mukherjee Road,

Phone: +91 33 4064 0021/0022 Kolkata - 700 026

Email Id: grievance@rohi' errotech.com Phone : +91 33 4016 8000/8100

Fax : +91 33 4016 8189/8107

16.  Plant Loca  ons

Kadavita Dendua Road

P.O. Kalyaneshwari, P.S. Kul  

Dist. – Burdwan, West Bengal – 713 369

Phone : +91 341 2522248/49

Fax : +91 341 2522961

Non-Mandatory Requirements

1. Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi' ee:

 The Company has a Nomina  on and Remunera  on Commi# ee comprising of 3 (three) Independent Non-Execu  ve Directors 

as stated under ‘Commi# ees of Directors’ in this report.

2. Audit QualiÞ ca  ons :

 There are no qualiÞ ca  ons in the Financial Statements of the Company for the year 2013-14.

3. Other Items :

 The rest of the non-mandatory requirements such as Shareholder’s Rights, training of Board members and Mechanism for 

evalua  on of Non-Execu  ve Board members will be implemented by the Company as and when required.

For Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.

Suresh Kumar Patni

Kolkata, 22nd August, 2015 Chairman cum Managing Director
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Corporate Governance Report

Cer  Þ cate of Compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements 

under Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreement

To

The members of

Impex Ferro Tech Ltd.

We have examined the compliance of condi  ons of Corporate Governance by Impex Ferro Tech Limited, for the year ended on 

March 31, 2015 as s  pulated in Clause 49 of the Lis  ng Agreements of the said Company with the Stock Exchange(s).

The compliance of condi  ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examina  on has 

been limited to a review of the procedures and implementa  on thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

of condi  ons of Corporate Governance as s  pulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 

Financial Statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa  on and according to the explana  ons given to us, and the representa  ons made by 

the management, we cer  fy that the Company has complied with the condi  ons of Corporate Governance as s  pulated in Clause 

49 of the above men  oned Lis  ng Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company nor the e!  ciency or 

e" ec  veness with which the management has conducted the a" airs of the Company.

       

              For A J & ASSOCIATES

                  Company Secretaries

  

             Abhijeet Jain

Kolkata, 22nd August, 2015                                    Proprietor

               C.P. No. 3426
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To

The Members of

Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Financial Statements of M/S IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED (“the Company”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 

on that date, and a summary of signiÞ cant accoun  ng policies and other explanatory informa  on. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the ma# ers stated in Sec  on 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’’) with 

respect to the prepara  on of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Þ nancial posi  on, Þ nancial 

performance and cash ß ows of the Company in accordance with the accoun  ng principles, generally accepted in India, including 

the  Accoun  ng Standards speciÞ ed under sec  on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun  ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven  ng and detec  ng frauds and other irregulari  es; selec  on and applica  on 

of appropriate accoun  ng policies; making judgments and es  mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa  on 

and maintenance of adequate internal Þ nancial controls, that are opera  ng e" ec  vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accoun  ng records,  relevant to the prepara  on and presenta  on of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accoun  ng and audi  ng standards, and ma# ers which are required to be 

included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi  ng speciÞ ed under Sec  on 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal Þ nancial 

control relevant to the Company’s prepara  on of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the company has 

in place an adequate internal Þ nancial control system over Þ nancial repor  ng and the opera  ng e" ec  veness of such controls. An 

audit also includes evalua  ng the appropriateness of accoun  ng policies used and the reasonableness of the accoun  ng es  mates 

made by the company’s management, as well as evalua  ng the overall presenta  on of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is su!  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Standalone Financial Statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa  on and according to the explana  ons given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial 

Statements give the informa  on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accoun  ng principles generally accepted in India,

(a) In the case of Balance Sheet of the state of a" airs of the Company as at 31st March 2015;

(b) In the case of Statement of ProÞ t and Loss, of the Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(c) In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows of the Company for the year ended on that date.
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Emphasis of Ma' er

1. We draw a# en  on to Note No.27 of the Þ nancial results, rela  ng to CDR Package. The CDR Package of the company has been 

sanc  oned vide LOA dated 10th November, 2014. Pursuant to the said LOA, implementa  on of CDR policy is completed and 

the e" ect thereof has been given in these accounts with respect to the CDR scheme as per the said LOA. The said accounts are 

subject to conÞ rma  on and reconcilia  on with the Lenders. The reported Þ nancials would have consequen  al impact once the 

reconcilia  on is completed, the quantum where of remains unascertained.

 Our report is not qualiÞ ed in respect of this ma' er.

2. We draw a# en  on to the Note No. 39 of the statement which indicates that as at March 31st 2015, the accumulated losses 

amoun  ng to ` 6,349.26 Lacs has substan  ally eroded net worth of the Company, indica  ng the existence of a material 

uncertainty about the company’s ability to con  nue as a going concern. These Þ nancial results have been prepared on a going 

concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note.

 Our report is not qualiÞ ed in respect of this ma' er.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2015 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 

subsec  on (11) of the sec  on 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a statement on the ma# ers speciÞ ed in the paragraphs 

3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Sec  on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informa  on and explana  ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examina  on of those books.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the books of account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accoun  ng Standards speciÞ ed under 

sec  on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e) On the basis of wri# en representa  ons received from the directors as on 31st March 2015, and taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualiÞ ed as on 31st March 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms 

of Sec  on 164 (2) of the Act; and

 (f) With respect to the other ma# ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa  on and according to the explana  ons given 

to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li  ga  ons on the Þ nancial posi  on in the Financial Statements – 

Refer Note – 28 A(b) to (f) to its Financial Statements ;

  ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including deriva  ve contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeable losses.

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Educa  on and 

Protec  on fund.

For R. Kothari & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

                     Manoj Kumar Sethia

Place : Kolkata  Partner 

Date : 30th May, 2015  Membership No. 064308
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of even date to 

the members of IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED on the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2015. On the basis 

of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us during the course of 

our audit, we report that: 

(i) (a)  The Company is maintaining proper records showing full par  culars, including quan  ta  ve details and situa  on, of Þ xed 
assets. 

 (b) All Þ xed assets were physically veriÞ ed by the management during the year in accordance with a planned program of 
verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were no  ced on such veriÞ ca  on.

(ii) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit has been physically veriÞ ed by the management during the year. In respect of 
inventory lying with the third par  es, these have substan  ally been conÞ rmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of 
such veriÞ ca  on is reasonable.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the procedures of physical veriÞ ca  on of 
stocks followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in rela  on to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the Company is maintaining proper records 
of inventory. The discrepancies no  ced on veriÞ ca  on between the physical stocks and the book records were not 
material having regard to the size of the opera  ons of the Company and the same have been properly dealt with in the 
books of account.

(iii)  The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, Þ rms or other par  es listed in the register 
maintained under Sec  on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (iii) (b), (c) and (d) of the said 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, there is an adequate Internal Control System 
commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventories and Þ xed assets 
and for the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examina  on of the books and records of the Company, 
and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any 
con  nuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and consequently, the direc  ves issued by Reserve Bank of India 
and provisions of Sec  on 73 to Sec  on 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of manufacture of Iron & steel product 
& Power genera  on unit pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under 
Sec  on 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the records have been maintained.  
We have not however made a detailed examina  on for the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate and 
complete.

(vii) (a)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us and on the basis of our examina  on of the books of account, 
the Company has been regularly deposited undisputed amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income -Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess, Professional Tax, and 
other Statutory Dues during the year with appropriate authori  es. However, there have been delays in few cases.

 (b)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, there are no dues of Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Wealth Tax, 
Excise Duty and Cess which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2015 with the appropriate authori  es on account 
of any dispute except the following cases which are as follows:

Name of the 

statute

Nature of Dues Financial Year  `/Lacs Forum where Dispute is Pending

Central Excise 

Act, 1994
Excise Duty

2005-06 12.36 Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals) (III)

2005-06 and 

2006-07

8.26 CESTAT, Calcu# a Bench

2006-07 0.5 Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals) (IV)

2007-08 15.55 CESTAT, Calcu# a Bench

Total  36.67 ` 20.92 Lacs paid under protest

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report
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Name of the 

statute

Nature of Dues Financial Year  `/Lacs Forum where Dispute is Pending

Central Sales 

Tax and Local 

Sales Tax Act

VAT

2005-06 304.13 WBCT, Appellate and Revisional Board

2006-07 479.91 WBCT, Appellate and Revisional Board

2008-09 748.45 WBCT, Appellate and Revisional Board

2009-10 211.18 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes

Total  1,743.67 ` 88.62 Lacs paid under protest

W.B. Entry Tax 

Act

Entry Tax 2012-13 and 

2013-14

272.51 Hon’ble High Court of Calcu# a

Total  272.51 ` NIL paid under protest

Income Tax 

Act, 1961

Income Tax 2011-12 1606.46 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), Kolkata

Total  1606.46 ` NIL paid under protest

 (c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa  on and Protec  on Fund by the 

Company.

(viii) The accumulated losses at the end of the Þ nancial year are not less than Þ $ y percent of its net worth and the company has 

incurred cash losses during the Þ nancial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding Þ nancial year.

(ix) Based on our audit procedures and on the informa  on and explana  ons given by the management, we are of the opinion 

that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to the Þ nancial ins  tu  ons or banks.

(x) The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or Þ nancial ins  tu  ons during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the term loan have been applied for the 

purpose they were obtained.

(xii) According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been no  ced or reported 

during the year.

For R. Kothari & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

                     Manoj Kumar Sethia

Place : Kolkata  Partner 

Date : 30th May, 2015  Membership No. 064308
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)

 S.N.  PARTICULARS  NOTE NO. 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

 I  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 (1) Shareholders’ Funds 

  (a) Share Capital 3  8,159.66  8,159.66 

  (b) Reserves and Surplus 4  (1,323.66)  4,923.63 

 6,836.00  13,083.29 

 (2) Non-Current Liabili  es 

  (a) Long-Term Borrowings 5  23,606.20  7,860.54 

  (b) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 6  -    -   

 23,606.20  7,860.54 

 (3) Current Liabili  es 

  (a) Short-Term Borrowings 7  9,861.48  15,786.57 

  (b) Trade Payables 8  15,214.58  16,533.69 

  (c) Other Current Liabili  es 9  3,923.92  6,713.56 

 28,999.98  39,033.82 

 Total  59,442.18  59,977.65 

 II  ASSETS 

 (1) Non-Current Assets 

 (a)  Fixed Assets 

   (i) Tangible Assets 10  18,528.87  19,480.44 

   (ii) Intangible Assets 10  5.91  10.47 

   (iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 11  42.89  42.89 

 18,577.67  19,533.80 

 (b)  Non Current Investments 12  5.00  -   

 (c)  Long-Term Loans and Advances 13  175.07  24.45 

 18,757.74  19,558.25 

 (2) Current Assets 

  (a) Inventories 14  12,027.95  12,561.28 

  (b) Trade Receivables 15  23,468.06  19,316.26 

  (c) Cash and Bank Balances 16  938.20  2,608.47 

  (d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 17  3,651.25  5,581.84 

  (e) Other Current Assets 18  598.99  351.55 

 40,684.45  40,419.40 

Total  59,442.19  59,977.65 

SigniÞ cant Accoun  ng Policies 2

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director
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Statement of ProÞ t & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)

S.N. PARTICULARS NOTE NO. 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

I INCOME

Revenue from Opera  ons (Gross) 19  52,302.13  70,549.22 

Less: Excise Duty  1,721.94  747.01 

Revenue from Opera  ons (Net)  50,580.19  69,802.21 

 II Other Income 20  304.77  629.68 

 III Total Revenue (I + II)  50,884.96  70,431.89 

 IV EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed 21  16,965.86  20,327.11 

Purchases of Stock-In-Trade 22  23,849.09  40,774.44 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in 

Progress 

23  252.43  104.92 

Employee BeneÞ ts Expense 24  478.67  437.23 

Finance Costs 25  3,033.65  3,596.47 

Deprecia  on and Amor  sa  on Expense 10  863.76  1,177.00 

Other Expenses 26  11,585.14  10,594.47 

Total Expenses (IV)  57,028.60  77,011.64 

V PROFIT/#LOSS$ BEFORE TAX (III-IV)  (6,143.64)  (6,579.75)

VI Tax Expenses 

Current Tax  -    -   

Less : MAT Credit en  tlement  -    -   

Net Current Tax  -    -   

Earlier Years Tax  -    3.64 

Deferred Tax  -    (1,097.87)

VII PROFIT/#LOSS$ FOR THE YEAR   (6,143.64)  (5,485.52)

Earning Per Equity Share (Nominal Value of Share - ` 

10/-) Basic & Diluted (`)

38  (7.53)  (7.47)

Summary of SigniÞ cant Accoun  ng Policies 2

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the Þ nancial statements 

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)

Year Ended

31st March, 2015

Year Ended

31st March, 2014

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net ProÞ t Before Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items  (6,143.65)  (6,579.75)

Adjustments for : 

Deprecia  on  863.76  1,177.00 

Finance costs  2,689.94  3,596.47 

Interest Received  (190.47)  (152.73)

Sundry Balances Wri# en Back  -    (59.50)

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -    -   

 3,363.23  4,561.24 

Opera  ng ProÞ t before Working Capital Changes  (2,780.42)  (2,018.51)

Adjustments for : 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  533.32  3,189.25 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  (4,151.79)  (4,668.75)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances  1,793.04  (530.60)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (247.45)  637.66 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (4,022.28)  1,196.43

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabili  es  1,334.73 (765.17)

 (4,760.43)  (941.18)

Cash generated from opera  ons  (7,540.85)  (2,959.69)

Direct Tax Paid  (13.07)  (134.58)

Net Cash from Opera  ng Ac  vi  es   (7,553.92)  (3,094.27)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (11.27)  (241.06)

(including Capital Work-in-Progress and Advances) 

Investment in Joint Venture  (5.00)  -   

Interest Income  190.47  152.73 

Maturity Proceeds of Fixed Deposits  1,851.14  4,902.50 

Purchase of Fixed Deposits with Banks  -    (4,234.95)

Net Cash used in Inves  ng Ac  vi  es   2,025.34  579.22 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of Shares  -    2,825.00 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  (4,758.24)  7,267.63 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  12,324.99  (2,552.38)

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (402.13)  (1,360.41)

Share Issue Expenses  -    (9.47)

Finance Costs  (1,455.18)  (3,611.46)

Net Cash from Financing Ac  vi  es  5,709.44  2,558.90

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  180.88  43.86 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 

(Refer Note No.16 to the Accounts)

 59.81  15.96 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

(Refer Note No.16 to the Accounts)

 240.69  59.82 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015 (Contd.)

Notes:    

i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accoun  ng Standard 3 (AS-3), 

“Cash Flow Statements”.    

ii) Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an 

original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisi  on) that are readily conver  ble into known amounts of cash 

and which are subject to insigniÞ cant risk of changes in value.

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2015

NOTE 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Impex Ferro Tech Ltd., “ the Company” is domiciled in India and was incorporated in June, 1995 under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 1956. The Company has its registered o!  ce situated in Kolkata and manufacturing facility at Kalyaneshwari, 

Burdwan, West Bengal. The Company is primarly engaged in manufacture of Ferro Alloys (Ferro-Manganese/Silico Manganese), 

trading in iron & steel products. As a part of backward integra  on, the Company have a power plant.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1  Basis of prepara  on of Financial Statements

 (a)  The Þ nancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accoun  ng Principles 

in India ( Indian GAAP). These Þ nancial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with applicable 

accoun  ng principles in India, the applicable Accoun  ng Standards prescribed under Sec  on 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.  The Þ nancial statements have been prepared on 

an accrual basis and under the historical cost conven  on. The accoun  ng policy adopted in the prepara  on of Þ nancial 

statements are consistent with those used in previous year except for the change in accoun  ng policy with regard to 

deprecia  on on Fixed Assets. 

 (b)  All assets and liabili  es have been classiÞ ed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal opera  ng cycle and 

other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the   me between 

acquisi  on of assets for processing and their realisa  on in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its 

opera  ng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classiÞ ca  on of assets and liabili  es. 

 (c)   Transac  ons and balances with values below the rounding o"  norms adopted by the Company have been reß ected as 

“0.00” in the relevant notes in these Þ nancial statements.

2.2 Use of Es  mates

 The prepara  on of the Þ nancial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accoun  ng Principles requires that 

the management makes es  mates and assump  ons that a" ect the reported amounts of assets and liabili  es, disclosure of 

con  ngent liabili  es as at the date of the Þ nancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 

reported period. Actual results could di" er from those es  mates.

2.3  Revenue Recogni  on

 (a)   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic beneÞ ts will ß ow to the Company and revenue 

can be reliably measured.

 (b)  Sales are recognised when signiÞ cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually 

on delivery of the goods. The Company collects Sales Taxes and Value Added Taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, 

therefore are not economic beneÞ ts ß owing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Sales are recognised 

net of trade discounts, rebates, sales taxes and excise du  es . 

 (c)  Export Incen  ves arising out of Export Sales under Duty En  tlement Pass Book Scheme/Duty Drawback are accounted for 

on accrual basis. ProÞ t or Loss on sale of DEPB Licenses is accounted for in the year of such sale.

 (d)  Interest income is recognised on a   me propor  on basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable 

interest rate. Interst income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of proÞ t and loss.

 (e)   Purchases are inclusive of freight and net of CENVAT/Duty Credit, trade discount and claims.

2.4 Tangible Assets, Intangible Assets and Capital Work-in-Progress

 a)  Tangible Þ xed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated deprecia  on and impairment, if any. The cost of acquisi  on 

comprises purchase price inclusive of du  es (net of Cenvat), taxes, incidental expenses, erec  on/commissioning/trial run 

expenses and interest etc, up to the date the assets are ready for intended use. Machinery spares which can be used only 

in connec  on with an item of tangible Þ xed assets and whose use, as per technical assessment, is expected to be irregular, 
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2015

are capitalized and depreciated over the residual life of the respec  ve assets. Subsequent expenditure related to an item 

of tangible Þ xed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future beneÞ ts from the exis  ng asset beyond its 

previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on exis  ng tangible Þ xed assets, including day-to-day 

repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of proÞ t and loss for the 

period during which such expenses are incurred. 

 (b)  Intangible assets are stated at acquisi  on cost, net of accumulated amor  sa  on and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any. Computer so$ ware not being part of hardware opera  ng system are capitalised as intangible asset. 

 (c)  Deprecia  on on Þ xed asset is calculated on the straight line method at the rates prescribed under Schedule II to the 

Companies Act, 2013. Deprecia  on on assets added/disposed o"  during the year is provided on prorata basis with 

reference to the date of addi  on/disposal. So$ ware is amor  sed over a period of Þ ve years. 

 (d)  The carrying amount of Þ xed assets is assessed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indica  on of impairment based 

on internal/external factors, an impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of a Þ xed asset exceeds the 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the Þ xed asset’s net selling price and value in use, which is 

determined by the present value of the es  mated future cash ß ows. 

 (e)  Cost of the Þ xed assets not ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet date together with all related expenses is 

shown as Capital Work-in-progress/Intangible Assets under Development. 

2.5 Inventories

 Raw materials and Stores, Spares & Consumables are valued at lower of cost (computed on First In First Out basis) and net 

realisable value.Goods under Process and Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes 

direct materials, labour cost and a propor  on of manufacturing overheads based on normal opera  ng capacity. Cost of 

Þ nished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on average basis. Saleable scrap, scrap usable as raw materials and by-

products are valued at es  mated net realisable value. Net realisable value is the es  mated selling price in the ordinary course 

of business, less es  mated costs of comple  on and es  mated costs necessary to make the sale. 

2.6 Investments 

 Long Term Investment are valued at cost. Provision is made for diminu  on in value to recognize a decline, if any other than of 

temporary in nature. 

2.7  Foreign Currency Transla  on

 (a)  Ini  al Recogni  on

  Foreign currency transac  ons are recorded in the repor  ng currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the repor  ng currency and the foreign currency as at the date of the transac  on.

 (b)   Conversion

  Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 

historical cost denominated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transac  on.

 (c)  Exchange Di& erences

  Exchange di" erences arising on the se# lement of monetary items are recognised as income or as expense in the year in 

which they arise. 

 (d)  Forward Exchange Contracts 

 The Company enters into Forward Exchange Contracts which are not intended for trading or specula  on purposes. The 

premium or discount arising at the incep  on of forward exchange contracts is amor  sed as expense or income over the life 

of the contract. Exchange di" erences on such contracts are recognised in the statement of proÞ t and loss in the year in which 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

 the exchange rates change. Any proÞ t or loss arising on cancella  on or renewal of foreign exchange contract is recognised as 

income or expense for the year. 

2.8 Government Grants 

 Government Grants are recognized on a prudent basis when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply 

with the condi  ons a# ached thereto and the grants will be received.  

 Government grants in the form of promoters’ contribu  on is credited to capital reserve.  Capital grant rela  ng to speciÞ c assets 

is reduced from the gross value of the respec  ve Þ xed assets. Government grants related to revenue are recognized by credit 

over the period to match them on a systema  c basis to the costs, which it intended to compensate. 

2.9 Re  rement and other Employee BeneÞ ts

 (a)   DeÞ ned Contribu  on Plan: 

  Contribu  on as per the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 towards provident fund and 

family pension fund are charged to the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss of the period when contribu  ons to the respec  ve 

funds are due. There is no other obliga  on other than the contribu  on payable to the respec  ve funds.

 (b)  DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Plan:

  Liability with regard to long-term employee beneÞ ts is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valua  on at the Balance 

Sheet date. Actuarial gain / loss is recognised in the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss. The Company has an Employees Gratuity 

Fund managed by the SBI Life Insurance Company Limited.

 (c)   Short-term compensated absences are provided for based on es  mates.

2.10 Borrowing Costs

 (a)  Borrowing cost includes interest, amor  sa  on of ancillary costs incurred in connec  on with the arrangement of borrowings 

and exchange di" erences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to 

the interest cost.  Borrowing costs that are directly a# ributable to the acquisi  on, construc  on or produc  on of qualifying 

assets are capitalised for the period un  l the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily 

takes substan  al period of   me to get ready for its intended use.

 (b)  Other Borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2.11 Expenditure on New Projects & Substan  al Expansion

 Preliminary project expenditure, capital expenditure, indirect expenditure incidental and related to construc  on/ 

implementa  on, interest on term loans to Þ nance Þ xed assets and expenditure on start-up of the project are capitalised upto 

the date of commercial produc  on to the cost of the respec  ve assets. 

2.12 Taxes on Income

 (a)  Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

 (b)  Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authori  es, computed in accordance with the 

applicable tax rates and tax laws. In case of tax payable as per provisions of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under Sec  on 

115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961, deferred MAT Credit en  tlement is separately recognised under the head ‘ Short Term 

Loans and Advances’. Deferred MAT Credit En  tlement is recognised and carried forward only if there is a reasonable 

certainty of it being set o"  against regular tax payable within the s  pulated statutory period.

 (c)  Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the considera  on of prudence, on   ming di" erences, being the di" erence between 

taxable income and accoun  ng income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 

periods. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

 (d)  Deferred Tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proÞ ts will be available against which 

temporary di" erences can be u  lised. If the Company has carry forward unabsorbed deprecia  on and tax losses, deferred 

tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty backed by convincing evidence that such deferred tax assets 

can be realised against future taxable proÞ ts. Unrecognised deferred tax assets of earlier periods are re-assessed and 

recognised to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which 

such deferred tax assets can be realised.   

2.13 Earnings per Share (EPS)

 (a)   Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net proÞ t or loss for the year a# ributable to equity shareholders by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

 (b)  For the purpose of calcula  ng diluted earnings per share, the net proÞ t or loss for the year a# ributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the e" ects of all 

dilu  ve poten  al equity shares. 

2.14 Prior Period Items

 SigniÞ cant items of income and expenditure which relate to prior accoun  ng periods, other than those occasioned by events 

occurring during or a$ er the close of the year and which are treated as relatable to the current year, are accounted for in the 

Statement of ProÞ t and Loss under the head “Prior Period Items”.

2.15 Provisions/Con  ngencies

 (a)   Provision involving substan  al degree of es  ma  on in measurement is recognised when there is a present obliga  on as a 

result of past events and it is probable that an ou' low of resources will be required to se# le the obliga  on, in respect of 

which a reliable es  mate can be made.

 (b)   Con  ngent Liabili  es are shown by way of notes to the accounts in respect of obliga  ons where, based on the evidence 

available, their existence at the Balance Sheet date is considered not probable.

 (c)  Con  ngent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the Þ nancial statements.

2.16 Preliminary & Share Issue Expenses

 As the future economic beneÞ t of Preliminary & Public issue expenses is not ascertainable & thus the same is adjusted with the 

share premium.

2.17 Segment Repor  ng

 (a) The accoun  ng policies adopted for segment repor  ng are in conformity with the accoun  ng policies adopted for the 

prepara  on and presen  ng the Þ nancial statements of the Company as a whole. Further, Inter Segment revenue has been 

accounted for based on the transac  on price agreed to between segments which is primarily market based.

 b)  Revenue and expenses have been iden  Þ ed to segments on the basis of their rela  onship to the opera  ng ac  vi  es of 

the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a 

reasonable basis, have been included under “Un-allocated corporate expenses net of un-allocated income”. 

2.18 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash and Cash Equivalents as indicated in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of cash in hand, cash at bank and short-term 

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.19 Excise Duty & Custom Duty

 Excise duty is accounted for at the point of manufacture of goods and accordingly is considered for valua  on of Þ nished goods 

stock lying in the factories as on the Balance Sheet date. Similarly, Customs duty on imported materials in transit/lying in 

bonded warehouse is accounted for at the   me of import/bonding of materials
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(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

8,25,00,000 (P.Y. 8,25,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  8,250.00 8,250.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

8,15,96,604 (P.Y. 8,15,96,604) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up.  8,159.66 8,159.66

(a) Reconcilia  on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor  ng period

Equity Shares 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Nos. Amt (` in Lacs) Nos. Amt (` in Lacs)

At the Beginning of the Period  8,15,96,604  8,159.66  6,74,71,604  6,747.16 

Issued During the Period  -    -    1,41,25,000  1,412.50 

At the End of the Period  8,15,96,604  8,159.66  8,15,96,604  8,159.66 

(b) Terms/Rights a' ached to Equity Shares     

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having  a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is en  tled to one vote per 
share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 
of the share holders in the ensuing Annual General Mee  ng. However, no dividend has been proposed by the Board for the current year.
In the event of liquida  on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be en  tled to receive remaining assets of the Company a$ er 
distribu  on of all preferen  al amount. The distribu  on will be in propor  on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding

Suanvi Trading & Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.  1,50,73,046 18.47  1,50,73,046 18.47

Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.  1,06,00,000 12.99  1,06,00,000 12.99

Poddar Mech-Tech Services Pvt. Ltd.  1,06,33,750 13.03  1,06,33,750 13.03

Invesco Finance Pvt. Ltd.  1,08,71,250 13.32  1,08,71,250 13.32

Note : As per the CDR Package approved by the CDR EG (Refer Note No. 27) on 10th November, 2014, the Company has during 
the year received unsecured loan amoun  ng to ` 1,267 Lacs which is to be converted to equity by 30th September, 2015. The 
conversion price will be determined in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requiremnets) Regula  ons.

(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve - As per last account    

- State Capital Subsidy  278.62  278.62 

- Forfeiture of Share Warrants  133.80  133.80 

 412.42  412.42 

Securi  es Premium Account    

At the beginning of the accoun  ng period  4,613.17  3,210.14 

Addi  ons during the year  -    1,412.50 

 4,613.17  4,622.64 

Share Issue / Preliminary Expenses wri# en o"   -    (9.47)

At the end of the accoun  ng period  4,613.17  4,613.17 

Surplus (Balance in the Statement of ProÞ t & Loss)    

Balance as per last Financial Statement  (101.95)  5,383.57 

ProÞ t for the year  (6,143.65)  (5,485.53)

Adjusted for Deprecia  on rela  ng to Fixed Assets (Tangible) (Refer Note Below)  (103.67)  -   

Closing Balance  (6,349.27)  (101.97)

Total  (1,323.66)  4,923.63 

Note: Transi  onal provision provided in Note 7(b) of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 an amount of ` 103.67 Lacs has been 

adjusted in the opening balance of retained earnings in respect of assets having no useful life as on 1st April, 2014.
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(` in Lacs)

Non-current por  on Current Maturi  es

31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loans

Loan from Banks

Restructured Term Loans  2,209.66  1,177.30  -    1,434.49 

Funded Interest Term Loans  1,221.48  -    -    -   

Working Capital Term Loans  12,324.99  -    -    -   

Loans from Related Party (Refer Note 37)

From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)  1,335.50  -    -    -   

From Directors & Promoters (Unsecured)  357.00  -    -    -   

Other Loans & Advances

From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)  6,157.56  6,683.24  -    -   

 23,606.20  7,860.54  -    1,434.49 

The above amount includes

Secured Borrowings  15,756.13  1,177.30  -    1,434.49 

Unsecured Borrowings  7,850.06  6,683.24  -    -   

Amount disclosed under the head - "Other Current Liabili  es" 

(Refer Note 8)

 -    -    -    (1,434.49)

 23,606.20  7,860.54  -    -   

(A) Terms of Repayment     

(I) Term Loans

Terms of Repayment Nature of 

Securi  es

Interest Rate (p.a.) Loan Amount as at 

31st March 2015

Restructured Term Loans

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 0.71 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 1.42 Crores in 2017-18, ` 2.36 Crores in 2018-19, ` 2.84 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 3.07 Crores in 2020-21, ` 3.31 Crores in 

2021-22, ` 4.26 Crores in 2022-23, ` 5.67 Crores in 2023-24.

See note below 11.75% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a$ er comple  on of 

2 years)

 2,209.66 

Funded Interest Term Loans

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 2.66 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 3.66 Crores in 2017-18, ` 4.49 Crores in 2018-19, ` 5.32 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 5.66 Crores in 2020-21, ` 5.49 Crores in 

2021-22, ` 4.99 Crores in 2022-23, ` 1.00 Crores in 2023-24.

11.25% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a$ er comple  on of 

2 years)

1,221.48

Working Capital Term Loans-I

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 4.80 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 6.59 Crores in 2017-18, ` 8.09 Crores in 2018-19, ` 9.59 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 10.19 Crores in 2020-21, ` 9.89 Crores in 

2021-22, ` 8.99 Crores in 2022-23, ` 1.80 Crores in 2023-24.

11.25% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a$ er comple  on of 

2 years) 

5,995.00

Working Capital Term Loans-II

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 5.06 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 6.96 Crores in 2017-18, ` 8.55 Crores in 2018-19, Rs 10.13 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 10.76 Crores in 2020-21, ` 10.44 Crores 

in 2021-22, ̀  9.50 Crores in 2022-23, ̀  1.90 Crores in 2023-24.

11.25% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a$ er comple  on of 

2 years) 

6,329.99
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Terms of Repayment Nature of 

Securi  es

Interest Rate (p.a.) Loan Amount as at 

31st March 2015

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Contd.)

Unsecured Loans from Bodies Corporates

a)  Repayable a$ er 30th June, 2023

N.A.

 Interest Free  5,849.86 

b) Promoter’s Contribu  on received under CDR out of 

which ` 12.67 Crores to be converted into equity by 30th 

September, 2015.

 Interest Free  1,285.50 

c)  Others 12%-13%  714.70 

(II) Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) :      

 Upon implementaion of the CDR Package (Refer Note 27), the overdrawn por  on of the Cash Credit Accounts of the Company 

has been carved out into separate Working Capital Term Loans (WCTL).     

(III) Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) :     

 Upon implementaion of the CDR Package (Refer Note 27), funding of interest has been provided for: 

 - Interest on exis  ng term loans for a period of 24 months from the Cut-O"  Date i.e from May 01, 2014 to April 30, 2016;

 - Interest on WCTL for a period of 24 months from the Cut-O"  Date i.e from May 01, 2014 to April 30, 2016.  

(IV) Details of Security 

 (i) In terms of the CDR package, Rupee Term Loans , Working Capital Term Loans, Funded Interest Term Loans and Working

Capital Loan (Refer Note 27) are pooled together and secured as under:     

  a) First pari-passu charge on Þ xed assets by way of equitable mortgage of the land & building/shed along with all movable 

and immovable plant & machinery and other Þ xed assets thereon at Kalyaneshwari, Dist.: Burdwan, West Bengal.

  b) First pari-passu charge on the en  re Current Assets of the Company comprised of stock of raw materials, semi Þ nished 

and Þ nished goods and book debts, outstanding moneys, receivables, both present and future pertaining to the 

Company’s manufacturing units/divisions at Kalyaneshwari, Dist.: Burdwan, West Bengal. 

  c) Collateral Security of equitable mortgage on o!  ce space at 35, C. R. Avenue, Kolkata is standing in the name of the 

Company on pari passu basis. 

  d) Addi  onal Security of Equitable mortgage of two ß oors at the Corporate o!  ce of the group at SKP House, 132A, S.P. 

Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 026 standing in the name of Marble Arch Proper  es Pvt Ltd on pari passu basis.   

  e) Personal guarantee of Promoters/Director - Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni, Mr. Rohit Patni, &  Mr. Ankit Patni. 

  f) Further, the restructured facili  es has been secured by pledge of en  re promoter & promoter group stake in Company 

(in Demat Form), represen  ng 66.71% of paidup capital of Company.     

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)

Deferred Tax Liability

- Di" erence in WDV as per Companies Act and Income Tax Act  1,319.20  1,310.07 

Deferred Tax Asset

- Related to Unabsorbed Deprecia  on  (1,007.03)  (317.43)

- Related to Unabsorbed Business Loss  (3,269.71)  (992.64)

Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)  (2,957.54) -

Note: Net Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) of ` 2,957.54 Lacs as at 31st March 2015 has not been recognized in the accounts as a ma# er 

of prudence and in terms of the accoun  ng policy indicated in Note no. 2.12 above.      

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 7 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Loan guaranteed by Promoters & Directors

   Working Capital Loans from Banks (Secured)

       Rupee Loans  9,861.48  15,786.57 

 9,861.48  15,786.57 

Details of Security :

(a) Pari pasu 1st charge on all movable & immovable assets of the Company, both present & future which is pooled and charges 

thereon created to secure all the facili  es of the Company which will rank pari pasu with the other lenders. All the aforesaid 

facili  es will  also be secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni,  Mr. Rohit Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni. 

(b) Working Capital facili  es from banks carries interest of 11.75% p.a. (Linked to MI base rate), subject to reset of every year.

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 8 TRADE PAYABLES

Acceptances  2,143.77  8,161.74 

Sundry creditors for goods, services etc.  13,070.82 11,075.12

 15,214.58 19,236.86

a)  There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 

45 days as at 31st March, 2015. This informa  on as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such par  es have been iden  Þ ed on the basis of informa  on 

available with the Company.      

b) The trade payble includes ` 2,774.06 Lacs (P.Y. ` 1,687.02) due to related par  es (Refer Note No. 37)   

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Current Maturi  es of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 5)  -    1,434.49 

 Interest accrued and due on Borrowings  66.73  53.46 

 Advance from Customers  3,576.80  2,146.55 

 Other Payables 

 For Statutory Dues  61.17  140.36 

 For Capital Goods   147.72  190.55 

 For Accrued Expenses  71.50 44.97

 3,923.92 4,010.38
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(` in Lacs)

Par  culars

Tangible Assets Intangible 

Assets

Freehold 

Land

Building Plant & 

Machinery

Furniture & 

Fixtures

Vehicles O)  ce 

Equipments

Others Total ERP 

So% ware

Gross Block

As at 1st April, 

2013

 183.36  3,881.03  19,975.85  36.56  27.63  11.16  14.73  24,130.32  26.90 

Addi  ons  -    4.03  284.98  0.98  -    2.93  2.85  295.77  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Adjustments  -   

   - Borrowing Costs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2014

 183.36  3,885.05  20,260.83  37.54  27.62  14.09  17.58  24,426.06  26.90 

Addi  ons  -    3.18  6.62  0.74  -    0.11  0.62  11.27  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2015

 183.36  3,888.23  20,267.45  38.28  27.62  14.20  18.20  24,437.34  26.90 

Deprecia  on & 

Amor  sa  on

As at 1st April, 

2013

 -    577.88  3,155.07  15.78  17.00  3.03  5.23  3,773.98  11.05 

Charge for the year  -    129.33  1,034.49  2.36  2.62  2.00  0.83  1,171.62  5.38 

Deduc  ons / 

Adjustments

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2014

 -    707.21  4,189.55  18.12  19.62  5.03  6.06  4,945.63  16.43 

Charge for the year  -    120.02  716.38  8.99  5.76  5.24  2.82  859.21  4.56 

Transfer to 

Retained Earnings

-  -    100.16  -    -    0.03  3.48  103.67  -   

Deduc  ons / 

Adjustments

 -   - - - - - -  -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2015

 -    827.23  5,006.09  27.11  25.38  10.30  12.36  5,908.47  20.99 

Net Block

As at 31st March, 

2014

 183.36  3,177.85  16,071.28  19.41  7.99  9.06  11.51  19,480.43  10.47 

As at 31st March, 

2015

 183.36  3,061.00  15,261.36  11.17  2.24  3.90  5.84  18,528.87  5.91 

Notes:         

a) Gross Block of ̀  103.67 Lacs on account of assets whose useful life is already exhausted as at April 01, 2014 have been adjusted 

against the opening balance of proÞ t & loss account pursuant to adop  on of es  mated useful life of Þ xed assets as s  pulated 

by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

b) Deprecia  on for the year would have been lower by ` 322 Lacs, if the Company would have con  nued to charge deprecia  on 

as per previous method.         

NOTE 10 FIXED ASSETS
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(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 11 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

At the beginning of the year  42.89  54.20 

Add  : Incurred during the year  -    51.05 

Less : Capitalised during the year  -    62.36 

At the end of the year  42.89  42.89 

Capital work-in-progress includes Pre Opera  ve Expenses rela  ng to project under implementa  on, pending alloca  on to Fixed 

Assets.

Opening Balance  8.25  17.53 

Add : Expenditure incurred during the period 

Cost of Materials Consumed  -    16.16 

Vehicle Hire Charges  -    0.25 

Total  -    16.41 

Amount allocated to Fixed Assets  -    25.69 

Closing Balance  8.25  8.25 

NOTE 12 NON - CURRENT INVESTMENT

 Investment in Joint Venture (Refer Note No. 35)

 SKP Minning Pvt. Ltd. 5.00 -

 50,000 Shares (P.Y. Nil) (Unquoted, fully paid up) (Face Value - ` 10)

5.00 -

NOTE 13 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 (Unsecured, Considered good) 

 Capital Advances [Refer Note No. 28 (B)]  137.16  -   

 Security Deposits  37.91  24.45 

 175.07  24.45 

NOTE 14 INVENTORIES

 (As taken, valued and cer  Þ ed by the management)

 Raw Materials [includes in transit ` 460.72 Lacs (P.Y.- ` 695.34 Lacs)]  8,491.20  8,915.05 

 Work-In-Progress  2,750.13  3,205.91 

 Finished Goods  568.50  365.14 

 Stores & Spares  210.64  69.30 

 Packing Material  7.48  5.87 

 12,027.95  12,561.27 

NOTE 15 TRADE RECEIVABLES

 (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

 Debts outstanding for a period exceeding  six months from the date they

 are due for payment 

13,753.25  5,639.47 

 Other Debts 9,714.82  13,676.80 

 23,468.07  19,316.27 

Note: The trade receivable includes ` 1,463.70 Lacs (P.Y. ` 0.25 Lacs) due to related par  es (Refer Note No. 37)
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31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 16 CASH & BANK BALANCES

 i) Cash & Cash Equivalents

 (A)   Cash-in-Hand (as Cer  Þ ed)  28.91  32.25 

 (B)   Balance with Banks 

   In Current Accounts   211.78  27.56 

 240.69  59.81 

ii) Other Bank Balances 

 - Term Deposits with Banks   697.52  2,548.66 

    (includes ` 77.05 Lacs (P.Y. ` 490.83 Lacs) having maturity greater than 12 

    months)

 697.52  2,548.66 

Total  938.20  2,608.47 

Notes :

a) Term Deposits with Banks include :      

 - Interest accrued but not due amoun  ng to  ` NIL (P.Y. ` 185.39 Lacs)  

b) Term Deposits amoun  ng to ` 690 Lacs (P.Y. ` 2,548.66 Lacs) have been pledged as margin money against Le# er of Credit and 

Bank guarantee facili  es. 

NOTE 17 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

 (Unsecured, considered good) 

 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 

  To Related Par  es (Refer Note No. 37)  -    163.31 

  To others  2,244.10  3,832.25 

 Balance with Central Excise & CENVAT Receivable  975.43  1,236.18 

 VAT Credit Receivable/Refundable  173.12  104.56 

 Income Tax Payments   65.31  52.24 

 MAT Credit En  tlement   193.30  193.30 

 3,651.25  5,581.84 

Note : Income Tax Payments include ` 21.42  Lacs (P.Y. - ` 21.42 Lacs) seized pursuant to search and seizure opera  on conducted 

by the Income Tax authori  es on 5th January, 2004.       

NOTE 18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 (Unsecured, considered Good) 

 Other Current Assets (Refer Note below)   65.20  -   

 Interest Refundable under CDR  137.95  -   

 Incen  ves Receivable  395.84  351.04 

 Forward Contract Receivable  -    0.51 

 598.99  351.55 

Note : Other current assets include ` 35.79 Lacs paid towards TDS demand for the period from F.Y 2007-08 to 2013-14, which is 

subject to assessment & reconcilia  on of Þ gures for the aforesaid  years.

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 19   REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (GROSS)

 Sale of Products 

 Sale of Manufactured Goods - Ferro Alloys  24,802.98  24,307.84 

 Sale of Raw Materials  

  Manganese Ore  2,484.70  2,115.54 

  Coal & Coke  24.45  359.17 

  Others  -    -   

 Sale of Traded Goods  

  Iron and Steel Products  24,026.05  42,714.23 

 Other Opera  ng Revenues 

 Export Incen  ves  963.95  1,052.44 

 52,302.13  70,549.22 

NOTE 20 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

  - On Fixed Deposits  190.47  152.73 

Foreign Exchange Fluctua  on Gain  25.55  289.75 

Liabili  es Wri# en Back  -    59.50 

Sale of Scrap  46.10  68.33 

Commision Income  42.65  59.36 

 304.77  629.67 

NOTE 21 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

 (Including cost of raw material sold)

 Raw materials at the beginning of the year  8,582.59  11,388.04 

 Add : Purchases  16,866.44  17,521.65 

    25,449.02  28,909.69 

 Less : Raw materials at the end of the year  8,483.16  8,582.59 

 16,965.86  20,327.10 

 Details of Raw Materials Consumed 

 Manganese Ore  13,158.14  16,505.25 

 Coal and Coke  3,118.36  3,336.26 

 Dolomite  16.42  54.22 

 Others  672.95  431.37 

 16,965.86  20,327.10 

NOTE 22  PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

 Iron and Steel Products  23,849.09  40,774.44 

 23,849.09  40,774.44 
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31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 23 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS

 Ferro Alloys 

 Opening Stock  

    Finished Goods  365.14  746.26 

    Work-in-Progress  3,205.91  2,929.72 

 3,571.06  3,675.98 

 Less: Closing Stock 

    Finished Goods  568.50  365.14 

    Work-in-Progress  2,750.13  3,205.91 

 3,318.63  3,571.05 

 252.43  104.93 

NOTE 24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 Salaries, Wages & Bonus   435.98  400.88 

 Contribu  on to Provident & Other Funds  35.35  32.80 

 Sta"  Welfare Expenses  7.34  3.56 

 478.67  437.24 

NOTE 25 FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expense  2,689.94  3,062.05 
Other Borrowing Costs  343.71  534.42 

 3,033.65  3,596.47 

NOTE 26 OTHER EXPENSES

 Consump  on of Stores and Spare Parts [Refer Note No. (c) below & 30(b)]  768.57  347.39 

 Packing Materials  62.77  64.38 

 Power [Refer Note No. (a) below & Note No. 28 A (d)]  8,848.28  8,394.13 

 Rent  6.52  5.83 

 Rates & Taxes  7.01  3.99 

 Repairs & Maintenance 

  -  Building  15.50  20.56 

  - Plant and Machinery  17.95  32.44 

  - Others  5.04  22.45 

 Insurance   36.98  59.23 

 Material Handling Expenses  305.06  125.19 

 Vehicle Hire & Maintenance Charges  119.10  239.14 

 Directors' Si&  ng Fees  1.25  0.65 

 Auditors' Remunera  on [Refer Note No. (b) below]  5.99  7.85 

 Travelling & Conveyance  18.59  7.96 

 Commission  10.25  16.58 

 Legal & Professional Charges  70.38  50.99 

 Security Charges  108.36  109.10 

 Miscellaneous Expenses  60.30  124.02 

 Rebates and Discounts  23.05  27.66 

 Freight & Forwarding  1,067.63  864.36 

 Tes  ng Charges  26.57  15.20 

 Loss on sale of DEPB  -    54.32 

 Penalty  -    1.06 

 11,585.14  10,594.48

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 26 OTHER EXPENSES (Contd.)

a) Power includes following expenses incurred on the Opera  on of Cap  ve Power Plant 

Cost of Materials Consumed - Coal, Coke and Dolochar
    Inventory at the beginning of the year  332.47  617.58 
    Add: Purchases during the year  0.31  1,108.27 
    Less: Transferred to Ferro alloys division  (324.74)  -   
    Less: Inventory at the end of the year  8.04  332.47 
Consump  on  -    1,393.38 
Consump  on of Stores and Spares  3.13  74.09 
 Repairs & Maintenance 
  -  Building  1.50  5.23 
  -  Plant and Machinery  11.45  113.20 
  -  Others  0.94  1.09 
 Material Handling Expenses  -    25.93 
 Vehicle Hire & Maintenance Charges  1.86  43.67 
 Legal & Professional Charges  -    4.43 
 Security Charges  -    4.86 
 Miscellaneous Expenses  0.15  1.68 
  19.04  1,667.56 

b) Auditor’s Remunera  on

i)  As Auditor [includes Tax Audit fees of ` 0.80 Lacs (P.Y. ` 0.65 Lacs)]  4.74  5.00 

ii) For other services  1.25  2.85 
 5.99  7.85 

c) Consump  on of Stores and Spares includes ̀  531.75 Lacs towards cost of Electrode Carbon Paste which were previously classiÞ ed 

under the head Consump  on of Raw Materials.

NOTE 27 CORPORATE DEBT RESTRUCTURING

 As a part of its Þ nancial revival process, the lenders of the Company have already approved the Corporate Debt Restructuring 

of debts. CDR EG vide its le# er dated 10th November, 2014 has approved the loan restructuring scheme for the Company. The 

CDR Package includes reliefs/measures such as reduc  on in interest rates, funding of interest, rearrangement of securi  es etc.

The salient features of which are as follows : 

 a) Cut o"  date for implementa  on: 30th April, 2014 and upon implementa  on, the Þ nancial e" ect thereof has duly been 

taken into accounts. The said accounts are subject to conÞ rma  on and reconcilia  on with the Lenders. The reported 

Þ nancials would have consequen  al impact once the reconcilia  on is completed, the quantum where of remains 

unascertained. 

 b)  Waiver of liquidated damages/compounding interest/penal interest for the period from 30th April, 2014   ll implementa  on 

of the CDR package.     

 c)    Restructuring of exis  ng loans into Restructured Term Loans, conversion of irregular por  on of working capital facili  es into 

Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) of ` 12,324 Lacs and crea  on of Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) of ` 3,328 Lacs from 

interest on Restructured Term Loan and Working Capital Term Loan for the period from 1st May, 2014 to 30th April, 2016.

 d)    Restructuring of exis  ng fund based and non fund based Þ nancial facili  es.     

 e)  Rate of interest on Term Loans/WCTL/FITL would be reset a$ er comple  on of 2 years and rate of interest on working 

capital would be reset every year.     

 f)  The op  on of selling o"  the 30 MW CPP or part thereof may be explored and considered with prior approval of the lenders 

and the CDR EG to liquidate the bank’s dues.     

 g)  The CDR Package as well as the provisions of the Master Circular on Corporate Debt Restructuring issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India, gives a right to the CDR Lenders to get a recompense of their waivers and sacriÞ ces made as part of the 

CDR Proposal. The recompense payable by the Company is con  ngent on various factors, the outcome of which currently 

is materially uncertain and hence the propor  onate amount payable as recompense has been treated as a con  ngent 

liability. The aggregate present value of the outstanding sacriÞ ce made/to be made by CDR Lenders as per the CDR package 

is approximately ` 15,117 Lacs. 

 h) Contribu  on of ` 1,267 Lacs in the Company by the promoters in lieu of bank sacriÞ ces. The contribu  on is to be brought 

ini  ally in the form of unsecured loan and the same is to be converted into equity.   
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NOTE 28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

 Con  ngent Liabili  es not provided for in the books of accounts in respect of :      

 (a) Bills discounted with Banks outstanding as on 31st March, 2015 - ` 587.38 (Previous Year ` 881.72 Lacs ). 

 (b)  Excise Demand of ` 36.67 Lacs (Previous Year ` 36.67 Lacs) for the Þ nancial year 2005-06, 2006-07 & 2007-08 disputed in 

appeal. The Company has paid a sum of ` 20.92 Lacs (Previous Year ` 18.62 Lacs) under protest.

 (c) Sales Tax Demand disputed in appeal for the Financial year 2005-06, 2006-07, 2008-09 & 2009-10 aggregates to 

` 1,743.67 Lacs (Previous Year ` 3,019.76 Lacs). The Company has paid a sum of ` 88.62 Lacs (Previous Year ` 88.62 Lacs) 

under protest.

 (d)  Several Par  es including the Company have disputed the basis of levy of Fuel Surcharge in the electricity bills of Damodar 

Valley Corpora  on (DVC). Pending Þ nalisa  on of the outcome of the ma# er, an amount of ` 2,964.20 Lacs (Previous 

Year ` 2,991.99 Lacs) (a$ er considering waiver of electricity duty admi# ed by DVC) has not been provided for by the 

Company.  

 (e)  The Company has challenged the cons  tu  onal validity of Entry Tax levied by the Government of West Bengal w.e.f 1st 

April, 2012. In view of the stay granted by the Hon’ble High Court of Calcu# a, the Company has not provided for the same 

in the books of accounts amoun  ng to ` 272.51 Lacs.

 (f)  Rela  ng to Assessment year 2012-13, a demand of ` 1,606.46 Lacs was raised by Income Tax Department against which 

the Company has Þ led an applica  on to respec  ve department.

 (g)  Right to Recompense to CDR Lenders for the relief and sacriÞ ce extended, subject to provisions of CDR Guidelines, 

amoun  ng to ` 1,045 Lacs.    

(` in Lacs)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 29 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Foreign Exchange Earnings : 
F.O.B. Value of Exports  17,844.86  17,157.77 
CIF Value of Imports: 
Raw Materials  7,834.84  9,184.84 
Expenditure in Foreign Currency : 
Sales Commission  -    11.75 
Compensa  on  1.76  3.05 
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31.03.2015 31.03.2014

%  (` in Lacs)  %  (` in Lacs) 

NOTE 30 BREAK UP INTO IMPORTED & INDIGENEOUS

a) Cost of Materials Consumed :

 Indigenous 64.86  11,003.51 42.66  9,266.85 

 Imported 35.14  5,962.35 57.34  12,453.64 

100.00  16,965.86 100.00  21,720.49 

b) Stores, Spares & Consumables :

 Indigenous 100  771.70 100.00  421.49 

 Imported  -    -    -    -   

100.00  771.70 100.00  421.49 

NOTE 31 AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE / PAYABLE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

(a)  Forward contracts/hedging instruments outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are ` Nil. (P.Y. ` NIL).

(b)  Par  culars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at 31st March, 2015 are as follows :   

Par  culars Currency 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Amount payable in foreign currency USD Lacs  5.66  0.21 

Amount receivable in foreign currency USD Lacs  7.45  7.60 

NOTE 32

In the opinion of the management, current and non-current assets have a value on realisa  on in the ordinary course of business 

at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the accounts. Adequate provisions have been made for all known losses 

and liabili  es.

NOTE 33

Certain balances of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables and Advances are subject to conÞ rma  on and reconcilia  on.   

NOTE 34 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The disclosures of Employee BeneÞ ts as deÞ ned in Accoun  ng Standard – 15 are given below : 

DeÞ ned Contribu  on Plan :

Contribu  on to DeÞ ned Contribu  on Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under :

  Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Employer’s Contribu  on to Provident and Other Funds  26.60  21.59 

DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Plan :

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a deÞ ned beneÞ t plan. The present value of obliga  on is determined 

based on the actuarial valua  on using the Projected Unit Credit Method as on 31st March, 2015, which recognises each period of 

service as giving rise to addi  onal unit of employee beneÞ t en  tlement and measures each unit separately to build up the Þ nal 

obliga  on.  

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs) 

Par  culars Gratuity (Funded)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 34 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

(i) Reconcilia  on of Opening and Closing Balances of the present value of  

DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Obliga  on:

 DeÞ ned BeneÞ t obliga  on at beginning of the year  36.86  22.78 

 Current Service Cost  7.92  6.61 

 Interest Cost  2.85  1.82 

 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  3.06  5.82 

 BeneÞ ts paid  (2.48)  (0.16)

 DeÞ ned BeneÞ t obliga  on at the year end  48.20  36.86 

(ii) Reconcilia  on of Opening and Closing Balances of fair value of Plan Assets:

 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year  56.60  32.34 

 Expected return on plan assets  5.05  2.91 

 Actuarial Gain/(Loss)  0.01  0.13 

 Employers’ contribu  on  15.07  21.39 

 BeneÞ ts paid  (2.48)  (0.16)

 Fair value of plan assets at the year end  74.26  56.60 

 Actual return on plan assets  5.07  3.04 

(iii) Reconcilia  on of fair value of assets and obliga  on:

 Fair value of plan assets  74.26  56.60 

 Present value of obliga  on  48.20  36.86 

 Amount recognised as (liability)/asset in Balance Sheet  26.05  19.74 

(iv) Expenses recognised during the year in the Statement of ProÞ t & Loss: 

 Current Service Cost  7.92  6.61 

 Interest Cost  2.85  1.82 

 Expected return on plan assets  (5.05)  (2.91)

 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  3.04  5.69 

 Net Cost (recognised in "Contribu  on to Provident & Other Funds" under 

Note No. 24)

 8.75  11.21 

(v) Break-up of Plan Assets as a percentage of total plan assets:

 Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%

(vi) Actuarial Assump  ons:

 Mortality Table (IAL) IALM 2006-08

ULTIMATE

IALM 2006-08

ULTIMATE

 Discount rate (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

 Expected return on plan assets (per annum) 8.93% 9.00%

 Rate of escala  on in salary (per annum) 10%F5Y & 6%TA 10%F5Y & 6%TA

(vii)  Other Disclosures 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Obliga  on  48.20  36.86  22.78  20.50  17.51 

Plan Assets  74.26  56.60  32.34  25.09  21.01 

Surplus/(DeÞ cit)  26.05  19.74  9.56  4.59  3.50 

Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabili  es  (3.10)  (5.81)  (3.37)  (1.67)  (3.50)

The es  mates of rate of escala  on in salary considered in actuarial valua  on, take into account inß a  on, seniority, promo  on and 

other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. 

The discoun  ng rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms consistent with the 

currency in terms of the post employment beneÞ t obliga  ons. 

The above informa  on is cer  Þ ed by an Actuary.   
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The Company has the following investment, in a jointly controlled en  ty: 

Name of the en  ty : SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd.

Country of Incorpora  on : India 

Percentage of ownership interest : 50% as at 31st March, 2015 

Percentage of ownership interest :  NIL as at 31st March, 2014

The Company’s interest in this Joint Venture is reported as Non-current Investment (Refer Note No. 12) and is stated at cost (net of 

provision for other than temporary diminu  on in value). The Company’s share of each of the assets, liabili  es, income, expenses, 

etc (each without elimina  on of the e" ect of transac  ons between the Company and the Joint Venture) related to its interest in 

this joint venture, based on the audited Þ nancial statements are :                                                                                                
(` in Lacs)

Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

a) Assets : Current Assets  159.78  -   

b) Liabili  es : Current Liabili  es  160.45  -   

c) Income :  0.16  -   

d) Expenses :  10.83  -   

NOTE 36 SEGMENT REPORTING

Business Segments: The Company is mainly engaged in the business segment of manufacture & sale of Ferro Alloys, Trading in Iron 

& Steel and Genera  on of Power.

Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Segment Revenue

 Ferro Alloys  26,554.14  27,087.98 

 Iron and Steel  24,026.05  42,714.23 

 Power  -    1,199.13 

 50,580.19  71,001.34 

 Less: Inter Segment Revenue  -    (1,199.13)

Total  50,580.19  69,802.21 

Segment Results (ProÞ t before Finance Cost & Tax)

 Ferro Alloys  (2,865.09)  (3,626.65)

 Iron and Steel  176.96  1,939.78 

 Power  (421.86)  (1,296.42)

Total  (3,109.99)  (2,983.29)

Finance Costs  3,033.65  3,596.47 

ProÞ t before tax  (6,143.65)  (6,579.77)

Less: Tax Expenses  -    (1,094.23)

ProÞ t a% er tax  (6,143.65)  (5,485.53)

NOTE 35 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE
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Other Informa  on                                                                                                                                                                                    (` in Lacs)

Assets Liabili  es
Capital 

Expenditure
Deprecia  on

Non-cash

Expenses (other 

than Deprecia  on)

For the Financial Year 2014-15

 Ferro Alloys 23,622.76 15,984.96  11.27  460.94  -   

 Iron and Steel  20,610.38  3,086.80  -    -    -   

 Power 14,950.42  -    -    402.82  -   

 Unallocated  258.64  -    -    -    -   

Total  59,442.19 19,071.77  11.27  863.76  -   

For the Financial Year 2013-14

 Ferro Alloys  24,077.01  7,831.12  165.94  349.01  -   

 Iron and Steel  19,676.36  13,243.55  -    -    -   

 Power  16,224.29  492.56  180.88  827.99  -   

 Unallocated  -    245.54  -    -    -   

Total  59,977.65  21,812.76  346.82  1,177.00  -   

Geographical segments: The Company’s secondary geographical segments have been iden  Þ ed based on the loca  on of customers 

and are disclosed based on revenues within India and revenues outside India. Secondary segment assets are based on the loca  on 

of such assets. 

 Segment 

Revenue(Based 

on Loca  on of 

Customers) 

 Segment 

Assets(Based 

on Loca  on of 

Assets) 

 Capital 

Expenditure 

Within India
 Year ended 31.03.2015  31,164.87  58,969.79  11.27 

 Year ended 31.03.2014  52,271.50  59,510.48  346.82 

Outside India
 Year ended 31.03.2015  19,415.32  472.40  -   

 Year ended 31.03.2014  17,530.71  467.17  -   

Total
Year ended 31.03.2015  50,580.19  59,442.19  11.27 

 Year ended 31.03.2014  69,802.21  59,977.65  346.82 

NOTE 37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

(i)  Name of the related par  es where control exists irrespec  ve of whether transac  ons have occurred or not 

 (a) Enterprise on which the Company has control : SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd. - Joint Venture    

 (b) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni,  Managing Director

      Mr. Ankit Patni, Director  

      Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh,  Execu  ve Director  

      Mr. Sanjeet Kr. Gupta, Chief Financial O!  cer 

      Ms. Richa Agarwal, Company Secretary   

 (c)  Rela  ves of Key Managerial Personnel:   Mr. Rohit Patni  

      Mrs. Sarita Patni   

 (d) En    es/Individuals owning directly or indrectly an interest in the vo  ng power that gives them control : 

  Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd.  

  Relybulls Deriva  ves & Commodi  es Pvt. Ltd.     

  SKP Power Ventures Ltd.     

  SKP Avia  on Services Ltd.     

  A. B. Infratel Pvt. Ltd.     

  SBM Steels Pvt. Ltd.     

  Gajkarna Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.     
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NOTE 37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Contd.)

  Gajavakra Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.     

  Gannath Commerce Pvt. Ltd.     

  Mahabala Merchants Pvt. Ltd.     

  Marble Arch Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.     

  Narmada River Resources Pvt. Ltd.       

 (e)  Enterprises owned or signiÞ cantly inß uenced by the Key Managerial Personnel or their rela  ves:    

  Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.     

  Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.     

  Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.     

  Suanvi Trading & Investment Co Pvt. Ltd.     

  Shreyansh LeaÞ n Pvt. Ltd.     

  SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.     

  Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.     

  Whitestone Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.     

  Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.     

(ii)  Transac  ons with related par  es referred to above, in ordinary course of the business, are as under:

(` in Lacs) 

Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Managerial Remunera  on 

Suresh Kumar Patni  12.00  12.00 

Sa  sh Kumar Singh  9.00  6.00 

Purchase of Goods

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  3,142.25  1,135.91 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  723.89  2,537.06 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  6,376.83  7,278.94 

SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.  -    305.53 

Purchases of Capital Goods

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  12.97  37.26 

Sales of Finished Goods

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  3,389.56  6,168.09 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  1,115.72  1,474.70 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  2,904.62  6,696.58 

Purchase of DEPB Licence

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  35.99  16.91 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  10.21  -   

Sale of DEPB Licence

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  249.83  12.54 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  12.41  18.66 

Share Applica  on Money received and Shares alloted*

Invesco Finance Pvt.Ltd  -    790.00 

Suanvi Trading & Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd  -    718.00 

Whitestone Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.  -    490.00 

(*Includes conversion of Loans)
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Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Contd.)

Si(  ng Fees

Mr. Ankit Patni  0.27  -   

Unsecured Loan

Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.  1,335.50  -   

Suresh Kumar Patni  112.00  -   

Rohit Patni  100.00  -   

Ankit Patni  145.00  -   

Advances Given

SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.  -    163.31 

Advances Given, Refunded Back

SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.  163.31 -

Outstanding Balances as at 31.03.2015

Trade Receivable

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  95.30  0.25 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  1,368.40  -   

Trade Payable

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  -    -   

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  -    671.59 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  2,774.06  1,015.43 

Investment In Equity Shares

SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd.  5.00  -   

Unsecured Loan

Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.  1,285.50  -   

Suresh Kumar Patni  112.00  -   

Rohit Patni  100.00  -   

Ankit Patni  145.00  -   

Advances Given

SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.  -    163.31 

Transac  ons with related par  es have been disclosed for the period of existence of rela  onship. Previous year transac  ons with 

par  es that have ceased to be related par  es in the current year have been excluded in above details as the rela  onship did not 

exist.

(` in Lacs)
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Par  culars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

NOTE 38 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year  8,15,96,604  7,34,31,193 

Number of Shares Considered as weighted average shares and poten  al shares 

outstanding for calcula  on of Diluted Earnings Per Share

 8,15,96,604  7,34,31,193 

ProÞ t/(Loss) a$ er Tax a# ributable to Equity Shareholders (` in Lacs)  (6,143.65)  (5,485.52)

Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares (`) 10 10

Earnings Per Share (Basic) (`)  (7.53)  (7.47)

Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (`)  (7.53)  (7.47)

Note: Pursuant to CDR package, the Company has received unsecured loans amoun  ng to ̀  1,267 Lacs from promoters & promoter 

companies as promoter contribu  on to be converted into equity by September 30, 2015 at such prices as will be determined in 

accordance to SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regula  ons. Pending approval and determina  on of price by SEBI, 

the same has not been considered in the calcula  on of diluted EPS for the year.    

NOTE 39

The opera  ons of the Company are severely impacted by weak steel industry scenario and lack of demand for Company’s Þ nished 

product. The Company has incurred loss a$ er tax of ̀  6,143.65 Lacs and accumulated loss as on 31st March, 2015 is ̀  6,349.26 Lacs 

which is in excess of 50% of the net worth of the Company. 

As a part of its Þ nancial revival process, the lenders of the Company has already approved CDR package (as referred in note no. 27 

above). The Company has con  nuous support from the promoters and has put in place measures for revival and cost reduc  on.

Considering the above ini  a  ve of the Company and given the overall posi  on of steel industry in India, the Þ nancial statements 

have been prepared under Going Concern basis. 

NOTE 40

The Company has not made any remi# ance in foreign currencies on account of dividend during the year and does not have infor-

ma  on as to the extent to which remi# ance in foreign currencies on account of dividends have been made on behalf of non-resi-

dent shareholders. 

NOTE 41

Previous year’s Þ gures have been reworked, re-grouped, re-arranged and reclassiÞ ed, wherever considered necessary. Accordingly 

amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year Þ nancial Statements and 

are to be read in rela  on to the amounts and other disclosures rela  ng to the current year. 

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director
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To

The Members of

Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED (“the Company”), and a 

jointly controlled en  ty which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, the Consolidated Statement of 

ProÞ t and Loss and the Consolidated Cash ß ow statement for the year ended on that date, and a summary of signiÞ cant accoun  ng 

policies and other explanatory informa  on (herein a! er referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the ma" er stated in Sec  on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to 

the prepara  on of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated Þ nancial posi  on, 

consolidated  Þ nancial performance and consolidated cash ß ows of the Company including its jointly controlled en  ty in accordance 

with the accoun  ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Accoun  ng Standards speciÞ ed under Sec  on 133 of 

the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accoun  ng records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and its jointly controlled 

en  ty for preven  ng and detec  ng frauds and other irregulari  es; selec  on and applica  on of appropriate accoun  ng policies; 

making judgments and es  mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa  on and maintenance of adequate 

internal Þ nancial controls, that were opera  ng e# ec  vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun  ng records 

relevant to the prepara  on and presenta  on of the Þ nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. While conduc  ng audit, 

we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accoun  ng and audi  ng standards and ma" ers which are required to be 

included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi  ng speciÞ ed under sec  on 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the Þ nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Consolidated 

Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the Company’s prepara  on and fair presenta  on of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

the e# ec  veness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evalua  ng the appropriateness of accoun  ng policies 

used and the reasonableness of the accoun  ng es  mates made by management, as well as evalua  ng the overall presenta  on of 

the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report 

referred in the “Other Ma" er” paragraph below is su$  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, and to the best of our informa  on and according to the explana  ons given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated 

Financial Statements give the informa  on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the accoun  ng principles generally accepted in India:
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(a)  In the case of consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of a# airs of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty as at March 31, 

2015;

(b)  In the case of Consolidated Statement of ProÞ t and Loss, of the Loss of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty for the 

year ended on that date; and

(c)  In the case of consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty for the year 

ended on that date.

Emphasis of Ma! er

1. Without Qualifying we draw your a" en  on to Note No.26 of the consolidated Þ nancial results, rela  ng to CDR Package. The CDR 

Package of the Company has been sanc  oned vide LOA dated 10th November, 2014. Pursuant to the said LOA, implementa  on 

of CDR policy is completed and the e# ect thereof has been given in these accounts with respect to the CDR scheme as per the 

said LOA. The said accounts are subject to conÞ rma  on and reconcilia  on with the Lenders. The reported Þ nancials would 

have consequen  al impact once the reconcilia  on is completed, the quantum where of remains unascertained.

2. Without Qualifying we draw your a" en  on to the Note No 38 of the Consolidated Financial Statement which indicates that as 

at March 31st 2015, the accumulated losses amoun  ng to ` 6,354.60 Lacs has substan  ally eroded net worth of the company, 

indica  ng the existence of a material uncertainty about the company’s ability to con  nue as a going concern. These Þ nancial 

results have been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note.

Other Ma! er

We did not audit the Þ nancial statements/Þ nancial informa  on of jointly controlled en  ty, whose Financial Statements reß ect total 

assets of ` 159.77 Lacs as at March 31, 2015, total revenues of ` 0.15 Lacs and net cash inß ows amoun  ng to ` 159.61 Lacs for the 

year then ended, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These Financial Statements/Þ nancial informa  on have 

been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the jointly controlled en  ty and 

our report in terms of sub-sec  ons (3) and (11) of Sec  on 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled 

en  ty, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 

modiÞ ed in respect of this ma" er with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2015 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 

of subsec  on (11) of the sec  on 143 of the Act, based on the auditors’ report of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty, 

we give in the annexure a statement on the ma" ers speciÞ ed in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by sec  on 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:

 a. We have obtained all the informa  on and explana  ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 

the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements;

 b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law rela  ng to prepara  on of Consolidated Financial Statements 

have been kept so far as it appears from our examina  on of those books;

 c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated  Statement of ProÞ t and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow 

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 

the Consolidated Financial Statements;

 d. In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accoun  ng Standards speciÞ ed under sec  on 133 

of the Companies Act, 2013; read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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 e. On the basis of wri" en representa  ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2015, and taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty is disqualiÞ ed as on March 31, 

2014, from being appointed as a director in terms of sec  on 164(2) of the Act.

 f. With respect to the other ma" ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa  on and according to the explana  ons given 

to us:

  i. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending li  ga  ons on the consolidated Þ nancial posi  on 

of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty in the Consolidated Financial Statements- Refer Note 27 (b) to (f) to its 

Consolidated Financial Statements.

  ii. The Company and its jointly controlled en  ty have no material foreseeable losses for which the provision under the 

applicable law or accoun  ng standards needs to be made.

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor Educa  on and 

Protec  on fund.

For R. Kothari & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

                    Manoj Kumar Sethia

Place: Kolkata   Partner 

Date: 30.05.2015   Membership No.064308
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of even date to 

the members of IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED on the accounts of the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty for the year ended 

31st March 2015. On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the informa  on and explana  ons 

given to us during the course of our audit, we report that: 

(i) (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full par  culars, including quan  ta  ve details and situa  on, of Þ xed 

assets. 

 (b) All Þ xed assets were physically veriÞ ed by the management during the year in accordance with a planned program of 

verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 

nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were no  ced on such veriÞ ca  on.

(ii) (a) The inventory, except goods-in-transit has been physically veriÞ ed by the management during the year. In respect of 

inventory lying with the third par  es, these have substan  ally been conÞ rmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of 

such veriÞ ca  on is reasonable.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the procedures of physical veriÞ ca  on of 

stocks followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in rela  on to the size of the Company and the nature of 

its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the Company is maintaining proper records 

of inventory.  The discrepancies no  ced on veriÞ ca  on between the physical stocks and the book records were not material 

having regard to the size of the opera  ons of the Company and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of 

account.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, Þ rms or other par  es listed in the register 

maintained under Sec  on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (iii) (a) and (b) of the said Order 

are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, there is an adequate Internal Control System 

commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventories and Þ xed assets 

and for the sale of goods and services. Further, on the basis of our examina  on of the books and records of the Company, 

and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any 

con  nuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system.

(v) The Company and its jointly controlled en  ty has not accepted any deposits from the public and consequently, the direc  ves 

issued by Reserve Bank of India and provisions of Sec  on 73 to Sec  on 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 

there under are not applicable. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of manufacture of Iron & Steel product 

& Power genera  on unit pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under 

Sec  on 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the records have been maintained.  

We have not however made a detailed examina  on for the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate and 

complete.

(vii)  (a)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us and on the basis of our examina  on of the books of account, 

the Company has been regularly deposited undisputed amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income -Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess, Professional Tax, and other 

Statutory Dues during the year with appropriate authori  es. However, there have been delays in few cases.

 (b)  According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, there are no dues of Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Wealth Tax, Excise 

Duty and Cess which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2015 with the appropriate authori  es on account of any 

dispute except the following cases which are as follows:
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Name of the 

statute

Nature of Dues Financial Year  `/Lacs Forum where Dispute is Pending

Central Excise 

Act, 1994
Excise Duty

2005-06 12.36 Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals) (III)

2005-06 and 

2006-07

8.26 CESTAT, Calcu" a Bench

2006-07 0.5 Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals) (IV)

2007-08 15.55 CESTAT, Calcu" a Bench

Total 36.67  ` 20.92 Lacs paid under protest

Central Sales 

Tax and Local 

Sales Tax Act

VAT

2005-06 304.13 WBCT, Appellate and Revisional Board

2006-07 479.91 WBCT, Appellate and Revisional Board

2008-09 748.45 WBCT, Appellate and Revisional Board

2009-10 211.18 Sr. Joint Commissioner of Commercial taxes

Total 1,743.67 ` 88.62 Lacs paid under protest

W.B. Entry Tax 

Act

Entry Tax 2012-13 and 

2013-14

272.51 Hon’ble High Court of Calcu" a

Total  272.51 ` NIL paid under protest

Income Tax 

Act, 1961

Income Tax 2011-12 1606.46 Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals), Kolkata

 1606.46 ` NIL paid under protest

 c)  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa  on and Protec  on Fund by the 

company. 

(viii) The accumulated losses at the end of the Þ nancial year are not less than Þ ! y percent of its net worth and the company and 

its jointly controlled en  ty has incurred cash losses during the Þ nancial year covered by our audit and in the immediately 

preceding Þ nancial year.

(ix) Based on our audit procedures and on the informa  on and explana  ons given by the management, we are of the opinion that 

the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty has not defaulted in repayment of dues to the Þ nancial ins  tu  ons or banks.

(x) The Company and its jointly controlled en  ty have not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or Þ nancial 

ins  tu  ons during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, the term loan have been applied for the purpose 

they were obtained.

(xii) According to the informa  on and explana  ons given to us, no fraud on or by the Company and its jointly controlled en  ty has 

been no  ced or reported during the year.

For R. Kothari & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

                     Manoj Kumar Sethia

Place: Kolkata   Partner 

Date: 30.05.2015   Membership No.064308
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)

 S.N.  PARTICULARS  NOTE NO. 31.03.2015

 I  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 (1) Shareholders’ Funds 

  (a) Share Capital 3  8,159.66 

  (b) Reserves and Surplus 4  (1,329.00)

 6,830.66 

 (2) Non-Current Liabili" es 

  (a) Long-Term Borrowings 5  23,606.20 

  (b) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 6  -   

 23,606.20 

 (3) Current Liabili" es 

  (a) Short-Term Borrowings 7  9,941.67 

  (b) Trade Payables 8  15,214.58 

  (c) Other Current Liabili  es 9  3,923.95 

 29,080.20 

 Total  59,517.08 

 II  ASSETS 

 (1) Non-Current Assets 

 (a)  Fixed Assets 

   (i) Tangible Assets 10  18,528.87 

   (ii) Intangible Assets 10  5.91 

   (iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 11  42.89 

 18,577.67 

 (b)  Long-Term Loans And Advances 12  175.07 

 18,752.74 

 (2) Current Assets 

  (a) Inventories 13  12,027.95 

  (b) Trade Receivables 14  23,468.06 

  (c) Cash and Bank Balances 15  1,018.01 

  (d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 16  3,651.25 

  (e) Other Current Assets 17  599.07 

 40,764.35 

Total  59,517.08 

SigniÞ cant Accoun  ng Policies 2

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director
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Statement of ProÞ t & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)

S.N. PARTICULARS NOTE NO. 31.03.2015

I INCOME

Revenue from Opera  ons (Gross) 18  52,302.13 

Less: Excise Duty  1,721.94 

Revenue from Opera  ons (Net)  50,580.19 

 II Other Income 19  304.85 

 III Total Revenue (I + II)  50,885.04 

 IV EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed 20  16,965.86 

Purchases of Stock-In-Trade 21  23,849.09 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress 22  252.43 

Employee BeneÞ ts Expense 23  478.67 

Finance Costs 24  3,033.65 

Deprecia  on and Amor  sa  on Expense 10  863.76 

Other Expenses 25  11,590.56 

Total Expenses (IV)  57,034.02 

V PROFIT/#LOSS$ BEFORE TAX (III-IV)  (6,148.98)

VI Tax Expenses 

Current Tax  -   

Less : MAT Credit en  tlement  -   

Net Current Tax  -   

Earlier Years Tax  -   

Deferred Tax  -   

VII PROFIT/#LOSS$ FOR THE YEAR   (6,148.98)

Earning Per Equity Share (Nominal Value of Share - ` 10/-) Basic & Diluted (`) 37  (7.54)

Summary of SigniÞ cant Accoun  ng Policies 2

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director

Annual Report 2014-15 91



Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)

Year Ended

31st March, 2015

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net ProÞ t Before Tax & Extra-Ordinary Items (6,148.98)

Adjustments for : 

Deprecia  on  863.76 

Finance costs  2,689.94 

Interest Received  (190.47)

Sundry Balances Wri" en Back  -   

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  -   

 3,363.23 

Opera" ng ProÞ t before Working Capital Changes  (2,785.75)

Adjustments for : 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  533.32 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  (4,151.79)

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and Advances  1,793.04 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets  (247.52)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  (4,022.28)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabili  es  1,334.76 

 (4,760.47)

Cash generated from opera" ons  (7,546.22)

Direct Tax Paid  (13.07)

Net Cash from Opera" ng Ac" vi" es   (7,559.29)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (11.27)

(including Capital Work-in-Progress and Advances) 

Investment in Joint Venture  -   

Interest Income  190.47 

Maturity Proceeds of Fixed Deposits  1,774.61 

Purchase of Fixed Deposits with Banks  -   

Net Cash used in Inves" ng Ac" vi" es   1,953.81 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of Shares  -   

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings  (4,678.05)

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  12,324.99 

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (402.13)

Share Issue Expenses  -   

Finance Costs  (1,455.18)

Net Cash from Financing Ac" vi" es  5,789.63 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  184.15 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 

(Refer Note No.15 to the Accounts)

 59.81 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

(Refer Note No.15 to the Accounts)

 243.96 
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015 (Contd.)

Notes:    

i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accoun  ng Standard - 3 (AS-

3), “Cash Flow Statements”  

ii) Cash comprises Cash-in-Hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an 

original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisi  on) that are readily conver  ble into known amounts of cash 

and which are subject to insigniÞ cant risk of changes in value  

iii) Since this is the Þ rst year of consolida  on, previous year Þ gure to this Financial Statement has not been given.  

For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director
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Notes to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2015

NOTE 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Impex Ferro Tech Ltd, “the Company” is domiciled in India and was incorporated in June, 1995 under the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 1956. The Company has its registered o$  ce situated in Kolkata and manufacturing facility at Kalyaneshwari, Burdwan, West 

Benagal. The Company is primarly engaged in  manufacture of Ferro Alloys (ferro-manganese/silico manganese), trading in iron & 

steel products. As a part of backward integra  on, the Company have a power plant.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1  Basis of prepara" on of Financial Statements

 (a)  The Financial Statements of the Company and its jointly controlled en    es (together the “Group”) have been prepared 

in accordance with Generally Accepted Accoun  ng Principles in India (Indian GAAP). These Financial Statements have 

been prepared to comply in all material aspects with applicable accoun  ng principles in India, the applicable Accoun  ng 

Standards prescribed under Sec  on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014.  The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost conven  on. 

The accoun  ng policy adopted in the prepara  on of Financial Statements are consistent with those used in previous year 

except for the change in accoun  ng policy with regard to deprecia  on on Fixed Assets. 

 (b)   All assets and liabili  es have been classiÞ ed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal opera  ng cycle and 

other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the   me between 

acquisi  on of assets for processing and their realisa  on in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its 

opera  ng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classiÞ ca  on of assets and liabili  es. 

 (c)   The following Joint Venture Company are considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Name of the En  ty Coutry of Incorpora  on 
% Ownership Interest

31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd. India 50.00 –

 (d)   Transac  ons and balances with values below the rounding o#  norm adopted by the Company have been reß ected as 

“0.00” in the relevant notes in these Financial Statements.

2.2 Principles of Consolida" on

 (a)  Interest in jointly controlled en    es have been consolidated by using the ‘propor  onate consolida  on’ method as per 

Accoun  ng Standard (AS) 27 - ‘Financial Repor  ng of Interests in Joint Ventures’ speciÞ ed under Sec  on 133 of Companies 

Act, 2013.

 (b)  The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared to the extent possible using uniform accoun  ng policies for like 

transac  ons and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to extent possible, in the same manner as the 

Company’s separate Financial Statements.

2.3 Use of Es" mates

 The prepara  on of the Financial Statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accoun  ng Principles requires that 

the management makes es  mates and assump  ons that a# ect the reported amounts of assets and liabili  es, disclosure of 

con  ngent liabili  es as at the date of the Financial Statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 

reported period. Actual results could di# er from those es  mates

2.4 Revenue Recogni" on

 (a)  Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic beneÞ ts will ß ow to the Company and revenue 

can be reliably measured.

 (b)  Sales are recognised when signiÞ cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually 

on delivery of the goods. The Company collects sales taxes and value added taxes (VAT) on behalf of the government and, 

therefore are not economic beneÞ ts ß owing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Sales are recognised 

net of trade discounts, rebates, sales taxes and excise du  es . 
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Notes to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2015

 (c) Export Incen  ves arising out of Export Sales under Duty En  tlement Pass Book Scheme/Duty Drawback are accounted for 

on accrual basis. ProÞ t or loss on sale of DEPB Licenses is accounted for in the year of such sale.

 (d)  Interest income is recognised on a   me propor  on basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable 

interest rate. Interst income is included under the head “other income” in the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss.

 (e) Purchases are inclusive of freight and net of CENVAT/Duty Credit, trade discount and claims. 

2.5 Tangible Assets, Intangible Assets and Capital Work-in-Progress

 a) Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated deprecia  on and impairment, if any. The cost of acquisi  on 

comprises purchase price inclusive of du  es (net of Cenvat), taxes, incidental expenses, erec  on/commissioning/trial run 

expenses and interest etc, up to the date the assets are ready for intended use. Machinery spares which can be used only 

in connec  on with an item of tangible Þ xed assets and whose use, as per technical assessment, is expected to be irregular, 

are capitalized and depreciated over the residual life of the respec  ve assets. Subsequent expenditure related to an item 

of tangible Þ xed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future beneÞ ts from the exis  ng asset beyond its 

previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on exis  ng tangible Þ xed assets, including day-to-day 

repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss for the 

period during which such expenses are incurred.

 (b) Intangible assets are stated at acquisi  on cost, net of accumulated amor  sa  on and accumulated impairment losses, if 

any. Computer so! ware not being part of hardware opera  ng system are capitalised as intangible asset.

 (c) Deprecia  on on Þ xed asset is calculated on the straight line method at the rates prescribed under Schedule II to the 

Companies Act, 2013. Deprecia  on on assets added/disposed o#  during the year is provided on prorata basis with 

reference to the date of addi  on/disposal. So! ware is amor  sed over a period of Þ ve years.

 (d)  The carrying amount of Þ xed assets is assessed at each balance sheet date. If there is any indica  on of impairment based 

on internal/external factors, an impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of a Þ xed asset exceeds the 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the Þ xed asset’s net selling price and value in use, which is 

determined by the present value of the es  mated future cash ß ows.

 (e)  Cost of the Þ xed assets not ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet date together with all related expenses is 

shown as Capital Work-in-progress/Intangible Assets under Development. 

2.6 Inentories 

 Raw materials and Stores, Spares & Consumables are valued at lower of cost (computed on First In First Out basis) and net 

realizable value. Goods under Process and Finished Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 

direct materials, labour cost and a propor  on of manufacturing overheads based on normal opera  ng capacity. Cost of 

Þ nished goods includes excise duty. Cost is determined on average basis. Saleable scrap, scrap usable as raw materials and by-

products are valued at es  mated net realizable value. Net realizable value is the es  mated selling price in the ordinary course 

of business, less es  mated costs of comple  on and es  mated costs necessary to make the sale. 

2.7 Investments

 Long Term Investment are valued at cost. Provision is made for diminu  on in value to recognize a decline, if any other than of 

temporary in nature.

2.8 Foreign Currency Transla" on

 (a)  Ini" al Recogni" on

  Foreign Currency Transac  ons are recorded in the repor  ng currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 

exchange rate between the repor  ng currency and the Foreign Currency as at the date of the transac  on.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

 (b)   Conversion

  Foreign Currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of 

historical cost denominated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transac  on.

 (c)  Exchange Di% erences

  Exchange di# erences arising on the se" lement of monetary items are recognised as income or as expense in the year in 

which they arise. 

 (d)  Forward Exchange Contracts 

  The Company enters into Forward Exchange Contracts which are not intended for trading or specula  on purposes. The 

premium or discount arising at the incep  on of forward exchange contracts is amor  sed as expense or income over the 

life of the contract. Exchange di# erences on such contracts are recognised in the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss in the year 

in which the exchange rates change. Any proÞ t or loss arising on cancella  on or renewal of foreign exchange contract is 

recognised as income or expense for the year. 

2.9 Government Grants 

 Government Grants are recognized on a prudent basis when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply 

with the condi  ons a" ached thereto and the grants will be received.  

 Government Grants in the form of promoters’ contribu  on is credited to capital reserve.  Capital grant rela  ng to speciÞ c 

assets is reduced from the gross value of the respec  ve Þ xed assets. Government Grants related to revenue are recognized by 

credit over the period to match them on a systema  c basis to the costs, which it intended to compensate. 

2.10 Re" rement and other Employee BeneÞ ts

 (a)   DeÞ ned Contribu" on Plan: 

  Contribu  on as per the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 towards provident fund and 

family pension fund are charged to the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss of the period when contribu  ons to the respec  ve 

funds are due. There is no other obliga  on other than the contribu  on payable to the respec  ve funds.

 (b)  DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Plan:

  Liability with regard to long-term employee beneÞ ts is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valua  on at the Balance 

Sheet date. Actuarial gain/loss is recognised in the Statement of ProÞ t and Loss. The Company has an Employees Gratuity 

Fund managed by the SBI Life Insurance Company Limited.

 (c)   Short-term Compensated Absences are provided for based on es  mates.

2.11 Borrowing Costs

 (a)  Borrowing cost includes interest, amor  sa  on of ancillary costs incurred in connec  on with the arrangement of borrowings 

and exchange di# erences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to 

the interest cost.  Borrowing costs that are directly a" ributable to the acquisi  on, construc  on or produc  on of qualifying 

assets are capitalised for the period un  l the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily 

takes substan  al period of   me to get ready for its intended use.

 (b)  Other Borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2.12 Expenditure on New Projects & Substan" al Expansion

 Preliminary project expenditure, capital expenditure, indirect expenditure incidental and related to construc  on/ 

implementa  on, interest on term loans to Þ nance Þ xed assets and expenditure on start-up of the project are capitalised upto 

the date of commercial produc  on to the cost of the respec  ve assets. 
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NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd.)

2.13 Taxes on Income

 (a)  Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

 (b)  Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authori  es, computed in accordance with the 

applicable tax rates and tax laws. In case of tax payable as per provisions of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under Sec  on 

115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 deferred MAT Credit en  tlement is separately recognised under the head ‘Short Term 

Loans and Advances’. Deferred MAT Credit En  tlement is recognised and carried forward only if there is a reasonable 

certainty of it being set o#  against regular tax payable within the s  pulated statutory period.

 (c)  Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to the considera  on of prudence, on   ming di# erences, being the di# erence between 

taxable income and accoun  ng income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 

periods.

 (d)  Deferred Tax Asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proÞ ts will be available against which 

temporary di# erences can be u  lised. If the Company has carry forward unabsorbed deprecia  on and tax losses, deferred 

tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty backed by convincing evidence that such deferred tax assets 

can be realized against future taxable proÞ ts. Unrecognised deferred tax assets of earlier periods are re-assessed and 

recognized to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against which 

such deferred tax assets can be realized.     

2.14 Earnings per Share (EPS)

 (a)  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net proÞ t or loss for the year a" ributable to equity shareholders by 

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

 (b)   For the purpose of calcula  ng diluted earnings per share, the net proÞ t or loss for the year a" ributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the e# ects of all 

dilu  ve poten  al equity shares. 

2.15 Prior Period Items

 SigniÞ cant items of income and expenditure which relate to prior accoun  ng periods, other than those occasioned by events 

occurring during or a! er the close of the year and which are treated as relatable to the current year, are accounted for in the 

Statement of ProÞ t and Loss under the head “Prior Period Items”.

2.16 Provisions/Con" ngencies

 (a)  Provision involving substan  al degree of es  ma  on in measurement is recognized when there is a present obliga  on as a 

result of past events and it is probable that an ou& low of resources will be required to se" le the obliga  on, in respect of 

which a reliable es  mate can be made.

 (b)  Con  ngent Liabili  es are shown by way of notes to the accounts in respect of obliga  ons where, based on the evidence 

available, their existence at the Balance Sheet date is considered not probable.

 (c)   Con  ngent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

2.17 Preliminary & Share Issue Expenses

 As the future economic beneÞ t of Preliminary & Public issue expenses is not ascertainable & thus the  same is adjusted with 

the share premium.

2.18 Segment Repor" ng

 (a) The accoun  ng policies adopted for segment repor  ng are in conformity with the accoun  ng policies adopted for the 

prepara  on and presen  ng the Financial Statements of the company as a whole. Further, Inter segment revenue has been 

accounted for based on the transac  on price agreed to between segments which is primarily market based.
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 b)  Revenue and expenses have been iden  Þ ed to segments on the basis of their rela  onship to the opera  ng ac  vi  es of 

the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a 

reasonable basis, have been included under “Un-allocated corporate expenses net of un-allocated income”. 

2.19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents as indicated in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of Cash-in-Hand, cash at bank and short-term 

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.20 Excise Duty & Custom Duty

 Excise duty is accounted for at the point of manufacture of goods and accordingly is considered for valua  on of Þ nished goods 

stock lying in the factories as on the Balance Sheet date. Similarly, customs duty on imported materials in transit/lying in 

bonded warehouse is accounted for at the   me of import/bonding of materials.

(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015

NOTE 3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

8,25,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  8,250.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

8,15,96,604 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up.  8,159.66 

(a) Reconcilia" on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor" ng period

Equity Shares 31.03.2015

Nos. Amt (` in Lacs)

At the Beginning of the Period  8,15,96,604  8,159.66 

Issued During the Period  -    -   

At the End of the Period  8,15,96,604  8,159.66 

(b) Terms/Rights a! ached to Equity Shares     

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having  a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is en  tled to one vote per 

share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval 

of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee  ng. However, no dividend has been proposed by the Board for the current year.

 In the event of liquida  on of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be en  tled to receive remaining assets of the Company a! er 

distribu  on of all preferen  al amount. The distribu  on will be in propor  on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder 31.03.2015

No. of Shares % holding

Suanvi Trading & Investment Co. Pvt. Ltd.  1,50,73,046 18.47

Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.  1,06,00,000 12.99

Poddar Mech-Tech Services Pvt. Ltd.  1,06,33,750 13.03

Invesco Finance Pvt. Ltd.  1,08,71,250 13.32

Note : As per the CDR Package approved by the CDR EG (Refer Note No. 26) on 10th November, 2014, the Company has during 

the year received unsecured loan amoun  ng to ` 1,267 Lacs which is to be converted to equity by 30th September, 2015. The 

conversion price will be determined in accordence with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requiremnets) Regula  ons.
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(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015

NOTE 4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve - As per last account    

- State Capital Subsidy  278.62 

- Forfeiture of Share Warrants  133.80 

 412.42 

Securi" es Premium Account    

At the beginning of the accoun  ng period  4,613.17 

Addi  ons during the year  -   

 4,613.17 

Share Issue/Preliminary Expenses wri" en o#   -   

At the end of the accoun  ng period  4,613.17 

Surplus (Balance in the Statement of ProÞ t & Loss)    

Balance as per last Financial Statement  (101.95)

ProÞ t/(Loss) for the year  (6,148.98)

Adjusted for Deprecia  on rela  ng to Fixed Assets (Tangible) (Refer Note Below)  (103.67)

Closing Balance  (6,354.60)

Total  (1,329.00)

Note: Transi  onal provision provided in Note 7(b) of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 an amount of ` 103.67 Lacs has been 

adjusted in the opening balance of retained earnings in respect of assets having no useful life as on 1st April, 2014.

(` in Lacs)

Non-current por" on

31.03.2015

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loans

Loan from Banks

Restructured Term Loans  2,209.66 

Funded Interest Term Loans  1,221.48 

Working Capital Term Loans  12,324.99 

Loans from Related Party (Refer Note 37)

From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)  1,335.50 

From Directors & Promoters (Unsecured)  357.00 

Other Loans & Advances

From Bodies Corporate (Unsecured)  6,157.56 

 23,606.20 

The above amount includes

Secured Borrowings  15,756.13 

Unsecured Borrowings  7,850.06 

Amount disclosed under the head - "Other Current Liabili  es" (Refer Note 8)  -   

 23,606.20 
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NOTE 5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Contd.)

(A) Terms of Repayment     

(I) Term Loans

Terms of Repayment Nature of 

Securi" es

Interest Rate (p.a.) Loan Amount as at 

31st March 2015

Restructured Term Loans

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 0.71 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 1.42 Crores in 2017-18, ` 2.36 Crores in 2018-19, ` 2.84 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 3.07 Crores in 2020-21, ` 3.31 Crores in 

2021-22, ` 4.26 Crores in 2022-23, ` 5.67 Crores in 2023-24.

See note below 11.75% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a! er comple  on of 

2 years)

 2,209.66 

Funded Interest Term Loans

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 2.66 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 3.66 Crores in 2017-18, ` 4.49 Crores in 2018-19, ` 5.32 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 5.66 Crores in 2020-21, ` 5.49 Crores in 

2021-22, ` 4.99 Crores in 2022-23, ` 1.00 Crores in 2023-24.

11.25% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a! er comple  on of 

2 years)

1,221.48

Working Capital Term Loans-I

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 4.80 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 6.59 Crores in 2017-18, ` 8.09 Crores in 2018-19, ` 9.59 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 10.19 Crores in 2020-21, ` 9.89 Crores in 

2021-22, ` 8.99 Crores in 2022-23, ` 1.80 Crores in 2023-24.

11.25% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a! er comple  on of 

2 years) 

5,995.00

Working Capital Term Loans-II

In equal quarterly installments of respec  ve years as 

follows star  ng from July, 2016. ` 5.06 Crores in 2016-17, 

` 6.96 Crores in 2017-18, ` 8.55 Crores in 2018-19, Rs 10.13 

Crores in 2019-20, ` 10.76 Crores in 2020-21, ` 10.44 Crores 

in 2021-22, ̀  9.50 Crores in 2022-23, ̀  1.90 Crores in 2023-24.

11.25% (Linked to 

MI Base Rate)

(subject to be reset 

a! er comple  on of 

2 years) 

6,329.99

Unsecured Loans from Bodies Corporates

a)  Repayable a! er 30th June, 2023

N.A.

 Interest Free  5,849.86 

b) Promoter’s Contribu  on received under CDR out of 

which ` 12.67 Crores to be converted into equity by 30th 

September, 2015.

 Interest Free  1,285.50 

c)  Others 12%-13%  714.70 

(II) Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) :      

 Upon implementaion of the CDR Package (Refer Note 26), the overdrawn por  on of the Cash Credit Accounts of the Company 

has been carved out into separate Working Capital Term Loans (WCTL).     

(III) Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) :     

 Upon implementaion of the CDR Package (Refer Note 26), funding of interest has been provided for: 

 - Interest on exis  ng term loans for a period of 24 months from the Cut-O#  Date i.e from May 01, 2014 to April 30, 2016;

 - Interest on WCTL for a period of 24 months from the Cut-O#  Date i.e from May 01, 2014 to April 30, 2016.  

(IV) Details of Security 

 (i) In terms of the CDR package, Rupee Term Loans, Working Capital Term Loans, Funded Interest Term Loans and Working

Capital Loan (Refer Note 26) are pooled together and secured as under:     

  a) First pari-passu charge on Þ xed assets by way of equitable mortgage of the land & building/shed along with all movable 

and immovable plant & machinery and other Þ xed assets thereon at Kalyaneshwari, Dist.: Burdwan, West Bengal.

(` in Lacs)
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NOTE 5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (Contd.)

  b) First pari-passu charge on the en  re Current Assets of the Company comprised of stock of raw materials, semi Þ nished 

and Þ nished goods and book debts, outstanding moneys, receivables, both present and future pertaining to the 

Company’s manufacturing units/divisions at Kalyaneshwari, Dist.: Burdwan, West Bengal. 

  c) Collateral Security of equitable mortgage on o$  ce space at 35, C. R. Avenue, Kolkata is standing in the name of the 

Company on pari passu basis. 

  d) Addi  onal Security of Equitable mortgage of two ß oors at the Corporate o$  ce of the group at SKP House, 132A, S.P. 

Mukherjee Road, Kolkata - 700 026 standing in the name of Marble Arch Proper  es Pvt Ltd on pari passu basis.   

  e) Personal guarantee of Promoters/Director - Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni, Mr. Rohit Patni, &  Mr. Ankit Patni. 

  f) Further, the restructured facili  es has been secured by pledge of en  re promoter & promoter group stake in Company 

(in Demat Form), represen  ng 66.71% of paidup capital of Company.     

The following amounts due during the year have been paid subsequent to the Balance Sheet date:

(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015

NOTE 6 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)

Deferred Tax Liability

- Di# erence in WDV as per Companies Act and Income Tax Act  1,319.20 

Deferred Tax Asset

- Related to Unabsorbed Deprecia  on  (1,007.03)

- Related to Unabsorbed Business Loss  (3,269.71)

Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)  (2,957.54)

Note: Net Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) of ` 2,957.54 Lacs as at 31st March, 2015 has not been recognized in the accounts as a ma" er 

of prudence and in terms of the accoun  ng policy indicated in Note no. 2.13 above.     

31.03.2015

NOTE 7 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Loan guaranteed by Promoters & Directors

   Working Capital Loans from Banks (Secured)

       Rupee Loans  9,861.48

   Unsecured Loans

       From Directors 0.20

       From Body Corporate 80.00

 9,941.67 

Details of Security :

(a) Pari pasu 1st charge on all movable & immpovable assets of the Company, both present & future which is pooled and charges 

thereon created to secure all the facili  es of the Company which will rank pari pasu with the other lenders. All the aforesaid 

facili  es will  also be secured by personal guarantee of Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni,  Mr. Rohit Patni and Mr. Ankit Patni. 

(b) Working Capital facili  es from banks carries interest of 11.75% p.a. (Linked to MI base rate), subject to reset of every year.

31.03.2015

NOTE 8 TRADE PAYABLES

Acceptances  2,143.77 

Sundry creditors for goods, services etc.  13,070.82 

 15,214.58 
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NOTE 8 TRADE PAYABLES (Contd.)

a)  There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 

45 days as at 31st March, 2015. This informa  on as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such par  es have been iden  Þ ed on the basis of informa  on 

available with the Company.      

b) The trade payble includes ` 2,774.06 Lacs due to related par  es (Refer Note No. 36)   

31.03.2015

NOTE 9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

 Current Maturi  es of Long Term Debts (Refer Note No. 5)  -   

 Interest accrued and due on Borrowings  66.73 

 Advance from Customers  3,576.80 

 Other Payables 

 For Statutory Dues  61.17 

 For Capital Goods   147.72 

 For Accrued Expenses  71.53 

 3,923.95 

Notes to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2015

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs)

Par" culars

Tangible Assets Intangible 

Assets

Freehold 

Land

Building Plant & 

Machinery

Furniture & 

Fixtures

Vehicles O&  ce 

Equipments

Others Total ERP 

So' ware

Gross Block

As at 1st April, 

2013

 183.36  3,881.03  19,975.85  36.56  27.63  11.16  14.73  24,130.32  26.90 

Addi  ons  -    4.03  284.98  0.98  -    2.93  2.85  295.77  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other Adjustments  -   

   - Borrowing Costs  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2014

 183.36  3,885.06  20,260.83  37.54  27.62  14.09  17.58  24,426.06  26.90 

Addi  ons  -    3.18  6.62  0.74  -    0.11  0.62  11.27  -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2015

 183.36  3,888.24  20,267.45  38.28  27.62  14.20  18.20  24,437.34  26.90 

Deprecia" on & 

Amor" sa" on

As at 1st April, 

2013

 -    577.88  3,155.07  15.78  17.00  3.03  5.23  3,773.98  11.05 

Charge for the year  -    129.33  1,034.49  2.36  2.62  2.00  0.83  1,171.62  5.38 

Deduc  ons / 

Adjustments

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2014

 -    707.21  4,189.56  18.14  19.62  5.03  6.06  4,945.60  16.43 

Charge for the year  -    120.02  716.38  8.99  5.76  5.24  2.82  859.21  4.56 

Transfer to 

Retained Earnings

 -    100.16  -    -    0.03  3.48  103.67  -   

Deduc  ons / 

Adjustments

 -    -    -   

As at 31st March, 

2015

 -    827.23  5,006.10  27.13  25.38  10.30  12.36  5,908.48  20.99 

Net Block

As at 31st March, 

2014

 183.36  3,177.85  16,071.27  19.40 8.00  9.06  11.52  19,480.46  10.47 

As at 31st March, 

2015

 183.36  3,061.00  15,261.35  11.15  2.24  3.90  5.84  18,528.87  5.91 

Notes:         

a) Gross Block of ̀  103.67 Lacs on account of assets whose useful life is already exhausted as at April 01, 2014 have been adjusted 

against the opening balance of proÞ t & loss account pursuant to adop  on of es  mated useful life of Þ xed assets as s  pulated 

by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

b) Deprecia  on for the year would have been lower by ` 322 Lacs, if the Company would have con  nued to charge deprecia  on 

as per previous method.         

NOTE 10 FIXED ASSETS

Notes to and forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2015
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(` in Lacs) 

31.03.2015

NOTE 11 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

At the beginning of the year  42.89 

Add  : Incurred during the year  -   

Less : Capitalised during the year  -   

At the end of the year  42.89 

Capital work-in-progress includes Pre Opera  ve Expenses rela  ng to project under implementa  on, pending alloca  on to Fixed 

Assets.

Opening Balance  8.25 

Add : Expenditure incurred during the period 

Cost of Materials Consumed  -   

Vehicle Hire Charges  -   

Total  -   

Amount allocated to Fixed Assets  -   

Closing Balance  8.25 

NOTE 12 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

 (Unsecured, Considered good) 

 Capital Advances  137.16 

 Security Deposits  37.91 

 175.07 

NOTE 13 INVENTORIES

 (As taken, valued and cer  Þ ed by the management)

 Raw Materials [includes in transit ` 460.72 Lacs]  8,491.20 

 Work-In-Progress  2,750.13 

 Finished Goods  568.50 

 Stores & Spares  210.64 

 Packing Material  7.48 

 12,027.95 

NOTE 14 TRADE RECEIVABLES

 (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

 Debts outstanding for a period exceeding  six months from the date they

 are due for payment 

13,753.25

 Other Debts 9,714.82

 23,468.06 

Note: The trade receivable includes ` 1,463.70 Lacs due to related par  es (Refer Note No. 36)
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31.03.2015

NOTE 15 CASH & BANK BALANCES

 i) Cash & Cash Equivalents

 (A)   Cash-in-Hand (as Cer  Þ ed)  28.92 

 (B)   Balance with Banks 

   In Current Accounts   215.04 

243.96

ii) Other Bank Balances 

 - Term Deposits with Banks  774.05

    (includes ` 77.05 Lacs having maturity greater than 12 months)

774.05

1,018.01

a) Term Deposits amoun  ng to ` 690 Lacs have been pledged as margin money against Le" er of Credit and Bank guarantee 

facili  es. 

NOTE 16 SHORT TERM LOANS & ADVANCES

 (Unsecured, considered good) 

 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 

  To others  2,244.10 

 Balance with Central Excise & CENVAT Receivable  975.43 

 VAT Credit Receivable/Refundable  173.12 

 Income Tax Payments   65.31 

 MAT Credit En  tlement   193.30 

 3,651.25 

Note : Income Tax Payments include ` 21.42  Lacs seized pursuant to search and seizure opera  on conducted by the Income Tax 

authori  es on 5th January, 2004.       

NOTE 17 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

 (Unsecured, considered Good) 

 Other Current Assets (Refer Note below)   65.28 

 Interest Refundable under CDR  137.95 

 Incen  ves Receivable  395.84 

 599.07 

Note : Other current assets include ` 35.79 Lacs paid towards TDS demand for the period from F.Y 2007-08 to 2013-14, which is 

subject to assessment & reconcilia  on of Þ gures for the aforesaid years.

NOTE 18   REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (GROSS)

 Sale of Products 

 Sale of Manufactured Goods - Ferro Alloys  24,802.98 

 Sale of Raw Materials  

  Manganese Ore  2,484.70 

  Coal & Coke  24.45 

 Sale of Traded Goods  

  Iron and Steel Products  24,026.05 

 Other Opera" ng Revenues 

 Export Incen  ves  963.95 

 52,302.13 

(` in Lacs)
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31.03.2015

NOTE 19 OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

  - On Fixed Deposits  190.55 

Foreign Exchange Fluctua  on Gain  25.55 

Sale of Scrap  46.10 

Commision Income  42.65 

 304.85

NOTE 20 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

 (Including cost of raw material sold)

 Raw materials at the beginning of the year  8,582.59 

 Add : Purchases  16,866.44 

    25,449.02 

 Less : Raw materials at the end of the year  8,483.16 

 16,965.86 

 Details of Raw Materials Consumed 

 Manganese Ore  13,158.14 

 Coal and Coke  3,118.36 

 Dolomite  16.42 

 Others  672.95 

 16,965.86 

NOTE 21  PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

 Iron and Steel Products  23,849.09 

 23,849.09 

NOTE 22 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS

 Ferro Alloys 

 Opening Stock  

    Finished Goods  365.14 

    Work-in-Progress  3,205.91 

 3,571.06 

 Less: Closing Stock 

    Finished Goods  568.50 

    Work-in-Progress  2,750.13 

 3,318.63 

 252.43 

NOTE 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 Salaries, wages & bonus   435.98 

 Contribu  on to provident & other Funds  35.35 

 Sta#  Welfare Expenses  7.34 

 478.67 

NOTE 24 FINANCE COSTS  

 Interest Expense  2,689.94 

 Other Borrowing Costs  343.71 

 3,033.65 

(` in Lacs)
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31.03.2015

NOTE 25 OTHER EXPENSES

 Consump  on of Stores and Spare Parts [Refer Note No. (c) below & 29(b)]  768.57 

 Packing Materials  62.77 

 Power [Refer Note No. (a) below & Note No. 27 (d)]  8,848.28 

 Rent  6.52 

 Rates & Taxes [Refer Note No. (b) below]  7.01 

 Repairs & Maintenance 

  -  Building  15.50 

  - Plant and Machinery  17.95 

  - Others  5.04 

 Insurance   36.98 

 Material Handling Expenses  305.06 

 Vehicle Hire & Maintenance Charges  119.10 

 Directors' Si'  ng Fees  1.25 

 Auditors' Remunera  on [Refer Note No. (b) below]  6.02 

 Travelling & Conveyance  18.59 

 Commission  10.25 

 Legal & Professional Charges  70.38 

 Security Charges  108.36 

 Miscellaneous Expenses  65.69 

 Rebates and Discounts  23.05 

 Freight & Forwarding  1,067.63 

 Tes  ng Charges  26.57 

 11,590.56 

(` in Lacs)

a) Power includes following expenses incurred on the Opera" on of Cap" ve Power Plant 

Cost of Materials Consumed - Coal, Coke and Dolochar

    Inventory at the beginning of the year  332.47 

    Add: Purchases during the year  0.31 

    Less: Transferred to Ferro alloys division  (324.74)

    Less: Inventory at the end of the year  8.04 

-

Consump  on of Stores and Spares  3.13 

 Repairs & Maintenance 

  -  Building  1.50 

  -  Plant and Machinery  11.45 

  -  Others  0.94 

 Vehicle Hire & Maintenance Charges  1.86 

 Miscellaneous Expenses  0.15 

  19.03

b) Auditor’s Remunera" on

i)  As Auditor [includes Tax Audit fees of ` 0.80 Lacs]  4.77 

ii) For other services  1.25 

6.02 

c)  Consump  on of stores and spares includes ̀  531.75 Lacs towards cost of Electrode Carbon Paste which were previously classiÞ ed 

under the head consump  on of raw materials.
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NOTE 26 CORPORATE DEBT RESTRUCTURING

 As a part of its Þ nancial revival process, the lenders of the Company have already approved the Corporate Debt Restructuring 

of debts. CDR EG vide its le" er dated 10th November, 2014 has approved the loan restructuring scheme for the Company. The 

CDR Package includes reliefs/measures such as reduc  on in interest rates, funding of interest, rearrangement of securi  es etc., 

the salient features of which are as follows :

 a)  Cut o#  date for implementa  on: 30th April, 2014 and upon implementa  on, the Þ nancial e# ect thereof has duly been 

taken into accounts.The said accounts are subject to conÞ rma  on and reconcilia  on with the Lenders. The reported 

Þ nancials would have consequen  al impact once the reconcilia  on is completed, the quantum where of remains 

unascertained. 

 b)  Waiver of liquidated damages/compounding interest/penal interest for the period from 30th April, 2014   ll implementa  on 

of the CDR package.    

 c)  Restructuring of exis  ng loans into Restructured Term Loans, conversion of irregular por  on of working capital facili  es 

into Working Capital Term Loan of ` 12,324.00 Lacs and crea  on of Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) of ` 3,328 Lacs from 

interest on Restructured Term Loan and working capital term loan for the period from 01/05/ 2014 to 30/04/2016. 

 d)  Restructuring of exis  ng fund based and non fund based Þ nancial facili  es.    

 e)  Rate of interest on Term Loans/WCTL/FITL would be reset a! er comple  on of 2 years and rate of interest on working 

capital would be reset every year.    

 f)     The op  on of selling o#  the 30 MW CPP or part thereof may be explored and considered with prior approval of the lenders 

and the CDR EG to liquidate the bank’s dues      

 g)  The CDR Package as well as the provisions of the Master Circular on Corporate Debt Restructuring issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India, gives a right to the CDR Lenders to get a recompense of their waivers and sacriÞ ces made as part of the 

CDR Proposal. The recompense payable by the Company is con  ngent on various factors, the outcome of which currently 

is materially uncertain and hence the propor  onate amount payable as recompense has been treated as a con  ngent 

liability. The aggregate present value of the outstanding sacriÞ ce made to be made by CDR Lenders as per the CDR package 

is approximately ` 15,117 Lacs.    

 h)  Contribu  on of ` 1,267 Lacs in the Company by the promoters in lieu of bank sacriÞ ces. The contribu  on is to be brought 

ini  ally in the form of unsecured loan and the same is to be converted into equity.   

NOTE 27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

 Con  ngent Liabili  es not provided for in the books of accounts in respect of :      

 (a) Bills discounted with Banks outstanding as on 31st March 2015 - ` 587.38.    

 (b) Excise Demand of ` 36.67 Lacs for the Financial Year 2005-06, 2006-07 & 2007-08 disputed in appeal. The Company has 

paid a sum of ` 20.92 Lacs under protest.    

 (c)  Sales Tax Demand disputed in appeal for the Financial year 2005-06, 2006-07, 2008-09 & 2009-10 aggregates to ` 1743.67 

Lacs. The Company has paid a sum of ` 88.62 Lacs under protest.   

 (d)  Several Par  es including the Company have disputed the basis of levy of Fuel Surcharge in the electricity bills of Damodar 

Valley Corpora  on (DVC). Pending Þ nalisa  on of the outcome of the ma" er, an amount of ̀  2964.20 Lacs (a! er considering 

waiver of electricity duty admi" ed by DVC) has not been provided for by the Company.  

 (e)  The company has challenged the cons  tu  onal validity of Entry Tax levied by the Government of West Bengal w.e.f 1st 

April, 2012. In view of the stay granted by the Hon’ble High Court of Calcu" a, the Company has not provided for the same 

in the books of accounts amoun  ng to ` 272.51 Lacs  

 (f)  Rela  ng to Assessment year 2012-13, a demand of ` 1,606.46 Lacs was raised by Income Tax Department against which 

the company has Þ led an applica  on to respec  ve department.    

 (g)  Bank Guarantee from bank amoun  ng to ` 76.54 Lacs.    

 (h)  Right to Recompense to CDR Lenders for the relief and sacriÞ ce extended, subject to provisions of CDR Guidelines, 

amoun  ng to ` 1045 Lacs.   
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(` in Lacs)

31.03.2015

NOTE 28 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Foreign Exchange Earnings : 

F.O.B. Value of Exports  17,844.86 

CIF Value of Imports: 

Raw Materials  7,834.84 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency : 

Sales Commission  -   

Compensa  on  1.76 

31.03.2015

%  (` in Lacs)

NOTE 29 BREAK UP INTO IMPORTED & INDIGENEOUS

a) Cost of Materials Consumed :

 Indigenous 64.86  11,003.51 

 Imported 35.14  5,962.35 

100.00  16,965.86 

b) Stores, Spares & Consumables :

 Indigenous 100  771.70 

 Imported  -    -   

100.00  771.70 

NOTE 30 AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE / PAYABLE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

(a)  Forward contracts/hedging instruments outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are ` Nil.

(b)  Par  culars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at 31st March, 2015 are as follows :   

Par" culars Currency 31.03.2015

Amount payable in foreign currency USD Lacs  5.66 

Amount receivable in foreign currency USD Lacs  7.45 

NOTE 31

In the opinion of the management, current and non-current assets have a value on realisa  on in the ordinary course of business 

at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the accounts. Adequate provisions have been made for all known losses 

and liabili  es.

NOTE 32

Certain balances of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables and Advances are subject to conÞ rma  on and reconcilia  on.   

NOTE 33 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The disclosures of Employee BeneÞ ts as deÞ ned in Accoun  ng Standard – 15 are given below : 

DeÞ ned Contribu" on Plan :

Contribu  on to DeÞ ned Contribu  on Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under :

  Par" culars 31.03.2015

Employer’s Contribu  on to Provident and Other Funds  26.60 

DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Plan :

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a deÞ ned beneÞ t plan. The present value of obliga  on is determined 

based on the actuarial valua  on using the Projected Unit Credit Method as on 31st March, 2015, which recognises each period of 

service as giving rise to addi  onal unit of employee beneÞ t en  tlement and measures each unit separately to build up the Þ nal 

obliga  on.  
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(` in Lacs) 

Par" culars Gratuity (Funded)

31.03.2015

NOTE 33 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.)

(i) Reconcilia" on of Opening and Closing Balances of the present value of DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Obliga" on:

 DeÞ ned BeneÞ t obliga  on at beginning of the year  36.86 

 Current Service Cost  7.92 

 Interest Cost  2.85 

 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  3.06 

 BeneÞ ts paid  (2.48)

 DeÞ ned BeneÞ t obliga  on at the year end  48.20 

(ii) Reconcilia" on of Opening and Closing Balances of fair value of Plan Assets:

 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year  56.60 

 Expected return on plan assets  5.05 

 Actuarial Gain/(Loss)  0.01 

 Employers’ contribu  on  15.07 

 BeneÞ ts paid  (2.48)

 Fair value of plan assets at the year end  74.26 

 Actual return on plan assets  5.07 

(iii) Reconcilia" on of fair value of assets and obliga" on:

 Fair value of plan assets  74.26 

 Present value of obliga  on  48.20 

 Amount recognised as (liability)/asset in Balance Sheet  26.05 

(iv) Expenses recognised during the year in the Statement of ProÞ t & Loss: 

 Current Service Cost  7.92 

 Interest Cost  2.85 

 Expected return on plan assets  (5.05)

 Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  3.04 

 Net Cost (recognised in "Contribu  on to Provident & Other Funds" under Note No. 23)  8.75 

(v) Break-up of Plan Assets as a percentage of total plan assets:

 Insurer Managed Funds 100%

(vi) Actuarial Assump" ons:

 Mortality Table (IAL) IALM 2006-08

ULTIMATE

 Discount rate (per annum) 8.00%

 Expected return on plan assets (per annum) 8.93%

 Rate of escala  on in salary (per annum) 10%F5Y & 6%TA

(vii)  Other Disclosures 31.03.2015

DeÞ ned BeneÞ t Obliga  on  48.20 

Plan Assets  74.26 

Surplus/(DeÞ cit)  26.05 

Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabili  es  (3.10)

The es  mates of rate of escala  on in salary considered in actuarial valua  on, take into account inß a  on, seniority, promo  on and 

other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. 

The discoun  ng rate is considered based on market yield on government bonds having currency and terms consistent with the 

currency in terms of the post employment beneÞ t obliga  ons. 

The above informa  on is cer  Þ ed by an Actuary.   
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The Company has the following investment, in a jointly controlled en  ty: 

Name of the en  ty : SKP Mining Pvt. Ltd.

Country of Incorpora  on : India 

Percentage of ownership interest : 50% as at 31st March, 2015 

Percentage of ownership interest :  NIL as at 31st March, 2014

 The Company’s share of each of the assets, liabili  es, income, expenses, etc (each without elimina  on of the e# ect of transac  ons 

between the Company and the Joint Venture) related to its interest in this joint venture, based on the audited Financial Statements 

are :                                                                                                                                                                                                              
(` in Lacs)

Par" culars 31.03.2015

a) Assets : Current Assets  159.78 

b) Liabili  es : Current Liabili  es  160.45 

c) Income :  0.16 

d) Expenses :  10.83 

NOTE 35 SEGMENT REPORTING

Business Segments: The Company is mainly engaged in the business segment of manufacture & sale of Ferro Alloys, Trading in Iron 

& Steel and Genera  on of Power.

Par" culars 31.03.2015

Segment Revenue

 Ferro Alloys  26,554.14 

 Iron and Steel  24,026.05 

 Power  -   

 50,580.19 

 Less: Inter Segment Revenue  -   

Total  50,580.19 

Segment Results (ProÞ t before Finance Cost & Tax)

 Ferro Alloys  (2,870.42)

 Iron and Steel  176.96 

 Power  (421.86)

Total  (3,115.33)

Finance Costs  3,033.65 

ProÞ t before tax  (6,148.98)

Less: Tax Expenses  -   

ProÞ t a' er tax  (6,148.98)

NOTE 34 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE
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Other Informa" on                                                                                                                                                                                    (` in Lacs)

Assets Liabili" es
Capital 

Expenditure
Deprecia" on

For the Financial Year 2014-15

 Ferro Alloys  23,697.64  15,984.99  11.27  460.94 

 Iron and Steel  20,610.38  3,086.80  -    -   

 Power  14,950.42  -    -    402.82 

 Unallocated  258.64  -    -    -   

Total  59,517.08  19,071.80  11.27  863.76 

For the Financial Year 2013-14

 Ferro Alloys  24,077.01  7,831.12  165.94  349.01 

 Iron and Steel  19,676.36  13,243.55  -    -   

 Power  16,224.29  492.56  180.88  827.99 

 Unallocated  -    245.54  -    -   

Total  59,977.65  21,812.76  346.82  1,177.00 

Geographical segments: The Company’s secondary geographical segments have been iden  Þ ed based on the loca  on of customers 

and are disclosed based on revenues within India and revenues outside India. Secondary segment assets are based on the loca  on 

of such assets. 

 Segment 

Revenue(Based 

on Loca" on of 

Customers) 

 Segment 

Assets(Based 

on Loca" on of 

Assets) 

Within India
 Year ended 31.03.2015  31,164.87  58,969.79 

Outside India
 Year ended 31.03.2015  19,415.32  472.40 

Total
Year ended 31.03.2015  50,580.19  59,442.19 

NOTE 36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

(i)  Name of the related par  es where control exists irrespec  ve of whether transac  ons have occurred or not 

 (a) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) Mr. Suresh Kumar Patni,  Managing Director

      Mr. Ankit Patni, Director  

      Mr. Sa  sh Kumar Singh,  Execu  ve Director  

      Mr. Sanjeet Kr. Gupta, Chief Financial O$  cer 

      Ms. Richa Agarwal, Company Secretary   

 (b)  Rela" ves of Key Managerial Personnel:   Mr. Rohit Patni  

      Mrs. Sarita Patni   

 (c) En" " es/Individuals owning directly or indrectly an interest in the vo" ng power that gives them control : 

  Shubham Complex Pvt. Ltd.  

  Relybulls Deriva  ves & Commodi  es Pvt. Ltd.     

  SKP Power Ventures Ltd.     

  SKP Avia  on Services Ltd.     

  A. B. Infratel Pvt. Ltd.     

  SBM Steels Pvt. Ltd.     

  Gajkarna Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.     

  Gajavakra Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.     
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NOTE 36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Contd.)

  Gannath Commerce Pvt. Ltd.     

  Mahabala Merchants Pvt. Ltd.     

  Marble Arch Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.     

  Narmada River Resources Pvt. Ltd.       

 (d)  Enterprises owned or signiÞ cantly inß uenced by the Key Managerial Personnel or their rela" ves:    

  Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.     

  Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.     

  Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.     

  Suanvi Trading & Investment Co Pvt. Ltd.     

  Shreyansh LeaÞ n Pvt. Ltd.     

  SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.     

  Vasupujya Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.     

  Whitestone Suppliers Pvt. Ltd.     

  Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.     

(ii)  Transac" ons with related par" es referred to above, in ordinary course of the business, are as under:

(` in Lacs) 

Par" culars 31.03.2015

Managerial Remunera" on 

Suresh Kumar Patni  12.00 

Sa  sh Kumar Singh  9.00 

Purchase of Goods

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  3,142.25 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  723.89 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  6,376.83 

SKP Overseas Pte. Ltd.  -   

Purchases of Capital Goods

Ankit Metal & Power Limited  12.97 

Sales of Finished Goods

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  3,389.56 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  1,115.72 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  2,904.62 

Purchase of DEPB Licence

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  35.99 

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  10.21 

Sale of DEPB Licence

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  249.83 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  12.41 

Si(  ng Fees

Mr. Ankit Patni  0.27 

Unsecured Loan

Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.  1,335.50 

Suresh Kr. Patni  112.10 

Rohit Patni  100.00 

Ankit Patni  145.10 

Advances Given, Refunded Back

SKP Overseas Pte Ltd.  163.31 
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Par" culars 31.03.2015

NOTE 36 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (Contd.)

Outstanding Balances as at 31.03.2015

Trade Receivable

Ankit Metal & Power Ltd.  95.30 

Impex Metal & Ferro Alloys Ltd.  1,368.40 

Trade Payable

Rohit Ferro-Tech Ltd.  2,774.06 

Unsecured Loan

Astabhuja Proper  es Pvt. Ltd.  1,285.50 

Suresh Kr. Patni  112.10 

Rohit Patni  100.00 

Ankit Patni  145.10 

NOTE 37 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year  8,15,96,604 

Number of Shares Considered as weighted average shares and poten  al shares outstanding for 

calcula  on of Diluted Earnings Per Share

 8,15,96,604 

ProÞ t/(Loss) a! er Tax a" ributable to Equity Shareholders (` in Lacs)  (6,148.98)

Nominal Value of Ordinary Shares (`) 10

Earnings Per Share (Basic) (`)  (7.54)

Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (`)  (7.54)

Note: Pursuant to CDR package, the Company has received unsecured loans amoun  ng to ̀  1,267 Lacs from promoters & promoter 

companies as promoter contribu  on to be converted into equity by September 30th, 2015 at such prices as will be determined in 

accordance to SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements) Regula  ons. Pending approval and determina  on of price by SEBI, 

the same has not been considered in the calcula  on of diluted EPS for the year.    

NOTE 38

The opera  ons of the Company are severely impacted by weak steel industry scenario and  lack of demand for company’s Þ nished 

product. The company has incurred loss a! er tax of ` 6,148.98 Lacs and accumulated Consolidated loss as on 31st March, 2015 is 

` 6,354.60 Lacs which is in excess of 50% of the net worth of the Company.

As a part of its Þ nancial revival process, the lenders of the company has already approved CDR package (as referred in note no 26 

above). The company has con  nuous support from the promoters and has put in place measures for revival and cost reduc  on

Considering the above ini  a  ve of the company and given the overall posi  on of steel industry in India, the Financial Statements 

have been prepared under Going Concern basis.  
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For R. Kothari &  Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 307069E

Manoj Kumar Sethia

Partner

Membership No: 064308

Kolkata, 30th May, 2015

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

Richa Agarwal

Company Secretary

S. K. Gupta

Chief Financial O   cer

Ankit Patni

Director

Suresh Kumar Patni

Managing Director

NOTE 39

Addi  onal Informa  on, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 of en  ty consolidated as Jointly controlled 

en  ty.

Name of the En" ty

Net Assets Share on ProÞ t or Loss

As a % of 

Consolidated  

Net Assets

Amount 

` in Lacs

As a %  of 

Consolidated 

Net Assets

Amount 

` in Lacs

Parent Company

Impex Ferro Tech Limited 100.01 6,831.00 (99.91) (6,143.65)

Jointly Controlled En" ty

SKP Mining Private Limited (0.01) (0.34) (0.09) (5.33)

Total 100.00 6,830.66 (100.00) (6,148.98)

NOTE 40

The Company has not made any remi" ance in foreign currencies on account of dividend during the year and does not have infor-

ma  on as to the extent to which remi" ance in foreign currencies on account of dividends have been made on behalf of non - res-

ident shareholders.

NOTE 41

Since this is the Þ rst year of consolida  on, previous year Þ gure to this Financial Statements have not been given.
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